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| fights between Vagos and Hells Angels; is that right?.

and the Vagos.

Q Do you have an copinion as to whether the killing of a
gang member by a rival gang member would cause a rivalry
between the gangs?

A Abszoclutely.

Q And based upon fhe information that you've gathered in
the course of &our career, did it contribute toward.the rivalry
between the Vagos and the Hells Angels?

A Yes.

Q ‘Now back to the situation at the Nugget,.did you have
an opportunity view the videﬁtape depicting the standoff at the
Oyster Bar?

A Yes.

Q And then did you see the fighf that happened later in
front of Trader Dick's where Jeffrey Pettigrew punched
Mr. Rudnick in the face?

A | Yes.

Q And then you saw the rest of the video which depicted

MR. DOGAN: Objection. Leading.

THE COURT: I think it's predicate to his answer, SO
I'1ll overrule. |

THE WITNESS: Yes.
BY MR. HALL:

Q Would that be consistent with the rivalry based upon

295
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vour training and experience?
iy Yes.
0 And do you have an opinion as to why -- were you aware

that the Vagos were having a national meeting at the Nugget

on -- during Street Vibrations in September of 20117
A No.
Q All right. And were ycu aware that there were

approximately 500 Vagos that were-staying at the Nugget under

the Green Nation?

A I wasn't aware of that number, but based_on the &ideo,
there was a lot.

Q Right. So you-could see that there was a very high
number.of Vagos present at the Nugget during the course of this
incident?

B Yeah, there appeared to be a good showing on both --
both the halves.

Q All right. So based upon‘yourltraining and
experience, ﬁould that be a violation of the territorial
boundaries that are typically claimed by respeétive outlaw
motorcycle gangs?

MR. SCHONFELD: Your Honor, I'm going to object. It's
leading, and ﬁe are beyond just a preface of the question.

THE CQURT: I'm going to sustain it. T also think
it's kind of wvague. I donft know what you mean,."thét would

he." It didn't make sense to me, the gquestion.

RIS L
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IMR. HALL: Thank you. I'll rephrase.
BY MR. HALL:

Q The fact that the Vagos were having a national meeting
at the Nugget, given that fact, would it be, based upcn your
training and experience, inappropriate for the Hells Angels t§
trespass on that territory, that being the_Nugget, where the
Vagos were having their national meeting?

MR. SCHONFELD: Objection. Assumes facts-not in
evidence. Foundation. Compound. Leading.

MR. DOGAN: I would jeoin in that objection, Your
Honor. | |

THE CbURT: Sustained.

MR. HALL: Well,.Yoﬁr Honor, he's -- I'm asking him to
be deemed an expert, and I provided him with a hypotﬁetical.

THE COURT: Weil, you didn't ask it that way.

MR. HALL: Okay; Let me rephrase it.
BY MR. HALL: |

o} S0, let me give you a hypoﬁhetical. And the
hypothetical -- I just basically gave you the facts that would
be in my hypothetical. So the facts would be if that was Vagos
terfitory and-they were having the national meéting.at the
Nugget, 500 Vages in attendancé, and the Heils Angels had a
booth outside yet entered the Nugget subseqguently, could that

be deemed a violation of the codes of conduct with respect to

territory claimed by the Vagos? And let's start there. Would

1953
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thatlbe a viclation of the territory that could be claimed by
the Vagos?

MR. SCHONFELD: I'm still going to.object. It's an
incomplete hyPothetical. Assumes facts not in evidence and
lacks foundation.

MR. DOGAN: I join.

THE COUET: I'll overrule incomplete. It goes to the
weight given to it.

You can answer the gquestion.

THE WITNESS: Yes. Based on my training and
experience, the fact that at runs like this and events like
this where you have rivals thefe, often you'll have your clubs
that will, say, claim the Nugget or claim The Horseshoe or
whatever, say, hotel they-will stay at. And roam between the
other clubs, like, "We are going to stay here,” and to aveid
any type .of huge incideﬁt like the one you experienced here.
BY MR. HATLL:

- Q Would it be ?our opinion that the murder of
Mr. Peftigrew and the shooting of several Vagos was the product
of the ongeing rivalry between the Végos and the Hells Angels?

MR. 3SCHONFELD: Your Honor, I'm going to object. Goes
to the ultimate question.

THE COURT: I'm going to sustain the objection not

because it goes to the ultimate question, but I am going to

sustain the objection as improper for this expert to testify.

ngst
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BY MR. HALL:

BY MR, HALL:
0 Well, you'wve already testified that their --

THE COURT: It goes to inftent. You can't -- an expert
can't testify as to the intent of the parties: They can
testify as to the ultimate facts in the case, their opinion,
but they cannot testify to ultimate intent. And so that goes
to intent. So that's why I'm sustaining it.

MR. HALL: Well, he can render his opinion, correct?

THE COURT: As.to_facts in the case.

MR. HALL: Right. 5o is it a fact there's a rivalry
that exists betwesen the two gangs, the Vagos and Hells Angels,
based .upon yoﬁr training and experience?

MR. SCHONFELD: Asked and answered.

THE COURT: Sustained. I mean, he's testified to

that.

Q All right. You're not aware of -- that's fine I'11
stop right there. |
Now, with respect to your investigation into the Kern
County stabbings, were the witnesses essentially coopefative?
A No.
o] And why is that?
MR. SCHONFELD: Objection. Calls for speculation.
MR. DOGAN: Join.

THE COURT: The form of the question does call for

1055
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speculation. Sustained.

BY MR. HALL:

0 Did you ask them why they were not cooperative?

A Yes.

Q 211 right. Why weren't they cooperative?

A All our witnesses were bikers. They openly said they

were keeping to their code, that they don't cooperate with law
enforcement. They don't talk to cops. They.don't assist in
criminal investigations. Ultimately, if yéu did speak, a few
drbp their colors and ultimately testified, but even the
festimony was so vague fhat they were still éticking to their
code.

0 All right. Now, when the Vagos members indicated this
was a hit on Jeffrey Pettigrew -- do you know who Jeffrey
Fettigrew is or was?

A I recall the name.

Q He was the president of the San Jose chapter of the.

Hells Angels.

A Okay.
Q | All right. Would --
| MR, DOGAN: Your Honor, objection as to reviewing
Mr. Rudnick's statements. I don't know whether —- I don't
believe he's reviewed it.

THE COURT: . I don't know where -- I'm sorry, your

.objection, reviewing ancther witness's statement?
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Mr. Hall is asking. Are you asking a hypothetical? Are you

MR. DOGAN: That's correct, Your Honocr.

THE COURT: That's not a legal cbjection. So you've
got a basis for a legal cbjection.

MR. DOGAN: Can I voir dire him?

THE COURT: On the basis for his opinion?

MR. DOGAN: That's correct.

THE COURT: That vyou're objecting that he give?

MR. DOGAN: On the basis that he did not review
documents p;ivy to this case.

THE COURT: Okay. I'm not sure. I don't know what

asking him to testify as to the witness's -- Mr. Rudnick's
statement? Where are you gocing here?

MR. HALL: I'm asking him -- well, I'm laying some
foundation as to what he knows so that I can ask.him a question
about rivalry between gangs and the hit on Pettigrew,
éssentially..

THE COURT: Okay. It sounds to me like the witness
said he didn't even know who Mr. Pettigrew wés. Se if you want .
to ésk a hypothetical question putﬁing gsome factes out there
that maybe you knoew of and ask him for an opinion, you can do
that. Otherwise, I'm going to sustain the objection inteo thé
line of qﬁestioﬁing based on his testimony.

MR. HALL: Okay.

1244
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BY MR. HALL:

Q Did Delanc Mike make any comments indicative of his
knowledge of the rivalry between the two OMGs?

A He made statements at previous instances between the
two organizations that —-- that it was war, and they were waging
war due to an act of violence that was -- but other than that, .
as far as the rivalry, I think-his actions -- ongoing actions
and the very similar actions each time, were enough to show the
knowledge of the rivalry and the beef between the two clubs.

Q Okay. And do you know, based upon your training and
experiencé, whether or not the chapter would communicate with
other chapters?

A Absoluteiy.

Q S0, for example, the Kern County Hells Angels woﬁld
communicate with the San Jose Hells Angels for example?

MR. DOGAN: Objection, leadingi

THE COURT: Sustailned. Iou can ask how he -- the
basis of his opinion. |
BY MR. HALL:

Q . What's the basis of your opinion with respect to a
communication between the respective chapters?

A You have the monthly officer meetings either in San
Bernardino or Oakland. Ycu have minutes that are kept at those
meetings as faf as club business for'each chapter: You have a

representative from East/West Coast chapters. Ahd if I'm not

1059
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mistaken, at least one or two representatives from the East
Coast to discuss club business, what's going on, membefs in
custody, trials, criminal acts, everything;

Q Based upon your training and experience, do you have
an opinion as to whether or not gangs would retaliafe for acts
of violence?

MR. DOGAN: Objectidnl Leading and vague.

THE COURT: I'm geing to overrule. I don't believe
that's that vague.

THE WITNESS: Yes. I mean, you have an act of
violence kind of vieﬁed as an eye for an eye. You would be
expected to retaliate or to carry out an act of violence
against the person that did it to you or the club itself.

BY MR. HALL:

0] Do you know whether or not there was any type of a
treaty between the Hells Angels and Vagos?

A At which time? 1I've never heard of one. They --
acbordihg fo cone Vago that I Spoke to, that a meéting was held
when the County Line Chapter.showed up in Kern County,
basically Bakersfield, and that it was supposedly a. truce or a
truce would be —- they were going to cocexist, that it didn't
happen.

MR. HALL: Court's indulgence.

BY MR. HALL:

Q You've executed search warrants with respect to your

w5
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investigation inte the stabbing of Vialano; isn't that correct?
A Yes.
Q aAnd what, i1f any, experience have you:had with respect
to sharing information with respect to ongeing criminal cases

against either the Vagos or the Hells Angels?

A Talking about between outlaw motorcycle gangs or
officers?
Q For example, what's been your experience that the

Hélls Angels would share information on criminal cases to
coordinate defense efforts or tactics for defense?

MR. SCHONFELD: Cbjection. Leading.

‘THE COURT: Sustained.
BY MR. HALL:

Q - What experience, 1f any, have you had with respect to

—- or_have you had any experience with respect to Hells.Angels
sharing information regarding criminal cases?

MR. DOGAN: Objection. Relevance.

MR. SCHONFELD: 5till leading.

THE COURT: Thé asking 1f he has any experience is not
leading, so I'm g@ing to overrule that.

Asked and answered, I think maybe you're referring toc
the questién where he talked about both Vagos a few minutes ago
with ocutlaw gangé and having West Coast meetinés}

MR. DOGAN: I objected on ground of relevance.

THE COQURT: Oh, relevance®?

1060
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MR, DOGAN: Yes, Your Honor.

.THE COURT: Overruled.

THE WITNESS: My particular experience is mostly with
the Hells Angels. As far as that goes, as far as ~- are West
Coast officer meetings.

I've read minutes from meetings, notes, computer
versions of it, disks, where they discuss current cases, one of
which was my particular case. I believe Mr. Gil-Blanco's name
was also mentioned in there. My néme, tooc. If any chapters
had any information to discredit us.

T listened to over a year of phone calls between our
primary suspect, our Hells Angel, and 6ther chapter members as
far as a defeﬁse strategy, obtaining of a new.attorney, the
Court process itself, a sfrategy they are trying to use, the
seizing of club property from our suspects, search warrants
done by other members who are facing other charges from this
particular member's chapters.

Very.organized, very well—known.bétween the different
chartérs and tﬁe different chapters as far as what's going on
everywhere.

BY MR, HALL:

Q So let me give you a hypothetical. 1If
Mf. Villagranaf a full-patch memﬁer of the Hells Angels, had
ATEF records which have been marked as an exhibit in this

particular case, Exhibit G, it's ongoing -surveillance conducted

WYY
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by ATF on Hells Angels members, would that be some of the
information that would be a showing of a code of conduct of the
Hells Angels?

MR. SCHONFELD: Objection, Your Honor. Assumes facts
not in evidence. Lack of_foundation. ‘

THE COURT: Because it's a hypothetical I'm going to
overrule the objection.

You can answer it.

THE WITNESS: OCkay. Yes.- Again, ocutlaw motorcycle
gangs as far as organizaticn, thelr intelligence, their
countefintell_igencer they watch us Jjust as much as we watch
them. Very organized. Very knowledgeable as far as this
wouldn't be the first case where we found'?olice docﬁments.in a
Hells Angel member's possession or clubhouse. I've assisted
other agencies in similar search warrants where countless
documents, confidential documents, were loca£ed énd seized. It
wouldn't be shocking to have confidential documents to me.

Q All right.

MR. SCHONFELD: I object to foundaticn. There's

-nothing in the record to SuggestJthose records were

confidential or ever subject to any type of order.

THE COURT: .Okay. I'm overruling the objection. I
don't knew if it's confidential or not. The hypothetical
called for ATF documents. It didn't necessarily sdy

confidential. The witness sort of added that. So T think the

F61
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testimony is still admissible.
MR. HALL: Thank you.
BY MR. HALL:
Q Along the same lines, there was evidence selected from
Mr. Villagrana's residence that he was in possession of a graﬁd
jury transcript of a shootout in Laughlin. Are you familiar

with that? First of all, are you familiar with the shootout in

Laughlin?
A Yes.
O And you're familiar with grand jury transcripts with

respect to the preliminary hearings or prelimiﬁary process to
get defendants to trial,.correct? Grand jury or preliminary
hearing?

A I'm familiar with the process. I never reviewed those
particular documents, but I'm very familiar with it.

Q Hypothetically speaking, would it be consistent in
your training and experience in the sharing of information
involving ongoing criminal cases involving Hells Angels.for
them té'share transcripts of criminal cases; for example,
transcripts of graﬁd jury investigations into criminal activity
such as that in Laughlin? |

MR, DOGAN: Objection. TLeading.
MR. SCHONFELD: I Jjoin the objectioﬁ, Your Hon&r.
THE COURT: Overruled. It's a hypothetical question.

THE WITNESS: Yes.

1963
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MR. HALL: Thank you. I have no further guestions.

THE COURT: All right. We've got about 15 minutes to
do some cross and we'll take our lunch recess. Choose.

MR. SCHONFELD: I'm up.

THE COQURT: Okay. Great.

MR. SCHONFELD: May I remain seated here; Your Honor.

THE COURT: Yes, you may.

MR. SCHONFELD: Thank you.

_ CROSS—EXAMINATION
BY MR. SCHONFELD:
Q | Mr. Colbert, I'm missing from your curriculum vitae --
THE COURT: I'm Sorry. .I'm going to stop you there.
Ms . Clerk, did we get a copy? Has the curriculum been
marked as an exhibit?
.Is it part of this —-- the motions that you filed
Friday.
_ MR. HALL: No, but I'll approach and have this marked
as an exhibit.
THE COURT: I thought you were all looking at 1t, but
we didn't have it.
MR..DOGAN: I believe they attached it as an exhibit
this morning.
THE COURT: This morning's pleadings I haven't had a

chance to look at. So are they attached .to this morning's

D6k
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| pleadings?

MR. DOGAN: I believe so. I got it in an e-mail on
Friday, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. That's -- oh, no. That's Tyler
Clark.

MR. HALL: We just received it this morning, Your
Honor, so we immediately e-mailed it to defense counsel.

THE COURT: 8o the clerk will mark it. The pleading
that does have a curriculum vitae attached was filed on the
14th and is Exhibit 1, but it's Tyler Clark.

MR. DOGAN: My apologies, Your Honor.

THE COURT: That's okay.

THE COURT CLERK: Exhibit P marked.

(Exhibit P marked for identification.)

THE COURT: Now, Counsel, you may continue to inguire.
And that's the document you're looking at, right?

MR. SCHONFELD: It is, Your Honor. Thank you.

BY MR SCHONFELD:
0 Mr. Colbert, yoqr_curriculum_vitae does not outline

your educational background; is that correct?

A Yes.

Q Do you hold a four-year degree?

A \ No, sir, I don‘t; h

0 Do you hold an associate‘s.degree?
A | No, sir.
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Q You've never taken any formal classes in sociclogy?
A No.

O No formal classes in behavioral science?

A No, sir.

Q No formal education in psychblogyé

A No, sir.

Q . You've never written any scholarly publications

related to what you call outlaw motorcycle gangs; is that

correct?
A That is correct.
0 You've never been published on the subject whatsoever;

is that correct?

A No, sir.

Q You've never ﬁritten any analytical reports.as.an
expert with respect to the Hells Angels Motorcycle Club, have
you?

A No, sir.

Q You've never taught at a four-year college regarding

the subject of what you call outlaw motorcycle gangs; is that

correct?
A No.
Q I'm correct?
A. You're correct. I apologize. I misunderstood you.
Q You're currently an investigator, a detective in the

robbery/homicide division; is that correct?

Foés
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A Yes, sir.

Q And it was in that capacity that you investigated a
Michael Pena case; is that correct?

A No.

0 The Michael Pena case, what was your assignment at the
time of the Michael Pena case?

AI I was assigned to the gang suppression unit, so I was
called ocut to be the lead as far as the gang end of i1t due to

my training and experience.

e} What years were you with the gang suppression
divisicn?
2 I believe I was in there from 2000 -- as a full-time

member, from 2007 te 2011, late 2011. Part-time from 2003 to
2007. |

Q After 2011 when you left that assignment, you were a
patrol deputy?

A Yes, sir.. I went back to patrol.

0 And after.patrol, you're now in robbery/homicide; is
that correct?

A Yes.

Q In locking at your formal training courses for expert
testimony, you would agree.with me that listed is only one
traihing that focused solely upon what you would call ocutlaw
motorcycle gangs; ié that correct?

A Yes, sir. And I apoleogize, that was -- my previous CV
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was destroyed in a thumb drive accident with a washing machine.
This last week has been absolutely hectic. I had to throw that
together just for court. T apologize, it's not thé greatest..
And several of the training courses, I just don't remember when
I went to them.

0] As I stated, in thé curriculum vitae that we had.'
received, there was only one formal training course that

focused only on what you have called outlaw motorcycle gangs,

correct?
A I believe that's correct, yes.
Q And fhat‘s a one-day class, correct?
A Yeah, I believe so.
Q Do you need tc see your CV?

A No. That's fine.

0 - August 23rd, 2010, to Auguﬁt 23rd, 2010. BSo that
would be one day, correct?

A Yes, sir.

Q You have never been admitted as an expert witness
related to the Hells Angels in a court of law; is that correct?

A Yes, I have.

Q ~What case?

A It would have been this case (indicating). The
preliminary training -- excuse me, I apologize. Preliminary

hearing, two separate preliminary hearings on the murder of the

-— or death of Roger Vialano.
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0 So the Roger Vialanc case, that is the only time you.
have been admitted as an expert witness as it relates to the

Hells Angels Motorcycle Club?

A Yes.

Q And you testified in that case, correct?

A Yes.

Q And you rendered your opinion that the acts of

Mr. Pena were done in furtherance of the Hells Angels

Motorcycle Club, correct?

A Yes.
Q 2nd the jury heard that testimony, correct?
A No.

0 Ch, vou didn't testify before the Jjury?
A T didn't testify before the jury. I testified at
preliminary hearing because Mr. Gil-Blanco was otherwise

engaged. Mr. Gil-Blanco did the ultimate expert at the jury

trial.

Q Okay. So you testified at the preliminary hearing and
Mr. Gil-Blanco did not?

iy Yes.

Q Then the District Attorney's Office decided to only
call one expert or so-called expert related to the Hells.
Angels, and that was Mr. Gil-Blanco and not you, correct?

A Yes.

Q Were you involved in the decision-making process as to
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why vyou were no longer geoing to be called as a witness at the

trial?
A Yes.
0 And what was the basis of that decision?
A It was from the minute T —— T was the one that

requested Jorge Gil-Blanco to be brought in. His experience is
untouchable as far as outlaw motorcycle gangs. He's lived this
for I don't know how many years and he can testify as an expert
much better than T can.

¢ So you felt that he was a much better expert as it
reiated to Hells Angels Motorcycle Club than you could?

A I thought that he was more experienced és far as Hells
Angels and Vagos to testify, yes.

Q And so it was your decision that Mr. Gil-Blanco —-- you
initiated the decision that Mr. Gil-Blancec should be called in
your place and stead as the so-called expert related to the
Hells Angels Motorcycle Club, correct?

A Yes, that was part of the decision. I brought it up.
I brought Mr. Gil-Blanco on board. We are friends. I brought
him on board from minute one. I actually called him that
night.

Q Because you wanted his expertise in the investigation
and preparation for triai?

A No. It was to run names acress him. He's cne of

those people that can remember names. I can't. I can tell him
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a chapter and he can probably give you a roster. He's that
guy. I'll -- I'm not that guy.

o S0 he knows far more about the Hells Angels Motorcycle
Club than you do, correct?

A That's absolutely true.

Q And you're aware that it's been raised that the --
strike that. |

Did Mr. Gil-Blanco testify at the trial of Michael

Pena?
A Yes.
Q And he sat before the jury, correct?
A Yes.
O And you also testified at that trial, correct?
A Yes.
Q And you presented similar testimony as to what you

provided here regarding what yoﬁ believe to be the facts of
that case, correct?
A Yes. 2nd also the rivalry and the prior acts leading

up to the case, yes.

c And Mr. Pena was charged with murder in that case,
correct?

A Yes, he was.

Q And he was charged with ﬁromoting a criminal street

gang, correct?

A Yes.
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Q And the jury heard all the testimony that we've been
describing, correct?
A Yes.
8] And they returned an absclute 100 percent not-guilty
verdict, correct?
A Yes, sir. Mr. Pena and all the other codefendants
were acquitted.
Q So a jury did not agree with Mr. Gil-Blanco that the
stabbing of Mr. Vialano was an act of murder, cqrrect?
MR. HALL: Objection. Speculation.
MR. SCHONFELD; I don't see how that's speculation.
THE COURT: When you use the word agree. Sustained;

MR. SCHONFELD:

Q The Jjury -- did you render an opinion in that trial?
A An expert opinion, sir?
Q Before the jury, did you render an expert opinion on

any subject?

A i don't recall. I don't think I did.

Q Now, I'm going to sort of start where Mr. Hall left
off in some respect. You talked about in vour searches and
seizures of clubhouses and various members of the Hells Angels’
homes, you found that members of the Hells Angels would share
defense files relating to pending cases; is that cérrect?

A I don't think I ever said defense files; sir.

0 They would share infermation regarding pending cases?
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A We have information in minutes. I would also find our
police reports that were -- shouldn't have been there. They
were in no way, shape, or form redacted as far as the names
or —-

Q Can you point to what cases you're referring to that
had reports that were not redacted and shouldn't have been
there?

A I specifically remember a search warrant in Temecula,
California. I assisted in San Bernardinc. That was one of our
reports that were tﬁere_with no information redacted as far
a5 ——

Q Is there a protective corder that vou're aware of that
you can produce to this Court related to the police report in
that investigation? |

A Repeat that.

Q Was there a protective order that you can produce or
point out for this Court tha£ would establish that the report
that you're referring to was not permitted to be disclosed
without the redaction?.

A I don'ﬁ -— I'm not aware of an order. I'm aware of a
statute stating the victim information to be redacted, however
not aware of a court order.

0 And is it true that you testified that in the minutes
of some”of the meetings, there were discussions regarding Jorge

Gil-Blanco as well as yourself regarding the Oildale case,

pUNE
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correct?

A Yes, I believe my name was mentioned in one. If I
remember correctly, Gil-Blanco's name was in a couple of
others.

o] And on direct examination, you testified that the
reference was, has any other member dealt with this witness so
we can have information to discredit that witness on the stand,
correct?

A I bhelieve the exact statement was they were like notes
and anybody with information to discredit Gil-Blanco.

0 Nothing wrong discrediting-a witpess on the witness
stand, is there?

A No.

Q - Nothing wrong gsomebody asking others who have
expérience with a pérticular witness in Court to provide that:
information to another's need, correct?

A No.

g Nothing wrong with -- strike that.

So basicalL? what you're saying is that the Hells
Angels share information with each other when there are people
defending cases?

A The Hells Angels share information with each other
about a lot of things, sir.

Q And one of them is when a member is defending

| themselves, they try to gather information for defense in that

FHH




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

62

case?
A . Yes.
Q 8ir, when you were first contacted in reference to

testifying in this case, isn't it true that the sole basis of
that contact was for you to testify regarding the facts of the
Qildale incidence in question?

A I don't recall the conversation when I was asked to
testify.

MR. HALL: Object, Your Honor. This is -- doesn’t
have anything tec do with his testimony.

THE COURT: I'm going to sustain the objection.

MR. SCHONFELD: |

| Q You werenft initiélly contacted by the State of Nevada
to render expert witness testimony regarding the Hells Angels
in this cése? |

MR, HALL: Objection. Relevance.

MR. SCHONFELD: Your Honor, the relevance is that this
person isn't even qualified to render an expert opinion as it
relates to the Hells Angels MoTorcycle Club and the fact that
1t was last minute after this Court ruled that that fac£
witness can't testify regarding incidents that didn't involwve
either one §f these defendants. There's been a shift.that all
of a sudden this person is going to be produced as a witness.

THE COURT: They answered that question as not

relevant, so I'm going to sustain the objection.

HET1S
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BY MR. SCHONFELD:
Q Mr. Colbert, you don't even know the name of the

decedent in this case, do you?

A I was told it. I'm horrible with names, sir. I
apologize. I don't remember it.
0 So you're geoing to offer to render expert opinions in

this case against Mr. Villagrana and you don't know the name of
the decedent; is that correct?

A I was offering expert -- I don't recall the name of
the decedent, no.

0 You didn't provide any testimonial history in your
curriculum vitae, did you?

A I'm sorry?

Q You didn't provide your testimonial histery as an

expert witness in your curriculum vitae, did you?

A No, sir, I'haven}t. I haven kept that great of track
of it. _I'rarely get Challenged in Kern County.

0 When was the last time\you utilized your curriculum
vitae prior to tﬁis merning?

A It's been a leng time.

Q A year?

A Over a year.
0 Two years”?
A Last time I brought a resume to court was probably

2008, maybe, as far as actually providing the document.
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Q So the last use of your curriculum vitae for court
purpecses was in 2008; is that accurate?

A Yes.

Q You would agree with me there are members of Hells
Angels Motorcycle Club that have absolutely no criminal record,
convictions, or arrests, correct?

: Yes, sir.

Q@  So it's not required in order to be a member of the
Hells Angels Motorcycle Club that you be a criminal, correct?

A Not to my knowledge, no.

0 . Or that you engage in criminal acts, correct?

A I believe as far as my experience, the membership
itself, there is criminal acts included in a lot of different
ways in that members themselves are part of those acts, 1f not
directly, indirectly. |

Q My question was, isn't it true that you do not have to
commit crimes in order to be a member of the Hells Angels
Motorcycle Club?

MR. HALL: Asked and answered, YourlHonor.
THE COURT: Overruled. He didn't answer the question.
THE WITNESS: I don't know any rules that you have to
be a2 criminal.
MR, 3SCHONFELD:
0 So I'm correct?

A I helieve so0.
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MR. HALL: Narrative.
THE COURT: Sustained as to "So I'm correct."
BY MR. SCHONFELD:
Q YQu suggest that you're an expert in the Hells Angels
Motorcycle Club?
A Yes, sir. I've never reviewed documents that say you
have to be a criminal to be a Hells Angel, no.
Q Or that you have to commit crimes in order to be-a
member, cprrect?
A No, sir, I've never seen that.
THE COURT: 1It's ﬁoon. Are.you close to being done?
MR. SCHONFELD: Probably not.
THE COURT: ©Okay. Then we'll take ocur lunch recess.
Wa'll be back in the Court at —-- do you want to start at 1:157?
1:307 What's best for all of you, 1:30 or 1:157?
MR. HALL: 1:15.
MR. SCHONFELD: 1:15 is fine, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Okay. 1:15.
Court is in recess.
{(Lunch recess taken.)
THE COURT: Okay. Counsel; you can continue vyour
cross—examination.
MR. SCHONFELD: Thank you, Your Honor.
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CROSS-EXAMINATION RESUMED
BY MR. SCHONFELD:

Q Mr. Colbert, isn't it true that you had never

infiltrated a motorcycle club?

A Yes, that's true.
Q And you testified that the Hells Angels has no chapter
in Kern County; is that correct?

A No.

Q 50 am I correct?
A I'm sorry. Yes.
0 You alsc testified that you were familiar with the

hierarchy of the Hells Angels and fhat it was similar to the
Vagos. Do you remgmber that testimony?

A Rénge, structure, yes.

0 Is there a national president of the Hells Angels
Motorcycle Club? |

A I don't recall who it is, sir. I've been out of gangs

for a while.

Q There is a position of national president; that's your
testimony?

A Based on my training and experience, vyes.

Q .And is there a national vice president as well?

A Yes.

0 And you don't know who those individuals are?

A No, sirx. I've been out of gangs for a while now.
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Q But your training and experience is what gives you
that information that there's national and — president and
vice president, correct?

A I believe so, unless I'm mistaking the two or
confusing the two. I don't believe so.

Q You —-- you would agree with me if you were mistaking
the two or confusing the two that you wouldn't really be an
expert on the Hells Angels, correct?

A Sir, T haven't -—- I lived bikers for quite a while.
I've been cut of gangs for about a year. I haven't been doing
gang cases or gang testimony.

Q "30 as a result of the time lapse, you are no longer an
expert as it relates to the Hells Angels?

A I think T have mOre'knowledge than the average person;
however, there are more qﬁalified people out there, absolutely,

Q. Okay. Are you aware that the Hells Angels Motorcycle
Club is a nonprofit organization?

A I don't recall as far as their finanecial or actual
business organization end of it.

0] You would agree with me most of the Hells Angels

chapters in the United States have a clubhouse?

A - The ones I know of, yesﬂ I'm noet sure if all of them

do.
Q So it's not within your area of expertise?
A The ones I'm familiar with do.

D0
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And the clubhouses have a death head in front of them?

Sometimes.

The Hells Angels make it clear that it's their
ouse,.correct?

The ones that I've seen, yes. The Purdue clubhouse,
absclutely.

They hold parties where members of the public can
d, correct?.

Yes.
So they iet members of the public into their
ocuse, correct? |
Based on my training and experience, vyes.
And law enforcement has, in fact, gone to some those
es, correct?
Yes.
The members of the Hells Angels wear their trademark

on their clothing, correct?

-Yes.
" Most of the Hells Angels have regular day jobs,
ct?
Yes.
Families and child;en, correct?
Sometimeé, yes.
As far as the 0Oildale incident.that you investigated
estified to, Mr. Pena was part owner of the tattoo shop
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where the incidence in guestion occurred, correct?

A Yes. He was like a silent-partner type.

O And he was at fhat location prior to any member of the
Vagos arriving on May 30th, 2011, correct?

A Yes.

Q He was the only full-patch Hells Angels member on

“location, correct?

A No.
¢  How many full-patch members were there at that time?
A At the time, it was Michael Pena and reported to have

been Ryan Chapley from the Fresno County chapter.

0 You never confirmed that'with independent evidence,
correct?

A Besides Stétements, no.

Q - The only persen that could testify with any form of

definity that was a full-patch member would have been Mr..Pena,
correct? | |

A I later saw Mr. Chapley there, but at the time of.the
death, no.

o] And the Vagos clubhouse was, 1 think you testified; a
couple of blocks away?

. A Tt wasn't a clubhouse. It was a member's house that

they held é party at.

Q And somebody called the Vagos member's house and said

that Michael Pena was at Michael Pena's tattoo shop, correct?

LR
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A Yes,

Q | And the Vagos went there, on your direct examination
you said, on their bikes and with a truck in order to confront
Michael Pena, do you remember that?

A Yes, that was the general statements made by several
subjects.

Q And according to the witness statements in that

Qildale case, there were between 10 to 20 members cof the Vagos

-that arrived .at that tattoo shop, correct?

A I believe that was correct as far as the witness
statements.
0 And as far as you understand, they went there.knowing

that Michael Pena, a member of the Hells Angels was located
within that structure, correct?

A Yes. I believe they saild he was sitting out front.

Q You would agree with me that the members of the Vagos

had at least one gun and several knives, correct?

- A I know at least one gun. As far as knives, I know
specifically of two names said they had pocket knives -- style
knives. I don‘t recall the rest.

Q So —-- just so we.are clear, 10 to 20 members of the

Vagos go to a location where you can only confirm there was one
patched member of the Hells Angels, and the Vagos had one gun,
at least two knives, correct?

A Yes.
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Q

And they went there to confront Michael Pena, the only

patched member of the Hells Angels at that location, correct?

A

Q.

Yes.

Now, you testified that members of the Vagos, quote,

dropped their colors, end quote, and testified in the Oildale

trial?

A
Q

said,

Yes.
Okay. So you had members of Vagos whco essentially
"I'm no longer geoing to be a member of the Vages. I'm

going to cooperate with the police and testify against the

member of the Hells Angels, Michael Pena, who's on trial™?

A

When I say drop their colors and testify, I wouldn't

call it cooperating. They were .rather unccoperative on the

stand. They did give some statements in police reports;
however, they weren't very -- they kind of recanted on the
stand.

Q Well, what I refer to ~- let me ask fou this: You'wve

been in law enforcement, you know what a CI is, correct?

A

Q

A

Q

Yes.

Sometimes referred to as a CS, confidentia; source?
T only heard them CI.

What does CI mean to you?

Confidential informant.

And confidential informant is somebody cooperating

with the police?

-
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A Yes.
Q So these individuals who, quote, dropped their colors,

end quote, were confidential informants at some point in time,

correct?
A No.
o] They came in and said, "I'm willing to voluntarily

appear at the trial of Michael Pena and testify against him"?

A Absolutely not. We had to.track them down. They
dropped their colors on their own, on their own doing as a
result of the homicide. Several members did.

Q They agreed to come to court and testify once you

located them, correct?

A They agreed under subpoena and under threat of arrest
to testify.

o) And they did in fact testify at the trial, correct?

A Yes.

) You testified at the trial, correct?

A Yes.

0 Jorge Gil—Bléncq testified at the trial, correct?

iy Yes.

Q And the defense asserted a position that Michael Pena

was defending himself at the time of the incidence in question;
is that correct?
A That was the defense strategy, ves.

o And that defense strategy resulted in an ultimate
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acquittal on all charges including a gang enhancement, correct?

A Yes.

Q Mr. Villagrana, Cesar Villégrana, was not involved in
the 0Oildale incidence, was he?

A Not to my knowledge.

Q In fact, you haven't seen his name in any single
report related to the 0Oildale incidence that you're testifying
to, correct?

A That's correct.

Q | Isn't it true that initially, the responding officer
that went to the tattoo parlor cleared the call and stated that
he believed that there had been no felony committed?

.A Yes. He cleared the call and left based on the
statements by the parties involved.

o] And the decedent in that case, Roger Vialano had a .40
caliber pistol in his possession at the time of the incident in

question, correct?

A Yes.

Q He also had a ten~round magazihe in his possession,
correct?

A It was in the weapon.

Q Along with a fixed-blade knife; is that correct?

A I believe so, yes.

Q S0 he didn't have a pocketknife, he actuélly had a

fixed-blade knife, correct?

PRAL S
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B If memory serves me correctly, yes, he did. He had a
fixed-blade knife.
Q Mr. Pena was not arrested on the date cf those
incidents in question, was he?
L No.
THE COURT: That question was relating to both?
MR. SCHONFELD: The Oildale incidence.
THE COURT: 0©Qildale and the tattoo --
MR. SCHCNFELD: 0Oildale is the tattoo parlor, Your
Honor. The other is the Kern County Fair, which I haven't
gotten into.
THE COURT: Oh, Kern County Fair. Thank you.

MR. SCHONFELD:

Q Nobody was arrested at the Kern County Fair incident,
Correct?
.y Later a full-patch member —— or at the time was a

prospecf, and after he got out of custody, he was made
full—patch for fighting.

Q Ckay. I'm not talking about in general at the Kern
County Eair, I'm télking about the incident where you said the

Hells Angels had their tent.

A ‘You're talking about the standoff between the two?
Q Yes.
A Nobody was arrested as a result of the standoff.

Q That was another incidence where the Vagos members

AT
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came into where the Hells Angels had already been located and
conducting their fair business, correct?

A Yeah, they came in to where the booth was. 1T don't
recall who got to the bike run first.

MR. SCHONFELD: Court's indﬁléence.
THE COURT: Yes.
MR. SCHONFELD:

Q 3ir, is it your understanding that Cesar Villagrana is
here because he's accused of personally shooting and killing
someone, correct?

A Yes.

MR. SCHONFELD: I have no further questions.
THE COURT: Okay. Cross?

MR. DOGAN: Thank you, Your Honor.

CROSS-EXAMINATTION

EY MR. DOGAN:

] Sir, yeou have not taught any courses regarding outlaw

motorcycle gangs or motorcycle clubs at any conference,

correct?
A No.
Qo And you yourself have attended outlaw motorcycle garg

conferences, correct?
A Yes.

Q And you only attended cne of them, right?
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B It's been more. Some of them -- if they are not
what's called POST certified they don't get put on my list of.
stuff I can look up, and then -- when I used to keep track of
it. It met its demise with the washing machine, I apologize.

Q 3ir, when you refer to the list, are you referring to
your CV?

A The list of whefe the training courses and the dates

are, that's from a much larger list of my training that's

regquired by California Peace Officer Standards and Training.

If it's certified by POST, then they will -- it goes on my list
for that training record. If it's not, it's just a conference
I attend, classes here or there, or a cdnference, or lectures,
or whatever you want to call them. They don't all make it on
there.

¢  But according to your CV, you've only attended one of
these conferences, cO;rect? |

A That was PQST certified, yes.

QO Aﬁd you attend these courses to learn how to learn not
teach, correct?

A You are required to, at the courses, to be able to
ﬁass_on the knowledge you get to other officers at the
department. So that's our or training motto. We have to he
able to -- whatever we are taught,.to be able fo pass it on so
vou don't have to send the whole department to a training

necessarily, you can send one person and they can turn around
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Q But you have not taught any law enforcement training
classes 1in your department, have you?

A Ch, absolutely.

Q Say that again?
A In my department, yes.
o] Yeah.

A _Absolutely.

Q So you've brought together groups of law enforcement
officers to teach them regarding outlaw motorcyclg gangs®

A I've taught in the basic-academy. . I've taught
advanced officers school. 1I've given presentations to the
sheriff command sfaff, board of supervisors; police department
members as far as outlaw motorcycle gangs. Much more as far as
criminal street gangs go which always'have a section for outlaw
motorcycle gangs.

0 And your focus haz been primarily criminal street
gangs; 1sn't that right?

A It's both. You cover eveiy aspect of gang
investigations and outlaw bikers are just as much a part of it

as Hispanic turf gang or Cripps and Blood gang.

Q Are you finished?
A Yeah.
Q Sorry. You're no longer part of the gang task force

in your department; is that correct?

090
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A Yes.

Q And ydu —-— you've been out of that gang task force for
over a year; 1is that correct?

A Yes, it's little over a VEear now.

Q Okay. You have never infiltrated any Vagos motorcycle
club, corréct?

A No.

Q And you have testified as an expert oﬁ one single
occasion, correct?

A ‘No. I've testified on Vagos case, it was a concealed
weapons case in approximately 2007, maybe 2008. It.resulted in
a plea deal. T testified twice at separate preliminazry
hearings for the particular homicide case that we have of in
front of us today.

Q and you testified as an expert in these cases?

A Yes.
Q And you testified as an outlaw motorcycle gang.expert

in these cases?

A Yes.
Q0  And you named three cases; is that correct?
A Two separate incidents on this same case and one other

case regarding some Vagos members from I believe Tulare, 1f I
remember correctly. TIt's been a long time.
Q So I would be incorrect that during your direct

examination, you stated you testified on one single occasion

AN
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which would be the Oildale incident?
A Yes. I've testified on a Hells Angel case one time or
one -~ covering.one incident. It was two separate preliminary

hearings due to the fact that the first trial was dismissed and

refiled due to —- I think we had to try to get witnesses
"together. Something -- we couldn't meet the speedy trial
reguirement.
| Q And you Jjust stated that that case was dismiSsed,
correct?

A The oildale homicide was initially filed, it was
dismissed and immediately re—-filed due to -- I don't recall

what the issue was as far as either getting witnesses or
something regarding time restraints, and it was re-filed and we
went forward again.

Q 2And in the 0Oildale incident, the defendant was a Hells

Angel, correct?

A Yes, sir.
Q And he was belng prosecuted for murder, correct?
A Yes. There was actually two defendants. Both Hells

Angels full-patch member and Hells Angels hang-around.

e And the victims in this case were Vagos; 1s that
right?
A Yes, sir.
Q 2nd that case went before.the jury, right?
A Yes. |
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you?

A Not

Q And

acquitted by

A Yes.

did not testify as an expert in that case, did

in front of the jury, no.

the defendants in that case were ultimately

the jury, correct?

80

Q Now, during your direct examination, you had mentioned

that you spoke to three Vagos; is that correct?

A In the C¢ildale murder?

Q In regards to your opinion as an expert regarding the
Vagos.
MR. SCHONFELD: Your Honor, I would just ask that it

not be referred to as murder again.

I'm sure it was Jjust a

mistake.
THE COURT: Okay. Keep counsel sitting next to you
happy.
MR..SCHONFELD: I think the witness has alsc used that
term.
THE COURT: Do you want to rephrase your question?
MR. DOGAN: Yes,-Your Honor. Thank you.
THE COURT: Thank you.
BY MR. DOGAN:
o In regard to your testimony here today regarding your

opinion in regard to the Vagos, you spoke to three Vagos; is

that right?
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A I think I spoke to more during the inwvestigation, but
I got actual statements from at least three Vagoes.

Q And one Vago member you spcocke to regarding tattoos; is
that right-?

A Yes. That was actually during the previous expert
testimony. The victim was actually a Vago in that caée, and
he —- he was talking about the tattoos being greened out.

0 And ié that the only subject that you discussed were
tattoos with that member?

A Mo, no. We talked about how he patched up. I mean,
it -- a lot of things. I don't recall the whole interviéw.
It's been a long time, but

Q Do you have an audio recordiﬂg of that interview?

A I don't think so. I'm not sure, it's been so long.
It's probably six years ago.

Q Six. Okay. Do you have aﬁy police reports regarding.
that interview?

B There was police reports complefed. I would have to
do some serious reseafch as far as_finding the Case Number at
that time. We didn't even use our autométed record system. We
were still doing paper reports.

8] And that interview was conducted pursuant to
prosecution, correct?

)y The prosecution in which the interview subject was a

victim, ves.
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Q And when you interviewed that indiwvidual, was he still

a member of the club?

A No.
@] ‘And he was a -- was he kicked out of the club?
A That's -- the gist of the investigation was, according

to him, he was a full-patch member of the Vagos --

Q Uh-huh. |

A -— and because of statements he made and -~- he was put
in bad standing and they basically kidﬁapped him, stole his
weapons, and cut his --

'] He was a cooperating witness?

THE COURT: Cut his what?

THE WITNESS: What?

THE COURT: You weren't through with your answer and
he stopped you.

THE WITNESS: They cﬁt his cuts off him. They took
his colors back.

THE COURT: You may proceed.

MR; DOGAN: Your Honor, the rest of the answer I would
move to strike as nonresponsive. My question asked for a yes
or no answer. Whether he was a member of good standing or not.

THE COURT: I think -- I'm going to overrule your
objection. I think it was responsive.

BY MR. DOGAN : |

Q Okay, sir. Do you know this Vagos' name?
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A Yes, I remember hisg first name was Ronald. I
apologize, I'm geing a hundred percent from memory, 1t's been a
long time. It's Ronald something or other, I just don't
remember his last name .

Q Then you refer to another Vagos member regarding a

truce between the HAs. Do you recall that testimony?

A Yes.
Q And do you recall his name?
A Bret Vialano, the wvictim in the death.

Did you hear me?

Q I did not hear yoﬁ, I'm sorry.
A Bret Vialano, the father of the 0ildale death.
Q And when you spoke to this individual, was he a member

of the Vagos?

A Yes.

Q And you spoke to this individual regarding the 0Oildale
prosecution,-correct?

A No. This was before, outside of a bar that I just

kind of was casually talking to him.

Q Were you drinking?

A No. I was on duty.

Q You went to a bar on duty?

A I went to respeond to a call where the Bakersfield

Bastards, the Red and White club, and the Vagos were getting

ready to fight inside a bar. And back then I was the lead or
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the go~to guy as far as bikers go in the gang unit. I

responded and I talked to some bikers.

Q So ybu were there in response to a call, correct?
Fiy Yes.
0 And in response to a call you spoke to this

individual, correct?

A Yes.

Q And that was to —- that was 1n relation to your law
enforcement duties, correct?

A Yeas.

0 In regard teo the Vagos, have you ever read theilr
bylaws?
A I believe I've read older versions of them passed down

from.qther gang investigators, but as far as a recent one, no.

Q And how old.were these versions?

A I don't even know. There were several passed down. I
ultimately had almost 20-plus-years-—-old Hells Angels version
one. It was actually on a typewriter. 1I've had reviewed --
I'm sorry. vae reviewed different clubs' bylaws, but I --
nothing current or recent.

Q And how did you cobtain the Vagos' bylaws?

A It was through other gaﬁg investigators during the
course of their careers, or search warrants; just documents
that are shared.

Q Do you know who authored it?

Ry
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A I don't.

Q Do you have a copy of it?

A Idon't.

0 When was the last time you reviewed the Vagos bylaws?

A It had prcbably been 2007 when I did the weapon case I
previously spoke of, and I think they were old at that time,
honestly.

Q Have you ever -- you had never reviewed the chapter
minutes of the Vagos, have you?

A Not to my reccllection.

Q Okay. BAnd you have never conducted a search warrant
or assisted in conducting a search warrant of a Vagos'
residence, have you?

A I think we did during this case. I'm trying to
remember. It was-a search warrant, though. I searched Vagos
members' residences, but not that I <¢an recall as far as it
being a search warrant or not.

Qo Okay. How many Vagos are there in the United States?

A I have no idea.
Q How many Vagos members are there in California?

A ‘No idea.

Q What countries have Vagos chapters?

A I know the United States does, Mexico, I think. Other
than that, I'm not sure.

Q How mény Vagos chapters are there in the United
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States?
A No idea.
Q Is there a Vagos chapter in Bakersfield?
A Not énymore.
Q Can you name one Vagos president of a chépter?
A When I was investigating gangs, the only one I could

remember or beside the County Line chapter president was
Knuckles. I don't recall his real name. And the national
president, Terry the Tramp. But I don't think he's in it
anymere, honestly.

Q Is it correct that Terry the Tramp is the individual

who started the Vagos?

a I don't know.
Q Can you name a sergeant-of-arms of the Vagos?
A There was Bret Vialano and Jack Sealy of the County

Line chapter. After that, I don't know.

0 Ahd this is in relation to Bakersfield, correct?
A Yes.
0 And this is in relation to the case you personally

ihvestigatéd, correct?

A Yes.

Q Can you name five members of the Vagos from any
chapter in the United States, active members?

.A No.

Q Can you name the treasurer of the Vagos?
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A No.
MR. DOGAN: Court's indulgence, Your Honox.
THE COURT: Yes.

BY MR. DOGAN:

Q Sir, you're aware that Vagos have families, correct?
A Yes.
] And you're aware they have 8:00-to-5:00 jobs, correct?
A Some do, vyes.
QO And you're aware there are even Vagos who are
members -- professional in the community, correct?
A Yes.
] And the Vagos members are ordinary working people,

correct? There are members --
Fiy Yes, there are members who are ordinary working
people. I would say that's fair.
Q And'you're awére there are members whe have never
committed crime, correct?
A I'm sure that's fair.
Q And in order to become a member of the Vagos, you do
not have to commit crimes, correct?
A Wot to my knowledge.
MR. DOGAN: Nothing further.
THE CQURT: Anything further, Mr. Hall?
MR. HALL: Just have a couple of questions, Your

Honor, thanks.

87
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REDIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. HALL:

] _Detective Colbert, I think both defense attorneys
asked questions about members of the Vagos or Hells Angels
having regular daytime jobs or families. Do you remember that
line of questioning?

A Yes.

Q A1l right. Well, that -- does that mean toc you that
they are incapable of committing crimes?

A No, that's not the case.

Q Doesn't have anything to do with committing crimes
whether or not they have a job, right?

| A No.

Q As a detective, there's a lot of people that-have jobs
that still commit crimes such as Murder, assault with a deadly
weapon, battery with a deadly weapon, those type of things?

MR. DOGAN: Objection. Leading.
THE COURT: Sustained;
BY MR. HATIL:

Q Now, with respect to the Hells Angels, do they have
any code of conduct based upon youf training and experience
with respect to protecting_the'club and other club members?

A Yeah.

MR, SCHONFELD: Objecticn. Leading.

THE COURT: Overruled with regard to whether or not
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they have a code of conduct, not what it is. The gquestion was
whether they had one.
MR. HALL: Right.
THE COURT: So I'll overrule the objection as to
leading. It's yes or no.
| THE WITNESS: Yes.
BY MR. HALL:
Q Can you tell me about what that -- based upon your

training and experience, what that code is?

A It's my training and experience and even in the bylaws
as far as the -- you back up your cut. You back up your fellow
members, your —— other people don't respect your —— your club,

YOﬁr gang, you back it up with force, wviclence, whatevef it
takes.
Q And would the Vagos have that same code based upon
your training and experience?
B Based on my training and experience and speaking to
other investigafors, yes.
o3 All right. WNow in this particular case that you
investigéted regarding the homicide and the stabbing of
Mr. Ri.r_Leha:i:t,r did Mr. Pena have any Lrophies in his possession
when he was contacted by police on the day of the homicide?
MR. DOGAN: Objection. Beyond the scope.
MR. SCHONFELD: Join; Vague and ambiguous.

THE COURT: I find it wvague and ambiguous. Sustained.
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BY MR. HALL:

Q All right. You testified earlier that you're familiazr
with the Vagos colors; is that correct?

A Yes.

Q And we talked about -- let's back up a little bit.
We'll get to the trophy that I talked about here in a minuté.
But'what;s the -- why did the Vagos go over to the tattoo shép?

MR. SCHONFELD: Asked and answered.

MR. HALL: No, I don't think it was. He talked about
the birthday party; the fact that there were Vagos and going to
the tattoo shop, but then on cross—examination, it ﬁas —- there
was some dquestions about the Vagos just going over there
haphazazrdly.

THE COURT: I thought on direct the testimony was that
they learned -- theysbelieve that Mr. Pena was alone, éo they
went to confront him.

MR. HALL: That's part of it, but I think there is
additional information that would add a context to that portion
of his testimony.

THE COQURT: The cross—examination didn't go to the
ihtent.of the Vagos. The cross-examination went Lo the fact
that the Vagos went to the Hells Angel at that locaticn, not
what their intent was. There's no cross-examination as to the
intent of the Vagos.

MR. HALL: Well, isn't it a fact they went there to

209
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confront Pena? Doesn't that go to the reason they went over
there? |

THE COURT: That was on your direct.

MR. HALL: Right.

THE COURT: He testified to that in direct. There was
cross—-examination about them going there, but not any
cross-examination of this witness as to his testimony as to why
they went there. That's why the objection was beyond the séope

of cross.
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MR. HALL: Okay.

BY MR, HALL:

0 Well, on direct examination I did ask you about any

hits; is that correct?

A T believe so.

MR. SCHONFELD: Objection. I don't understand that

gquestion. Vague and ambiguous, Your Honor.

THE COURT: I'm sorry what do you mean by hits?

MR. HALL: Let me rephrase. Yeah.

BY MR. HALL:

Q A hit. Well, what does a hit mean to you 1n general

gang terminology?

MR. SCHONFELD: Your Honor, this is beyond the scope.

THE COURT: I don't know if it is. I have to find oﬁt

what a hit is before T find it beyond the scope.

MR. SCHONFELD: Considering that term has not yet been
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raised in this content.

THE COURT: The content of the information may not be
beyond the scope.

THE WITNESS: To me, a hit, as a former gang
investigator, would be, say, "I want this particular subject
dead and I'm going put a hit on him, a contract, a price of
whatever. I want it to be known I want this person dead," and
somebody is going to carry that out.

MR. SCHONFELD: Renew my objection, Your Hohor.

MR. DOGAN: Join.

THE COURT: Sustained.

BY MR. HALL:

Q During the course of your investigation, was it your
belief that the Vagos went over to the tatto§ shop because they
believed that Pena had put out a hit on Vagos?

MR. DOGAN: OCbjection.

MR. SCHONFELD: Your Honor, objection. This is way
beyond the scope.

MR. DOGAN: And we are revisiting what was previously

‘sustained, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Well, except -- yeah, I don't know how
your cross-examination was --

MR. SCHONFELD: It also goes back to the asked and
answered as to why they went there. This witness has said

three times, twice on direct and once on cross.
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THE COURT: Right. I understand that. Sustained.
BY MR. HALL:

Q All right. Well, during the course of your
investigation —— or you testified earlier there was a rivalry
between the two gangs?

| A Yes.
Q  Did the cross—examination change your opinion whether

or not there was a rivalry?

A No.
Q And did part of the investigation in your report
indicate that there was -- that the Vagos believe that Pena put

a hit ocut on the Vagos?
MR, DOGAN: Objection. Leading.
MR. SCHONFELD: Nice try. Objection, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Sustained.

BY MR, HALL:

Q _Now, as part of your duties as a detective, do you
teach members of other police forces that there's rivalry.that
exists between the Hells Angels and Vagos?-

iy In my prior teachings when I was in gangs, yes, that
was one of the topics and one of the subjects. HNot a lot of
our officers have contact with outlaw motorcycle gang meﬁbers
because in Kern County, Bakersfield mostly, unless you had the
ones that maybe lived there, that were passing through town, or

they were having a run or something like that, you didn't see
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them on a real regular basis.. So we would put together
trainings as far as who is battling who and what to look out
for when contacting the members.
Q And was part of what you taught the rivalry that
existed between the Hells Angels and Vagos?
A Yes.
Q And that was based upon a number of violent conflicts
between the.two that you were aware of in your area?
MR. SCHONFEFLD: Objection. Leading.
THE COURT: Sustained.
MR. DOGAN: Join.

BY MR. HALL:

Q. What was the basis of thosé teachings?

A Based on several contacts, some of which were wvioclent
at the bars, the conflict I believe actually in the PoﬁerPoint
I showed photoé of the standoff between the two and how serious
it can get and.potentially dangercus it can get when you have
that many éubjects facing off. That was one cf the topics in
the training, yes.

Q Now, you were asked whether or not you had infiltrated
either the Vagos or the Hells Angels; is that right?

| A Yes.

Q But is it common practiée for ybu to share information

with other law enforcement officers regarding the Hells Angels

and Vagos?
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A Yes, including officers that have infiltrated at least
one.

Q And does part of the information you share establish
that the rivalry exists in other states besides California®?

A Yeah.

MR. DOCGAN: Objection. Leading.

THE COURT: Sustained.

BY MR. HAILL:

.Q What information have you gathered during the course
of your training and experience regarding where this rivalry
has been shown?

MR. DOGAN: .Objection. Beyond the scope.

THE COURT: Overruled. -

THE WITNESS: At the time of our homicide —-- T
apologize. At thé time of our death investigation, there —-—
either before or after, and I don't récall which, there was an
incident in Arizona that I believe has been testified to here
in court regarding a Hells Angel;Vagos shooting, ambush style,
investigation. i don't recall enough to give accurate details
of that, but I have spoken to péople about 1t, read reports,
and things like that. But it's jﬁst been awhile.

Q How many -- you testified.that there were.F— there was
another support group for the Hells Angels at the tattoo shop;
is that cérrect?

A Yes.
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Q And what was the name of that support group?

A They are called the Bakersfield Bastards.
Q Now, at the time of homicide and stabbing of

Mr. Rinehart, wés there only one patch member of the Hells
Angels at the tattoo shop?

A For sure there was one. There was believed to be a
second, and then also at least one hang-arocund.

Q All right.

AI A person who saw the second and a hang—-around later

on, but obviously wasn't there at the time of the death.

o Were- there members of Bastards there?

A Yes.

Q  And how many of fhose people were there?

A I know at least two or three, one of which was a

tattoo artist there. There was at least one other member's
bike that was there. There was also —-- I apologize, there was
another full—patch Hells Angel there from Orange County. When
we got there, there was a full-patch bike. You can tell there
was a full-patch bike becausé it had a death head on the siae'
of the tank registered to Chad Britely who was a registered

Hells Angel along with Mr. Pena, he was also reported to have

been there. We could never track him down and get a statement.
e Did Mr. Pena have a weapon?
A Yes.

Q What did he hawve?
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A He was seen by our deputies responding with a large
Bowie-style knife and a nylon-type sheath. He wés ~~ I'm
sorry. He was initially seen with it. The deputy directed his
attention elsewhere, and he loocked back at Pena and it was
missing or it was gone. But the deputy, and in frustration,
you know, on my end, didn't do.anything about it.

Q So there was some discretion of evidence?

MR. SCHONFELD: Objection, Your Honor .
Mischaracterizes the evidence.

THE CQURT: Sustained.

MR. DOGAN: Argumentative.

THE COURT: It's argumentative how you characterized
the evidence in the guestion.
BY MR. HATLL:

0 Diq that compromise the investigation?.

A Absolutely.

Q The fact that Mr. Pena was seen with a weapon and then
the weapon was gone? |

A Absolqtely.

0 " How would that compromise the investigétion?

A We had our suspect or oui reported suspect according
to other people armed still and with a weapon in his possession
and it was no longer there. The initial deputy that responded
did a horrible job and they didn't follow up and they_ended_up

leaving.
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Q Did you ever —-— I think you testified with respect to
the motorcycle bhelonging to Chad Britely; is that right?

A Yes.

0 And you never had an opportunity to talk to

Mr. Britely?

A No.

Q "Was he there when you responded?

A No.

Q What is Bret Vialaﬁo's current status with the Vagos?

A Last time T talked to him, he szaid he went out on
eifher stress or a medical. He's out.

] Do you know why he's out?

A According to him, he just couldn’'t take any more. His

son got killed. He didn't want to do it anymore.

] 2nd was Delano Mike or Mike Pena, was he arrested on
the day of the homicide -- stabbing?

A No.

Q When Wés he arrested?

iy A warrant was issued later on. 1T don't recall when,

but we ultimately found him a couple of months later I want to
say. |

Q What, if anything, did he have in his possession when
he was arrested? |

B When he was arrested, he had some Hells Angels

paraphernalia, when he was -- he was detained the night of the

13 ‘\L_
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That's what you're going to argue, it's a trophy; but I don't

on scene, there was a good amount of blood there, and Mike Pena

death and then he was arrested later on. He had things in his
possession both times.

Q What did he have in his possession on the date when he
was detained?

A In his pant pocket, he had a green and white -— like a
key chain like you would maké it -- I ecall it like a church
camp-type bracelet, because it was the little beads that
spelled out Vagos in his pocket.

Q Now, would that be consistent with collecting a trophy
éfter a conflict with a rival motorcycle gang?

A | That was all.

| MR. SCHONFELD: Cbjection. Vague and ambiguous.
Beyond the scope.

MR. DOGAN: I join, Your Honor.

THE COURT: I don't know, I think it's argumentative.

see 1t goes to anything they crossed on.
BY MR. HALIL: |

Q Okay. Now, why did the original responding officer,
why did he leave?

A On both sides, Mike Pena and the Vagos that were still

who was armed, and the deputy looked away and all of a sudden
Pena was ne longer in possession of his knife, of his large

knife, and both Sides.were saying that we had a fight, but
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nobody wants anything done, nobbdy is hurt, nobody is anything,
and they left. |

0 Had the victims, that being Mr. Rinehart and Roger
Vialano, been transported from the scene prior to the original
deputy responding?

A Yes, they had been taken away, and we didn't become
aware of their condition ﬁntil'much later after all the parties
involved basically left.

Q So the fact that the investigation was not immediately
investigated, did that compromise your investigation of the
case?

MR. ﬁOGAN: Chbjection. Leading.
THE.COURT: Did you answer that already?
MR. DOGAN: Asked and answered.
THE WITNESS: I don't know. I'm sorry.
THE COURT: I'm going to sustain. Asked and answered.
BY MR. HALL: - |
o Now, would you conside;_Mr. Pena's cuts as evidence of

gang involvement?

A Yes.
Q And what happened to his cuts or his wvest?
A He was on the phone after getting arrested. He called

the later-determined-to-be—-codefendant and --
MR. SCHONFELD: Your Honor, this is beyond the scope.

MR, DOGAN: I would Jjoin, Your Honor.

N33




10
11
1z
13
14
15
.16
17
18
19
20
21

22

23,

24

25

101

THE COURT: I don't know where it's going, so I don't
know if it's beyond fhe scope. So I'll withhold ruling until I
find ocut what happens.

THE WITNESS: I ultimately found the cut at the
hang-around's housé. There was a call made b? Mr. Pena to,
"Get that stuff off.my vest." When I ultimately found the cut,
it had the front flash, the Filthy Few, the 666, the death
heads, and everything had been removed and the only thing left
was the back patch.

MR. SCHONFELD: Renew my objection.

THE COURT: How does this go o cross? Which part of
cross?

MR, HALL: This goes to the part of the cross that

dealt with do the Hells Angels commit any crimes? Do they work

together?
| THE COURT: T think the question --

MRT HATLL: .It's self-defense. .Sharing information.
That type of thing.

THE COURT: Okay. ‘The Shéring information was between
ﬁlubst not between members of the same club, so I'm going to
sustain.the objection. I don't think they crossed or
questioned members of the same club sharing information. It
was one branch of the ciub to another branch of the club that
they were crossing on.

MR. HALL: Your Heonor, I think we did. I'm reviewing
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my notes and I think we did talk about members of the same
organization sharing information regarding pending criminal -
cases, and that was asked on cross-examination according to my
notes. So that's why I was going back into it.

MR. SCHONFELD: I thought the Court ruled already.

THE COURT: I thought what you ﬁere talking about was
someone in the grganization located in Nevada having
information of something that went on in California, or
Califernia in Arizona, and Arizona in California.

But your gquestion is about what went on within a
specific club, this Mr. Pena and his hanger-on, and I didn't
hear any cross—-examination on that. |

MR. HALL: That's what I did on direct. And I'm
looking at my notes on cross, and they were asking,.if you
recall, there were specific guestions by Mr. Schonfeld who

said, "Well, when they are -- when they have a criminal case,-

help each other ocut? There's no law against that, is there?
There's no law" —- |

THE COURT: Did you think he was referring in that
question to members of the same organization --—

MR. HALL; Abso;utely.

THE_CCURT: ~— in the same geographical location --

MR. HALL: Absoclutely. -

THE COURT: =-- and clubhouse?

G =
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MR. HALL; Yes.

THE COURT: That's what you thought?

MR. HALL: Yes.

THE COURT: I took it completely different..

MR. SCHONFELD: No kidding, Your Honor, because you
understood it. The exhibit that they showed was an cbjection
and we objected to it and reserved that objection, that
Mr. Villagrana had information reléted to the Laughlin case.

THE COURT: Right.

MR. SCHONFELD: This ﬁitness testified that the
various Eharters share information. "Have you ever dealt with
Colbert? Do you know anything that could impeach him? - Have
ybu ever dealt Gil-Blanco? What do you have on him?" So you
are correct, Your Honor. My understanding is that the Court
already sustained the objection.

THE COURT: Right. I don't think -- it goes beyond

the scope of cross,

MR. HALL: Okay.
BY MR. HALL:

Q Well, you indicated.that you found reports during the
execution of s&arch wafrants that shouldn't be there; is that
right?

MR. SCHONFELD: Objection to the chafacterization.
MR; HALL: 1I'11 rephrase.
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Q Didn't you indicate you found police reports that —-
that had not been redacted that were in possession of Hells
Angels members that didn't have anything te do with the
investigation contained in the police repérts?

MR. DOGAN: Objection. Leading. Compcund.

MR. SCHONFELD: Join.

THE COURT: I think that's a.predicate question. I'm
going to overrule your cbjection. He's asking him if he
testified to that which I think is a predicate to a subsequent
question.

THE WITNESS: Yeé, I did locate police réports
from -- |

THE COURT: He asked you if you testified to that.

THE WITNESS: Yes. I'm sSOrry.

BY MR. HALL: |

Q And is that part of the basis fer your opinion that
gang members share information?

A Part of it, ves.

Q@ By that, being Hells Anéels gang memberé and Vagos
gang members?

A Part of it, yes.

Q And you testified on direct that there was another
Vagos that was arrested for fighting. Was that during the

fair?

9317
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A No. There was a Hells Angel that was arrested later
on after the standoff.

Q That was the same day?

A Yes.

Q Al11 right. And what was the Hells Angels arrested
for?

MR. SCHONFELD: Your Honor, I'm going to object
because the witness ﬁolunteered that information. I then
clarified the guestion, and there was nothing else delved into.
So it's beyond the scope,

MR. DOGAN: I would join, Your Honor.

THE COURT: TI'11 overrule it. It came out during
Cross. |

You can answer the question.

THE WITNESS: Can I get the queétion? 1 am sorry.

THE COURT: What was the person arrested for?

THE WITNESS: I believe it was simple assault,
resisting or delaying a police officer in the performance of
his dutiesf'and possession of a concealed deadly weapon.

BY MR. HALL:
Q And who was he arrested for -- who did he allegedly
assaultf the Hells Angels?
A I don't recall the actual fight. He tried to rumn.
0 Do you know if it was a ri%al gang member? |

A He was another kiker. It was at the bike rally. I

2 1%
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Q Then you testified Ronald had his ceolors cut off; is
that right?
MR. DOGAN: Objection. Leading.
THE COURT: BSustained.

BY MR. HALL:

Q REemember your testimony about Ronald?
A Yes.
Q And what was Significant about Ronald and his colors

if anything?

y: He was a reported or self-reported full-patch Vago;
He came in bad standing. He was kidnaped, seveial items were
stolen including his cuts, and he was also told to get -~ cover
up his tattoos, the green.

Q Would that be consistent with the customs of the code

‘of customs and conduct which are followed by the Vagos?

A Based on my training and experience, ves.

Q Okay. Now you testified regarding a truce with Bret
Vialano. Bret Vialano is -- Roger Vialano is the wvictim, that

was his dac-i,r Eret Vialano?

A Yes.

Q “So appérently there wés some discussion putting aside
the rivalry between the Hells Angels and the Vagos?

B There was discussion about a —- somewhat of a truce.

‘This was casual conversation between me and another -- he was

18\

106




10

11

12

13

14

15
16
17
19
19
20
21
20
23
24

25

‘how they basically showed up overnight and, you know, what the

coexist.

107
the one when I went ﬁo go make contact with all the bikers, he
was the representative that came out. The red and white
subjects were -- sent somebody out as well and said, "Hey, we
are going to leave." I then had scme casual conversation with
Beth.

Q So you had the casual conversation.

A Yes. It wasn't documented. It was conversation about
plans were, and how the red and white and green were going to
MR. HALL: Thank you. I have no further guestions.
THE COURT: Anything further?

MR. SCHONFELD: Briefly, Your Honor.

RECROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. SCHONFELD:

Q You testified on redirect with Mr. Hall regarding the,
quote, code, end quote. Where is this code?
A - It's menticoned several times in my report. Several of

the Vagos members that we attempted teo talk to would mention
the word éode. |

Q For HelisnAngels, where is the code?

A What T believe they are referring to is in bylaws, how
you don't'cdoperate with law enforcement. You don't --

Q Where is it? Have you given it to the prosecutor?
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A I'm sorry?

Q Have you given it to the prosecutor?

A I have no idea, sir, where it is.

Q So you keep referring to the code as this loose term.

You actually have nothing vyou can give me that would show this
code, do you?

A No, sir. If you get a copy of the bylaws, I'm sure
you can read it.

Q When is the last time you saw bylaws?

A It's been a while.
o] So you don't know what the, quote, code was in

September of 2011, do you?

A No, sir, T don't.

8] Oon the date of the incident in.this case, you don't
know what the, quote, code was, do you?

A I don't remember 1f I have a current set .of bylaws or
not. It kept getting mentioned by several bikers.

Q And you don't know what the rivalry was in September
of 2011 because you had been out of gangs already, right?

A in Septembér of 201lé

Q Yes.

A I still talk to investigators. It's well-known about .
the ongoing écts of violence between other clubs.

Q  Now you testified that YOu spcke to somebody who had

infiltrated a club?

3 3\
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‘motorcycle was out in front of the tattoo shop --

A Yes.
Q Which club did they infiltrate?
A One of which was the ATF agent that did cne of the

ones in Black Rain he had infiltrated.

Q What was his name?
A I believe it's Kozlowski.
Q Kozlowski had infiltrated the Hells Angels and become

a member?
A No. As far as the Hells Angels, I spoke to for quite

a while, Jay Dobbins at a conference.

Q  Jay Dobbins is no longer part of the ATF, is he?
F:y I don't think so. I think he retired.

O He sued the ATF, didn't he?

A - I believe.

THE COURT: I'm sorry, he what?
ME.. SCHONFELD: He sued the ATF.
THE WITNESS: I believe he did, yes.
MR. SCHONFELD:
Q You could not confirm with any independent evidence

that Chad--- I forget the last name. The person whose

A Britely. Britely.
Q You can't confirm he was actually there during the
0ildale incidents in question, correct?

A I don't have anybody that physically puts him there,

1390,
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MR. SCHONFELD: Nothing further.

RECROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. DOGAN:

o

Sir, vyou keep referring to a casual conversation with

a Vagos member. Would that be Vialano?

A
0
A
months.
Q

you?

Yesf

And do you recall when this conversation took place?
It was.before the homicide, maybe a month, maybe two
It was outside of a bar that they were attending.

You can't recall the exact -- the date and time, can

No, sir.

Do you know the name of the bar?

Yes. It's calied the Lone Oniy Lounge.
Do you recdall what time of day it was?

It was nighttime. It was very dark. It was a 9-1-1

call we were dispatched to.

Q

A

Did you speak to him inside the bar?
No.

Did you Speak t£o him outside the bar?.
Yes. |

Waé it a one-on-one conversation?

Yes.

PRUIE
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Q And were there any other members of law enforcement
around you when you spoke to him?

A No. He introducéd me to Knuckles, the chapter
president. He was very polite, very cooperative. We just had
just a casual conﬁeréation.

Q And this casual conversation was regarding the Vagos?

A T brought it up knowing not to ask about club
business. I brought it up, the fact, how are they going to get
along with the red and white because of the fair incident and
alsc the iﬁcident that occurred that evening, and it seemé'to
be a pattern, and is everything going to be cool.

And he had mentioned that the two clubs had Sat down
together and talked about it -~ a truce, and hoﬁ they were
going to be able to get along and coexist. He thgn discussed
how they were just guyé that wanted to ride together and, you
know, belong to something, something to that effect.

Q But before you spoke to Mr. Vialano, you were there in
regard to a fight; ié that right?

A It ﬁas a potential fight and there was a peace

disturbénce. I don't think anybody ever fought.

0 Was it a fight between two motorcycle clubs?
A Yes.
. Q S0 you were there conducting an inwvestigation of a

fight which almost took place?

A I was conductiﬁg_an investigatioﬁ about a peace
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disturbance between twp motorcycle clubs, yes.

0 And in furtherance of that investigation, vou spoke to
Mr. Vialano, correct?

A Yes.

Q You keep referring to a code regarding the Vagos. Do

you have a written code on your person right now?

A  No, sir.

O Have you ever read the, qﬁote, code before?

A Mo, sir. It keeps.getting menticned by Vagos members.
Q What Vagos members have mentioned.the code?

A It would have been Earl Rinehart. I believe it's

documented in the reports he actually saye the word "code."
The other neme.witnees, and I apologize I'm having trouble
right now remembering his name. Frank Shepard. I believe
Roger Vialano also mentioned it scmetime in the investigation
as well, all of which are no longer Vagos members.

Q So Mr. Rinehart, Shepard, and Vialanoc, they are no
ionger members of the Vagos, correct?

A Yes.

Q. And they are in bed gtanding with the Vagos, right?

A I den't know if they are in bad standing. I think
Rinehart left. What he told me was due to his age and him ;—
he.just got stabbed. Shepard had medical issues. And I think

' —

Vialano said the same thing, something to the effect of a

medical or something. I don't recall.

PSS
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Q But this code is not written bylaws; is that right?
A I have no idea.

0 Okay. Is that because you have not read bylaws?

A I haven't read any in a long time.

Q And you've never seen the code referenced tec in the

minutes, correct?

A No. I can't even recall 1f I've ever seen any Vagos
minutes, honestly.

Q Qkay. So during vour testimony, you referred to an

Arizona incident, would you be spéaking of the Yavapai

incident?
A I believe so0.
Q - And you learned this outside the courtroom, correct?
A No. I learned this after the incident. It was during

my investigation. They were similar incidences.

Q Sir, if you recall your redirect, you stated that the
Yavapie incident was testified to in this case; was that
accurate?

A T believe that's what the Arizona -- Les —— I.think
it's Les is his name, I've spoken td him'over the phone. T
would.assume that's what he is here to testify for, but I
didn't talk to him about it.

Q So you're familiar -- you just said that you spoke to
him over the phone; is'thét right?

A I spoke to him in the past during my investigaticn
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regarding vVagos and things like that. It was with Jorge

present as well.

0 2nd when you say "Les," vou're referring to Les
Skelton?

A I believe that's his last name, yes.

Q 2nd you saw Mr. Skelton in the court area previously;

is that right?

A Yes.

Q "~ And Mr. Skelton advised you during court what he was
testifying to?

.\ No. We —- he and I talked for the entire time we were
hare laét week, I think it was last week, right? But it was
all casual conversation like what we were going to do that

night. I believe we talked about seeing a basketball game,

Just things like that. I mean, nothing about our cases.

Q So 1t's your testimony now that yvou spoke to
Mr. Skelton previously on one occasion regarding the Yavapie
incident?

A T believe T spoke to him, I apologize. I'm going
strictly from memory from over two years ago. I believe it was
elither him or Eric Bennett, but I believe it was him over the
incident in Arizona Qhere the two clubs shot it.out, and Jorge
Gil-Blanco and I -- Jorge knew much more about it. He
basically was giving me the summary of it.

Q 8o your testimony in this courtroom during redirect is
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incorrect, that you did not speak about Yawvaple, Arizona?

A I've spoken about it in the past. We spoke about it
during my investigation in 2010, and since then, but not here
in court, not in the hallway. I haven't spoken to Les about
his Ease that I can remember. I don't even honestly recall if
it was actually him I spoke to or if it was Jorge giving me all
the infermation or Eric Bennett. It's been a while, I
apologize.

Q You spoke to one individual who infiltrated the club.

That would be the ATF agent, right?

A Yes.
Q And that was the Hells Angels, correct?
A I spoke to ATF Agent.Débbins or former ATF-Agent
~Dobbins about fhe Hells Angels. Agent -— again I butcher his
name .
0 - Kozlowski?
A Yeah, one of the guys from Black Réin, in the past

infiltrated the Vagos. That was one of the trainings I went

to.
0 Who was the cone that infiltrated the Vagos?
A it ﬁas Kozlowski.
Q Okay. And what member of -- what law enforcement

agency does he belong to?
i T don't recall. I think it's ATF.

o) And is this the individual who sued the ATE?

T20%
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A No.

0 That would be Dobbins who sued the ATE?

A Yes.

Q. When you attended this conference with Kozlowski, do

you recall what the date was?

A No. It was a one-day speéific topic on
outlaw-motorcycle-type training, and it was basically a
debriefing mostly of Black Rain.

MR. DOGAN: Your Honor, may I have your indulgence?

‘THE COURT: Yes.

MR. DOGAN: Your Honor, I would pass the witness.

THE COURT: Okay. Thank you.

Anything further?

May the witness step down?

MR. HALL: I was going to ask him about the codes
since they brought up the code.

THE COURT: OQkay.

FURTHER REDIRECT EXAMINATTION
BY MR. HALL:
0] So what ——-you ;emember the guestions regarding the
code of conduct?

A Yea.

Q Or the code?
A Yes.
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Q What does the code entail, based upon your training
and experience?

A It's based on my readings, my training, and experience
after talking to outlaw motorcycle gang members themselves.
They don't cooperate with iaw enforcement. They don't call the
cops. They take care of things on their own. They take care
of their own street. They take care Of their own area, their
own clubhouse, their own business. They don't cocperate in any
way, shape, or form with law enforcement and doing such would
résult in punishment, or fine, or whatever.

0 Is there anything in the code that speaks to defending
fellow gang members and/or backing them up in a fight or
confrontation?

MR. DOGAN: Objection. Leading, and it's beyond the
scope, Your Honor.

THE COURT: T think that the source of the code is
what the cross-~examination was about, not the content of fhe
code. I'll let you go a little bit, then I'm going to sustéin.
BY Mﬁ. HALL: |

Q Se what's the source of the code? I mean, is the
code, a sense,-universal in the things that you just mentioned
here, universal between the Hells Angels or Vagoé?

A ‘What I believe when they say code, it's not dnly the
written rules, but the unwritten rules, the what -- how you

rate within this particular organization. There is both

520
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written rules, both unwritten rules, and to be followed by
members, associates, or else, honestly.
Q There was an another indiwvidual that gave you some

information regarding a truce; is that correct?

A I spoke to Bret Vialano outside of the bar I mentioned
previously.
Q How about an individual by the name of Van Curren? Do

you remember his name being mentioned before?
A Yes, he -- I believe I never aspoke —- his name is
Jimmy Van Curren.

MR. DOGAN: Your Honor, this is beyond the scope.

Objection.
| THE COURT: What does it go to in the recross?

MR. HALL: This goes to the information regarding the
truce because they asked about Bret Vialano, and there was
other information he had regarding the truce and communication
regarding the Vagos and Hells Angels. You know, it goes to the
rivalry.

MR. DOGAN: This is cumulative and there waé no
mention of this individual's name. |

THE COURT: Okay. I'm going to sustain the objection.

MR. HALL: &A1l right. I have no fufther questions.

THE COURT: May this wiﬁness be excused?

MR. DOGAN: Yes, Your Honor.

MR. SCHONFELD: Yes, Your Honor.
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THE COURT: Anvbody have a problem with him being
excused?

Okay. You may step down. You're excused.

THE WITNE3S: Thank you, Judge.

THE COURT: Thank vou.

THE WITHEZS: You stay warm.

THE COURT: We'll try. It’'s pretty_cold.down in
Bakersfield, too, isn't it?

THE WITNESS: Not like this, This is crazy.

THE COURT: Please step forward, face the Court clerk.

DON FIESELMAN,
having been first duly sworn, was examined

and testified as follows:

DIRECT BEXAMINATION

BY MR. HALL:

Q = Sir, would you state your name and spell your last
name?

A Don Fieselman. Tast name is F—I—E—S—E—L—M—A—N.

.Q And where are vyou currently employed?

A With the Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department.
Q How long have you been employed at the Las Vegas
police department?

A A little over 16 years.
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0 All right. And can you tell us a little bit about
your employment there, what you've done over the last 16 years?
A I was hired in August of 18%6. I went through the
police academy when I was assigned after that fo the northwest

area command in patrol.

In 1999, T became a field training officer.

In 2001, I went to a problem.solviﬁg unit which was a
piain—clothes kind of patrol squad that did medium length
investigations.

In 2002, I was transferred to the vice section.

And in 2008, I was transferred to the organized crime
section criminal intelligehce, where I worked outlaw motorcycle
gangs.

Q Can ?ou tell us about your experience with outlaw
motorcycle gangs?

A My eﬁperience with outlaw motorcycle gangs actually
began in 1994 when I was a police officer in Idaho. I had
several contacts with outlaw motorcycle gangs as a peolice
officer in Idaho.

When I came to Las Vegas in the.problem golving unit
in fhe northwest area command,.I had frequent contacts with
cutlaw motorcycle gang members. I regularly attended a
multi-state investigators meeting once a month. I -- where we
would get together. It was an outlaw motorcycle gang

investigators meeting. We would get together and share
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intelligence, talk about investigations, identify suspects,
that kind of thing.

In 2002, I attended the Scuthern California Outlaw
Motorcycle Gang Investigators Seminar in'Palm\Springs. Alsc in
2002 while I was still assigned to PSU, I vclunteered for a
Stoien motorcycle task force in Laughlin, Nevada, during the
Laughlin River Run which is a bike rally down there. The --
that was the year that the Hells Angels and Mongols had a melee
inside the Harrah's and there were three murders.

As part of that, I was asked to -- well, I had
actually been surveilling people that day. The next day after
the incident occufred, I was asked to assist with search
warrants for the Hells Angels motorcycles and later for the --
one of the Mongols or Mongols moto;cycle club member's cars
that was parked nearby. So I assisted with that investigatioﬁ
to that extent.

In, let‘é see —- I.continued to -- to meet with those
investigators from different states, even after I was
transferred to th§ vice section in 2002. I would go to regqular
meetings locally talking about outlaw motorcycle gang:
investigations and intelligence and things like that.

And then in 2010 -- sorry, 2008, when T was
transferred to the outlaw motorcycle gang investigafor_squad, I
attended the International Qutlaw Motorcycle Gang Investigators

Assoclation training-in Iowa. I took -- or I received a lot of
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outlaw motorcycle gang training in my department locally, and T
later was an instructor in basic outlaw motorcycle gang
investigation classes that I gave to gang resource officers and

members of the Las Vegas police department.

Q Have you interviewed any outlaw motorcycle gang
members?

A Yes.

0 All right. Who have you interviewed?

A I have interviewed Charles Goldsmith from the Hells

Angels. He was the president of the Sin City charter in Las
Vegas. His son, Brad Goldsmith, who was a full—patch member of
the Hells Angels Sin City charter. I interﬁiewed Ramone
Rodriguez who went by the nickname Firecracker. He was a
Vagos. I have interviewed Eddy Williams from the Vagos. I've
spoken at length to Rcbert Cane from the Vagos, and had short
conversations with- Thomas Macnamera. I've had short
Conversation with Keith Hare from the Sin City chartef of the
Hells Angels, and I've had police contacts with short
interviews with Eric Klauss from the Las Vegas chapter of the
Hells Angels and Brandon Young from the Sin City charter of the

Hells Angels as well.

Q Haﬁe you ever infiltrated any outlaw motorcycle gangs
yourself?

A Not myself, no.

Q Now, during the course of your.career, have you shared

1335




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

123

information from other police officers and perhaps confidential
sources or confidential informants regarding the Hells Angels
and/or Vagos?

A Yes.

0 And do you also share information with respect to the
Mongols outlaw motorcycle gang?

A Yes,

o] Are you familiar with any rivalry —-- let me back up a
litfle bit. Have you read any kooks or other documentaries?

A I've read several books regarding Hells Angels and
Mongols and Banditos motorcycle clubs, yes.

-0 And have you taught classes?

A .I've taught claéses in the basic outlaw motorcycle

gang investigations, yes.

Q Are you familiar with the colors that the Hells Angels
use —-—

A Yes.

Q -- to identify themselves?

S Red and white, vyes.

Q All right. And do they have -- and they go by the
Hells Angels; is that'right?

A Yes.

_Q And they have certain patches that identify fhem as
Hells Angels members?

A Yes.
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certain color or do you know?

A Yes, they have -- they -- their color is green,
Q And they have a_coﬁsistent logo?

A Yes.

Q Or a logc that they use consistently to idéntify

themselves with the Vagos motorcyele gang?
Are you familiar with the characteristics of the Hells

Angels with respect teo their codes of conduct?

A Yes,
Q And what codes of conduct do the Hells Angels tend to
follow?

MR. SCHONFELD: Objection. Foundation.
THE COURT: I guess it would be -- I think he's given

enough foundation. I'm going to overrule. Between books and

personal interviews, I think that's overruled.

You may answer the quesfion.
THE WITNESS: I'm sorry. éould you repeat 1t? The
codes'of conduct for the Hells Angels? |
BY MR..HALL:I
Q Yés.
A The Hells Anéels, their code of condﬁct is basically
that they demand respect. They -- they are often seen tﬁying
to control areas within biker events regarding bike runs. If.

they set up support booths and things like that, they'll post

RS
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guards. They screen heavily for -- they screen their
prospective members for police officers. They have several
things in place to avoid allowing membership to a peolice
officer or even a confidential informant. They're -- they --
in all of my contact with.them, they've carried weapons,
usually ﬁaﬁy times out in the open, sometimes concealed weapons
as well: Fixed-blade knives, firearms, sometimes folding

knives, or spring-blade knives. But they generally have

weapens O access to wWeaDOoIls .

There's a code of conduct, tg get more concise, I've
watched people from the very start of their career as a Hells
Angel when they are just a hang—arocund, as they move through
the process, they start out as a hang-around, they are given a
little license plate we call it, which is a square patch.
Usually that goes on the back oflthe jacket that indicates what
charter they are hanging around. That gives the club time to
get to know them and it gives them time to get to-know the
different club members.

From there, if they are voted in, they are given a
prospect patch it's called which is the bottom rocker. For the
Hellé Angels, their prospect —~ excuse me, their prospect
period is a minimum of éne yvear. And dufing.that time, they
are required tp.aﬁtend the USA run and other runs to meet club
members from across the country. They -- they will méet all of

those club members, and then if it is decided by the charter
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that they are prospecting for, they come up with a vote, a
unanimous vote_will get them a full-patch into that —- into
that charter.

Q | Is there any code of conduct -- well, let me ask you
about the Vagos. With respect to the code of conduct that you
just talked about regarding respect, territory, screening
for -- screening members to determine whether or not they are a
value to the club or a threat to the club, would that be the

same informaticon for the Vagos based upon your training and

experience?
A Basically, yes.
Q Is there any code of conduct with regard to backing a

fellow member up in a violent confrontation or coﬁfrontation
period?

MR. FREY: Interpcse an objection. Mr. Fieselman is
my witness, so yoﬁ're hearing from me for the first time.

So Y object on the ground that it's leading.

THE COURT: Sustained.
BY MR. HALL:

0 Are there other aspects of the code of conduct that

-you're familiar with except -- I mean, in addition to respect,

territory, guards, carrying weapons, and the initiation process
and becoming a member?
A buring an investigation I conducted, I located a set

of handwritten rules from a member's house that were specific
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to -- to the Hells Angels, and it indicated guidelines and
rules for member.and prospect behavior, how they were to treat
each other, when they could fight each other, and when they
were expected to defénd the c¢lub, when they were expected to
attend meetings, and how often they were - how often they were
required to attend runs and their -- their responsibilities for
protecting the club and for protecting their colors.

Q And can you tell me what those rules provided?

A The rules in a basic sense was that you can't —--
you're not to fight another member without it being sancticned.
There shouldn't be any fistfights. That -- not just-those
handwritten rules, but als@ the interviews and other things
I've done, I know they_say that when one -- when one member is
fighting somebeody outside of the ciub, every menmber should ke
fighting that person outside the club.

MR. SCHONFELD: I would like clarification. He was
talking about written rules and now he's combined those written
rules with some unknown source. I think for purposes of the
record, we should probably be a little more clear.

THE COURT: TIT'1l1 let.you ge into that on
cross—examination.

You may continue.

THE WITNESS: The -- I've lost my train of thought. I
apologize. But basically, they talk about --

/7
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BY MR. HALL:
Q Let me refresh your recollection as to where you were.

According to my notes, you were indicating that the rules that

you are familiar with based upon your training and experience

and things that you've reviewed, that a member can't fight
another member, and one member or all members are required to
back up a member if they are involved in a confrontation or a
fight..

2 Correct. They -- that's -- and to speak to that,
that's in several of_thé books I've read and in socurce
inferviews that I've done and the written rules that the club
and the members of that club come first before any other thing,
even family oftentimes.

Q Are you familiar with any rivalries that exist between
the Vagos, Hells Angels, Mongols?

A Yes. There are several;

0 All right. BAnd can you tell us a little bit about

your knowledge with respect to rivalries?

A The -- as I said, I was in Laughlin in 2002 when the
Hells Angels and the Mongols were involved in the murder -- the
murders down there. Just prior te that, we were actually -~ we

received information and watched a meeting between the Hells
Angels and the Banditos who were in a dispute about whether or
not the Banditos could attend that biker run. It was a verbal

confrontation.

Pl




10

11

12

13

14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

129+

I have been present at the Las Vegas bike festival in
October when Hells Angels and Vagos —- actually, the Hells
Angels walked out of their support booth and confrented a group
of Vagos. There . was a large verbal confrontation.

MR. SCHONFELD: Yolur Honor, I'm going to object. None
of these instances of allegéd conduct have been disclosed
either in pleadings by the State or in the exhibits attached to
those pleadings. The only instances that were noticed for
purposé of these proceedings and in order to comply with this
honorable Coﬁrt's order are the wedding chapel incidents.

MR. FREY: We join in that. And I don't want to pile
on objections, but I want the record clear --

THE COURT: The October fight in Las Vegas. Cctober
of what yeatr? |

THE WITNESS: The confrontation I waé referring to was
in October of 2010, T helieve.

| THE COURT: And where -- was there a location in Las
Vegas?

THE WITNESS: Tt was a Cashman Center at the bike
festival which would have been off Washington and Las Vegas
Boulevard.

THE COURT:; And it was at what kind of.é fest?

THE WITNESS: 1It's called Bike Fest. Tt's a
motorcyclelrally every year in Las Vegas in October.

THE COURT:  Ckay. &and that's information that: you
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learned that on that coccasion forms the base of your opinion or
at least in part?

THE WITNESS5: Yes. Yeah, I was there for that.

THE COURT: And the discovery on that, Mr. Hall?
BYIMR. HALL:

0 Is that contained -- any of that information contained
in either your CV or your report regarding your iﬁvestigation
into a special wedding chapel case?

A “ Not the that particular incident, no. Some of the
members from the Hells Angels that are in my case were at that
Bike Fest, but not that particular incident.

Q Okay. But you're familiar, just qenerally.speaking,

with rivalries that exist between the Hells Angels and the

Vagos?
A Yes.
0 All right. And was part of the information that you

had was that an incident that cccurred in Las Vegas?

A Yes.

Q And during the course of your ﬁraining and experience
and the various seminars that you attended, did you learn that
there had been other incidents of violence between the Hells

Angels and Vagos?

A Yes. We actually had -- excuse me, some of cur local
Vagos who were involved in the -- who were shot at in southern
‘Arizona.
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MR. SCHONFELD: Your Hénor, I'm going to object again.
Your Honor, the Court corder was very clear, if a witness is
going to take the sfand and testify about particular instances
of alleged misconduct or alleged gang activity, it had to be
plead with specificity and we are entitled to the reports.

This witness 1s noticed as a witness who would testify
to opinion regarding rivalry which we still havén't heard and
specifically regarding the wedding-chapel incident, we haven't
heard either yet.

THE COURT: I think you did hear his opinion with
regard to rivalry.

MR. SCHONFELD: Then let's move on. We don't need to
hear of specific instances of alleged misconduct because they
weren't pled and we don't have to enforce it.

MR. FREY: I need to join the objection for purpoées
of preserving the record.

THE CCURT: " The point of knowing the alleged instances
that the witness bases their opinion on is because the witness
can give his opinion and the.reasons for that opinion, and we
can hear hearsay as an expert. But we do need to give notice
of that which is why I entered the order and the order was to
try to délay.—— to resolve issues of delay that we had in
October when we tried to get through this initially. So we
seem to be still having those issues of delay with regard to

the discovery.
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So is this -- has this been disclosed? They say it
hasn't been disclosed in your pleadings, but has it even been
disclosed anywhere so that they can traverse this witness on
this matter?

MR. HALL: Yes, Your Honor. What he was talking
about, what Detective Fieselman was referring to was the
shootout in Arizona. We had Les Skelton testify about it. We
provided them with the police reports regarding the shootout in
southern Arizona. And that's part of the information he had
regarding the -- regarding Hells_Angels. So we disclosed.

THE COURT: The Oildale?

MR, HALL: No. We'll get to Oildale because he
probably knows about that one. This is exhibit -- as a matter
of fact, this was disclosed in the .-~ this incident was
disclosed in the PowerPoint that was originally presented
before the grand jury by Jorge Gil-Blanco. And if you recall,
Les Skelton testif;ed about -- yes, and it's Exhibit Number 11
attached to our motion. So the police reports on that issue
have been disclosed to defense counsel. We had a witness
testify about if. Jorge Gil-Blanco testified about it. Ahd as
a broad-brush stroke, Your Honof, we listed in our motion, I
think approximately 11 different incidences of violence between
the Hells Angels and Vagos that we wanted to discuss., If you

recall, we started off with the brawl between the Hells Angels

and the Vagos at the Costa Mesa swap meet —-
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THE COURT: The point, though, is which witness is
going to talk about which instances. 2And so --

MR. HALL: -- that we wanted to bring in the witness
who had a hands-on knowledge of those instances. So that's
what we are doing now is bringing in the witness that knows
about the wedding chapel in this particular case.

So sach witness was an investigator in those
particular incidente of violence between the Hells Angels and
the Vagos, so they have specialized knowledge regarding that
investigation because they were there, they interviewed people,
and they can provide --

THE COURT: That's not admissible.

MR. SCHONFELD: And, Your Honor --—

THE COURT: Just because you know specialized
knowledge of a fight between Hells Angels and somebody doesn't
make it.admissible as proof of gang activity, of gang -
enhancement, nor does it make it admissible necessarily in.this
case.

MR. SCHONFELD: And, Your Honor --

THE COURT: This'case, specific instances of bad act
of either of the defendants come in, and those witnesses can
testify, and then I have to make a ruling it's been shown by
clear and convincing evidence and if it fits the parameters of
NRS 48. And if not, it won't come in.

With regard to gang enhancement evidence, the statute
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is wvery clear the expert can testify as to rivalries, et
cetera, and tThe defense is entitled to cross—examine as to_the
basis of their opinion.

And if the basis of their opinion are particular
instances that they have knowledge of, that they have looked
up, read, reviewed, then that information becomes relevant to
the exﬁert's opinion. An expert's opinions must be given and
the basis for that opinion must be provided to the defense.

Now, I know we entered an order. I entered an order
requiring you to do that sooner than the statute requires you
to do it because we have these issues with regard to what would
be admissible or not. But you still have to do it.

And the question here is you've said Exhibit 11, vou
do have an addendum, and there's three parts to Exhibit 11. Is
that the exhibit you're talking about?

 MR. HALL: That's the exhibit I'm talking about with
respect to the shootout in Arizona.

THE COURT: Okay. That's the Yavapie County.

MR. HALL: Right;

THE COURT: And then the issue -- I think their
arguments were going back to the issue at the Cashman Ceﬁter;
is that correct?

MR. SCHONFELD: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: So let's retro back to Cashman Center.

Has that. information been disclosed?
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MR. HALL: UNo.

THE COURT: Okay. 8Sc that's brand-new. 3o you're
moving on. You're not golng to rely on that.

MR. HALL: Right.

MR. SCHONFELD: So that testimony will be excluded or
stricken? |

THE COURT: Well, T haven't made any ruling about
admissibility of testimony, but Mr. Hall is voluntarily
abandoning that area at this point.

MR. SCHONFELD: 1I'll note for the record the statement
Mr. Hall made ié very indicative what the State is attempting
to do here which is bring in people that really aren't experts
to get them somehow admitted as experts, and I think we've done
a good job Of.discrediting the expertise. 8o they can testify
about specific instances they investigatéd because this Court
knows the Court won't allow it in because it's not other acts
of defendant.

S0 the State admitted they called the cfficer from
Oildale to testify about 0ildale, and they w&nt this witness td
testify about the wedding chapel, and.the fact that the last
witness testified that Mr. Gil-Blanco was aﬁ expert in the case
fhat he investigated because he was more of an expert is
further evidence of what is going on here. I know the Court
will later hear argqment on that, but T wanted to preserve it

for the record.
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THE CQOURT: I thought I heard argument just now.

MR. SCHONFELD: There will be a lot more.

MR. FREY: With the exception we heard argument, I
join in the argument. I would like to remind the Court at this
juncture for my own level of comfort, I know if you're not
comfortable with doing it, you're not going to do it —-

TﬁE COURT: You mean about a disability?

MR. FREY: Correct. I believe the bike center
incident shouldn't be presented to Your Honor as a basis upon
which he forms the opinion.

THE COﬁRT: Are you talking the Bike Fest?

MR. FREY: Bike Fest, correct.

THE CCOURT: Mr. Hall has abandoned that, so I don'f
have to méke a ;uling on it.

Based on the fact it wasn't disclosed and just came
out today, sé he's going to abandon that.

With regard té the Yavapie, the information he may
know, I'l1l let him go on. I think you have a lot of
infermation on that. Whether or not you knew this witness was
golng to give an ezpert opinion on it, I don't know because you
have plenty of time to review the recoids and his report. I'm
going to let him testify to it. We've got a lot on the Yavapie
County. |

MR. SCHONFELD: That will be another issue we'll have

| to address and argue because the case law is clear that you
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can't keep building on testimony.

THE - COURT: Absclutely. We are just hearing the
evidence today. As T =zaid earlier, I'm not sayving what is
admissible or not, but I am allowing the testimony for today.

Okay, Mr. Hall, you may proceed.

MR. HALL: Thank you, Your Honor.

BY MR. HALL:

Q You were saying yvou were familiar or you had
information regarding a rivalry between the Vagos and the Hells
Angels and part of that information was the shootout in Yavapie
County;.is that cecrrect?

A Yes.

Q 211 right. And so is that part of the basis of your

opinion that a rivalry exists between the Hells Angels and the

Vagos?
A Yes.
0 And ancther part of your information about codes of

conduct, and I believe we got kind of sidetracked here, we were
talking about Hells-Angels gang members and Vagos gang members
having to back up fellow gang members in fights, violent
altercations?

A Yes.

Q All right. So based upon your training and
experience, gang members are re@uired to do that?

A Yes, they are.

250




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

138

Q And when T say "that” --

A They are required to assist their -- assist other
members 1f there is a fightl

Q . All right. BAnd of course, the Hells Angels have a
common symbol and name; is that correct?

A That's correct.

0 All right. And what would that be?

2 It's the name Hells Angels and the death head.

Q And how about the Vagos?
a\ The Vagos have the name Vagos and Loki, their symbol.
Q 211 right. And are there patches, tattcos, rockers,

and colors that are of significance?

A~ Yes. For the Hells Angels, their colors are red and
white, they hold sacred. They élso commonly use the number 81
referring to H, which is the Bth letter of the alphabet, énd A,
which is the first letter of the alphabet, to idehtify or call
themselves the 81. It appears on jewelry, artwork, things like
that. They.will call themselves the red and white. They put
thét on Supporf gear and other designs and things of that
nature. And then a lot of their businesses that I've seen thaf
are Hells Angels controlled are painted red and white, the
buildings are painted red and white.

For the Vages, their color is the green. They use the
number 22 for V which is tﬁe 22nd letter of the alphabet. They

will occasionally refer to themselves and the support clubs as
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the Green Nation. So those are their common symbols.

0 A1l right. HNow do you know whether or not there's a
hierarchy that the Vagos and the Hells Angels have within their
respective gangs?

A Yez. It's slightly different for both clubs. But the

-Hells Angels have -- in each chapter, they have a set of

officers. There's a secretary-treasurer, or th?y/ﬁay divide
that up to a secretary.and a treasurer. There'fifbe a
Sergeant—at—arﬁs, a vice president, and a president.. There's a
road captain that —-- he's -- he's -- he's fesponsible for the
runs and thé vehicle maintenance, making sure that everybody's
bike runs and things like that. He has a lot of
responsibilities on the runs.

The Hells Angels go, depending on where theif charter
is physically located, they.go to.East Coast or West Coast
officers meetings. For the Hells Angels in Las Vegas, they go
to the West Coast officers meetings. They attend.—— excuse me,
they are required to attend those, and then they are also
required to send reﬁresentatives te the USA run and the world
run, different_—— whére they have officer meetings at those --
at those venues. |

| For the Vagos, they have officers within their
charters or their chapters as weli, but they have an actual
national president that they answer to, and they havé -- 50

they'have regional cfficers and national president.
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Q Now, do the Hells Angels have —— one of their common
activities ¢f engaging in fights with deadly weapons, assault
with deadly weapons, and acts of violencé?

B Yes.

MR. SCHONFELD: Objection. Leading.
THE COURT: Sustained.

BY MR. HALL:

Q Can you expand on that a little bit?

MR. SCHONFELD: Move to strike.
MR. HALL: 1I'll stop and back ué.
.THE COURT: Go ahead.

BY MR. HALL;

Q Are you familiar with the types of crimes that the
Hells Angels are known to engage in? |

A Yes.

Q And what would that.be?

A Murder, attempted murder, battery with a deadly
weapon, drug trafficking, prostitution. They are very

diversified in that. Weapons trafficking, things of that

nature.

Q Okay. Now, you were involved in the Laughlin
shootout?

A Yes.

0 All right. Can you tell us what happened in that

particular case?
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A In that case, the Hells Angels and the Mohgols
metorcycle club were both in -- were both attending Laughlin
River Run in 2002. By and large, the Mongels are staying at
Harrah's and the Hells BAngels were staying at The Golden
Nugget. They were —— the Hells Angels, there were some
confrontationsg prior.

"MR. SCHONFELD: Your Honor, I'm just going to object.
This witness wasn't noticed as a witness who would be
testifying regarding the Laughlin incidences. Laughlin was
produced in discovery; however, a different witness was noticed
for these purposes.

THE COURT: Do you intend to call another witness,
also?

MR. HALL: Your Honor, I was trying --

THE COURT: Or is this the witness?

MR. HALL: I was going try to streamline é little bit,
and since she mentioned the Laughlin River Run case and the
fact that he was assisting in that investigafion, I was going
to use him with respect to Fhe Laughlin case.

THE COQURT: Okay; Well, proceed then. You have to
establish whether in the testimony today whether c¢r not he will
be allowed to have that, but I will let him go into it, |
especially in light of the fact he may not be calling another
witness. Instead —-- you're going to uée this one instead; is

that your plan?
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MR. SCHONFELD: The reason he can't call the other
witness is.the other witness is absolutely a fact witness.
They recognize that deficiency in their notice. They noticed
Detective Long about the witness who would testify about
Laughlin. He sat here two déys last week. He wasn't called as
a witness. When we had the conference call Friday, they didn't
mention his name.. I surmise the reason for that is because
they couldn't gualify him as an expert, not that they qualified
the other witnesses, but I believe they even acknowledged that.

they wouldn't be able to qualify him as an expert, therefore

.they decided not call him. And all of a sudden, the exhibits

related to Detective Long are going to be presented through
this witness, and we didn't have notice that that would be the
State's intent.

THE COURT: But you did have notice they intended to
bring a witness to testify about it and you'did have the
information, so I'm going to allow him to go into it.

jou may proceed.

MR. HALL: Thank you.

BY MR. HALL:

0 So we are talking about your involvement in the
Laughlin River Run éase, and you were telling us about that
case.

F:y Right. The night that it happened which I believe it

was April 27th, 2002, the Hells Angels, a large —— a large
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number of Hells Angels rode from The Golden Nugget up to
Harrah's past a marked patrol unit that had its overhead lights
on. .They parked their bikes and in the parking lot of Hérrah's
where the Mongols were known to stay, and many of them left the
keys in the motorcycles, They walked in a line formation.
From different entrances and inside, they confronted the
Mongols, and a melee broke out resulting in the murder of three
people: two Hells Angels and a Mongol.

I had been earlier that night, prior to that incident,
I had been out taking pictures of gang members. And, in fact,
one of the victims, Jeremy Bell, was doing burnouts on his
motorcycle at The Golden Nugget, and I was taking pictures of
him. At the time, I didn't know who he was. I didn't identify
him untillafter the évent, But that night, after the -- after
the murders took place, my -- one of the people I was down
there with was the video producer for our department, he went

to the scene, I went to the substation and worked the scene the

| next day just in a covert capacity, interacting with different

people.

And that night I was asked by the homicide sergeant if
T would assist the district attorney's office with séarph
warrants for thosé 30 motorcycles that the Hells Angels rode tb
Harrah'é. We completed a search warrant for those 30
motorcycles, and I served that and impounded weapons and

knives, handguns, different items like that from the
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motorcycles as well as the keys, and toock pictures of the
motorcycles. Later, when I dropped that evidence off at
homicide, they asked me to do a search warrant on a car linked
to a Mongols mémber that had been parked at one of the parking
garages. BSo I wrote up a search warrant for that, served a
warrant on that vehicle and got gang indicia, similar to what I
got on the Hells Angels bikes, methambhetamine, cash, weapons,
some communication equipment, blunt tocls like hammers and
bats, things of that nature.

Q Now, the search warrant you served on the Hells Angels
motorceycles revealed that —-- a number of weépons; is that
correét?

A That's Corfect.

QO So we talked about the code of conduct and some of the
crimes that the Hells Angels typically commit?

A ‘Yes.

0 I think yvou were beginning to testify about that and
there was an obijection.

So based upon your training and experiénce, what
crimes, if any, were the Hells Angels typically committing?
MR. SCHONFELD;\ Asked and answered.

THE COURT: Sustained.

'BY MR. HALL:

Q Okay. HNow during the course of the execution of the

search warrant of the Hells Angels bikes, did you find any
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evidence in those motorcycles that was consistent with your
opinion of what crimes the Hells Angels typically commit?

A Yes. The weapons, many of them there were several
kniveg strapped to the actual frame of the motorcycle that
would not bhe necessarily —-- they are hard to see unless you
really knew what you were looking at. They hid them behind the
bars, but they were easily accessible to the rider. The
firearms were obviously accessible to the riders of the bikes,
and there were also —— I remember seeing decals, Dné of the
first times I had seen it, the decals on the motorcycles that

said -- that basically threatened anybedy who touched the

-motorcycle. It said -- it would say words similar to, "This

bike belongs to a Hells Angel," the F word,lthey would say mess
with it and find out, basically.

') So was there a rivalry that existed between the Hells
Angels and the Mongols?

A Oh, yes.

Q. and so fast-forward again to the incident which
occurred at A Special Memory Wedding Chapel. Did yon
investigate that incident?

A I did.

Q 211 right. Can vou tell us what happened there?

yiy Qn the night of December 20th, 2008, I.was called by
my sergeant who asked me to respond to A Special Memory Wedding

Chapel at 800 South Fourth Street, Las Vegas. He advised me
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there was a fight between the Hells Angels and the Mongols at a
wedding. And T responded to the scene, but because of -- due
to the way the call had went out, patrol had responded first,
medical and private citizens had removed some people. The
scene had been locked down and our crime scene unit had come
in. 8o bkasically by the time T was notified and able to make
it there, the only people left were the crime scene unit and
most of the evidence had been collected by them.

I was provided by the owner and his father-in-law of
that wedding chapel a video from their DVR, their surveillance
cameras in the wedding chapel, and I also received the written
statements from some of the victims and witnesses.

As I started in%estigating the case and viewed the
video numerous times, I found that ﬁhat had occcurred -- well,
let me back up. I interviewed the witnesses, several
witnesses, victims at their homes. I went to the hosgspital and
interviewed the wvictims there. I-determined that what had
happened was Brad Goldsmith was a prospect at the time for the
Sin City charter of the Hells Angels was getting married to his
high school sweetheart. The bride had resefved that wedding
éhapel for December 20th, and there were numeroﬁs Hells Angels
in attendancé, some wearing full patéheé, a couple in prospect
patches. Thére wére at least one in soft colors. The bride's
dress was white with red trim and there was -- they had the

entire chapel pretty much filled with people. At the same
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time, the bride from the Mongols had reserved that chapel right
afterward, the exacﬁ same room even, that the Hells Angels had
used. And because the brides were making the reservations,
nobody knew there was any outlaw motorcycle gang involvement
until they walked up.

On the video of the actual chapel where the wedding
tock place; Charles Goldsmith who was about 6—foqt—8 and
weighed about 425 pounds, they call him Pee Wee, he was seated
in the very front row right behind his son, Brad, where they
got married. He stayed seated after the ceremony and the
wedding chapel -- they were going to take photos, I assume,
many of the pecple from that wedding left through a front door
in that chapel. 2nd this i1s a basic summarized version. This
isn't every fact I know of it.

They left from the front door of that building. That
front door emptied out into a common courtyard. It was not the
front door of the business. The front door of the business was
on a —— it's an L-shaped building. The front door could be
seen from the door they exited. So when they exited, they were
cut in a common courtyard next to the front door of the
entrance Qf the business, the wedding chapel.

A short time later on the video, Jeff Murray, a
prospect from the Sin City charter of the Hells Angels wearing
his prespect patch, walks back in that door and whispers in Pee

Wee's —— I'm sorry, Charles Goldsmith's ear. There is a point
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immediately following that where several members of the Hells
Angels and their associates gather up near the doors that go to
the lobby of the wedding chapel, and they have a conversation.
These wvideos have no audio, so it can't be heard what they are
saying. |

After a short conversation, Charles Goldsmith points
towards the aitar in the front of the room and several of the
members start walking that way, and one of the associates
escorted the bride up there and moved all the women that were
present'into one little area in the front. Other members
including Brandon Young, Brad Gdldsmith, an associate named
Samuel Murray took their tuxedo coats off. Some of them handed

them to Charles Goldsmith's daughter who was standing there.

Brandon Young who was a member of -- he was a prospect at the

time for the Sin City charter of Hells Angels, he just threw
his jJacket into a péw, and they walk out. As -- just prior to
walking cut, Charles Goldsmith put on his sunglasses, and then
they walked in kind of a line formation out that deor.into the
lobby of the business where-they believed the Mongols to be.

On another camera that shows the lobby and from the
victim's statements and witness statements, nét just involved
with the -- I'm éorry, not jﬁst related to the'Mongols or Hells
Angels, but there was a separate family there waiting for their
wedding as well who had nothing to do with either club, ffom

all those statements I gather that -- in the wvideo, the groom
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from the Mongols' side who was wearing what they call scoft
colors which were they were an embroidered patch, a Mongol
patch on basically a black garage shirt that identified him as
a Mongol MC member. He was standing near the counter. He told
me later he asked his friend to go out and tell the females in
his party to stay out in the car because they didn't know what
was going to happen, but he said he didn't think anything would
probably happen because the families were there. He said, "I
knew it would kick off if there was Jjust us, but we had our
families there and théy had their families there." So he is
videotaped standing next to the front counter. People are
going about their businéss. He's got -- he had paperwork in
his hand which we later determined was his wedding license and
things like that. And he had his -- he more or less had his
ba&k to the door that led to the chapel where he was to be
married and.where the Hells Angels prospect had just been
married.

The line of Hells Angels comes out, and as on the
video, the groom, James Nalder, the grocom to be, the Mongol
groom to be James Nalder, turns over his shoulder just as
Charles Goldsmith closes distance on him, and Charles Goldsmith
hit him with his left hand punched him in the face and knocked
him down. And then the line just kept the coming out of Hells
Angels. Eugene Formica who was to be James Nalder's best man

and also wearing a soft color Mongols shirt was attacked pretty

1240,




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

150 5

much next to Jameé Nalder and associate of theirs Udel Wickham
who was standing all the way back toward an empty chapel,
actually not even iﬁ view, really, from the chapel that the
Hells Angels left. He was attacked by a Hells Angel associate
and is shown on a different camera being kicked and kicked.
Sorry, hit and kicked and pushed over the podiqm.'

During the fight, several members of the Hells Angels
could be seen using weapons. Fbr his part, Jeff Murray, the
prospect, appeared to have a knife in his hand when he entered
the room. And as Charles Goldsmith knocked Nalder down and
other Hells Angels membe;s helped him keep Nalder on the
ground, Jeff Murray can be seen moviﬁg forward and doing a
stabbing motion with what I believe is a knife in his hand into
the abdomen of James Nalder. A shbrt time later, John
Merchant, a Hells Angel Nomad member from Reno who was wearing
a full-patch Hells Angels cut came oﬁt in the same line, and as
he walked past the counter, picked up a glass wvase that was
sitting there, he can be seen raiéing the glass wvase over his

head at least twice and bringing it down hard in the area where

James Nalder is now surrounded by the Hells Angels.

Eugene Formica was pushed or was trying to escape and
he was.bent oﬁer at the waist trying to walk through the crowd
and he was getting hit ahd kicked by several members of the
Hells Angels and.associates.that'were present.

" And at one point, John Merchant from the Renoc chapter
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pocket, manipulating it as though he were opening up a knife
and moving in on Eugene Formica. John Merchant makes kind of a
stabbing motion toward Eugene Formica, and on the video you can
see BEugene Formica who has a bald head, you can see the blood
come over his head and turn his whole face red. He continued
to get pummeled into the front cf the counter where a Hells
Angel associate and long-time supporter, Armando Pdrous, hit
him numerous times and then dragged him with the help of some
other people, some other Hells Angels associates, dragged him
out the door inte the courtyard.

I later learned that a third Mongols member, Jonathan
Babcock, who was wearing a white rush shirt with a black
embroidered Mongols color on his back, Mongols patch on his
back, he had run from.fhé car, but he was in very pcor heélth.
He's had numerous medical procedures and is in extremely poor

health. He got to the front door and was punched by -a member

1 ©of the Hells Angels party.

‘Through witness statements and his own admission, Brad
Goldsmith, who can be seen on the video inside during the
initial fight, just around the time Eugene Formica gets stabbed
in the head, Brad Goldsmith turned around and walked ocutside
and punched'Jonathan Babcock in the face, knocking him
ungonsdious. Jonathan Babcock hit his head on the ground and

split his head open and he was then'hit,'according to the
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witnegses, with champagne bottles, and fists, and kicked
several times.

4 short time later, Charles Goldsmith walked out and
picked up a decorative trash can that was there and hit Babcock
in the face with it, breaking his teeth backwards.

During all of this, several members of the Mongols
party were being chased by other Hells Angels members. And
inside, for his part, John Merchant can be seen manipulating
his knife again and running up to a now prone, basically, on
his stomach, James Nalder, who's laying on his stomach by the
counter, and you see John Merchant go in and make several
Stabbing motions into his abdomen. And then withdrew his knife
back and put it in his pocket and then left.

When we arrived, there were no Hells Angels party
members left. They left as soon as the fight was over, and
through the course of the investigation, speaking fo the.
victims, I learned that the reason that James Nalder turned

Just before Charles Goldsmith struck him was he heard him say

words to the effect of, "You killed my brother,"™ or, "You think

you're going to kill my brother," or something to that effect.
and I knew from -- well; T spoke to other witnesses who heard
words very similar to, "You killed our brother," or something
like that.

As I said, during tﬁe course of the.investigation,

Charles Goldsmith contacted on his own-a Henderson police

136




10

11

12

13

14

15

l6-

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

153

officer who was at another biker event several months later.

He walked up to the officer and asked him and teld him
basically that he was waiting for the police to come arrest him
for the fight he had at his son's wedding and when the officer
ingquired what fight he was talking about, Charles Goldsmith |

said, "Well, if someone killed youf brother officer, would you

ever forgive them?" Basically, "Wouldn't you want revenge?"

And it was known to me from other sources, newspaper releases
and our investigations, that I believe it was September of
2008, but just a couple of months prior to the wedding chapel
occurring, Mark Guardado, the president of the San Francisco
chapter of the Hells Angels and a very close friend of Charles
Goldsmith and the.Goldsmith family was murdered by a Mongol,
and that Mongol was taken into custody pricr to the wedding
chapel event as well. B2And it was reasonably well publicized
within.the newspapers énd within the investigators' network
that this was a Mongel who had shot and killed this Hells
Angels president. |

As I went about my investigation, I found numercus
themes relating te Mark Guardado, who théy called Papa,
including rest-in-peace stickers on the'mofonycles. On the
social media siﬁes they would have In Memory oflPapa postings
and things like that. So I knew they were close to him and
that was probakly the reascn for the attack.

Q The reason for the attack —-- well, let's -- so Charles
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Goldsmith, what was his position in the Hells Angels?

A At the time he was the president of the Sin City

charter,
0 All right. BAnd how about Brandon?
A Brandon --

Q0 Or Brad.

A I'm sorry, Brad was a prospect at that time.
@] Ckay. Johﬁ Merchant?
A He was a full-patch member.
Q Joseph Denoso?
B He was an associate.
0 Fred O'Dell?
A He was a fuli—patch member of the Sin City charter.
Q Armando Porous?
A Armando Eorous was the long-time supporter and very

‘good friend of Charles Goldsmith..

Q So were James Nalder, FEugene Formica, John Babcock,
James Wickham, and James Pope, were they members of the

Mongols?

154

A ‘No. James Nalder, Formica, and Jonathan Babcock were

members.

Udel Wiﬁkham, James Pope, and Timothy Jameson were
just cleose associates.

THE COURT: Okay. This is a good time to take our

break, so we'll be in a short recess for the afternoon.
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Court is in recess.
(A break was taken.}
THE COURT: Thank you. Please be seated.
Counsel, you may continue.
BY MR. HALL:
Q Detective Fieselman, there was a video that was taken
of the fight between the Mongols and Hells Angels at Harrah's

in Laughlin, Nevada; is that correct?

A That's correct.
Q All right. And there was also a video at a special
-wedding -- A Special Memory Wedding Chapel regarding another

altercation and stabbing.between the Hells Angels and Mongols;
is that correét?
A Correct.

MR. HALL: All right. Your Honor, I would.indicate
for the record that that has been marked aS Exhibkit H, and I
would play that at this time to display the types of crimes
tﬁat are committed by the Hells Aﬁgels on rival gang members;
however, in the interest of time, I'm going to ask that you
just admit that into evidence because T think we already played
that in any event when Jorge Gil-Blanco --

THE COURT: H was admitted on October 29%th.

MR. ﬁALL: ‘Right. I'm making a record oh that issue.

.THE COURT: Okay. You wanted this expert to review\it

also as well as Mr. —--
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MR. HALL: I want the Court to consider that as
evidence that this witness can testify to.

THE COURT: Okay. ﬁe'li deal with that in the
argument, but it was admitted.

Did you want to show that tape again?

MR. HALL: No, I didn't. I just wanted to reference
that I want to use that_to support his testimony, Ehat it has
been admitted, so I'm making a record in that regard.

THE- CCURT: 0Okay. Thank you.

MR, HALL: And I'm trying to move on since time seems
to be running short.

BY MR. HALL:

Q So based upon your knowledge of the investigation
regarding the Taughlin incident and the spe&ial wedding chapel,
what types of crimes, punishable as felcnies, have the Hells
Angels engaged in?

MR. SCHONFELD: Objection. Asked and answered.

THE COURT: Overruled. He sald beside what he already
testifiedf

THE'WITNESS: Beside what T already testified to is
that --

BY MR. HALL:
_Q Yes.
A The -- On the video, the murders and the assauit with

‘a deadly weapon, Battery with a Deadly weapon, shooting into a
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structure, mayhem, the main course of those two investigations
were the attempted murders and the murders that cccurred.

Q . You've had an opportunity to see the video of the
incident at the Nugget; is that correct?

A Yes.

o] And is that consistent with the code of conduct that
ig exhibited by the Hells Angels that you're familiar with as
far as fighting with rival gang members?

MR. FREY: Just interpose an objection. The language

specifically says —-— I believe focuses on a leading cobjection.
I need to make a record of my objection. I believe it's
leading.

MR. SCHONFELD:» I Jjoin in the obljection. It goes teo
the uitimate issue and intent.

MR. FREY: Join in thét as well, Your Honor..

THE. COURT: Okay. I'm not sure it's leading. I
don't. I don;t know. It's hard, Mr. Hall, I'm having_a little
trouble because many of you£ questions are leading. It is not
going to —- it is not inadmissible because it goes to the
actual characteristics of persons or members of gangs as long
as you don't allow him toc try to get him to testify that in
fact in this instance, that's what it was. He can say it's
consistent with, and I'm going to overrule as to leading
because I don't know how he can ask it other than that.

MR. FREY: Thank you.

1370
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THE WITNESS: The video appears consistent with their
actions, ves. |
BY MR. HATLL:

Q All right. Can you expand on that in terms of what
you saw that was depicted in the Nugget video that is
consistent with crimes committed by Hells Angels in furtherance
cf the rivalry?

ya\ The grouping of the persons involved in kind of a -~
more or less a guard kind of situation.where they line up and
the -- the initial confrontations that start out verbally and
then escalate using -- utilizing weapons and fists and things
of that nature. Those where one group Confronts the other,
that gets back to the respect that I talked abcut. You can see
it in the Laughlin -- I saw it in the Laughlin videos that I
reviewed as well where something -is said that is —-- that is --

it appears to be disrespectful or is taken as disrespectful,

and the Hells Angels or the opposing group will then basically

defend their honor through physical acts of violence.

Q Let me provide facts with respect to a hypotheticél.
So my hypothetical, I have the Vagos OMG at thé -— attending
the Streét Vibrations motorcycle event hete in September of
2011, and their national meeting is going to be held at the
Nugget in Sparks. And they were given a discounted rate for
their rooms at the Nugget under the Green Nation codg. And the

Hells 2Angels had a booth outside adjacent to the Nugget. Other
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than that, the Hells Angels would typically stay over at the
Grand Sierra. So there was egsentially a casino where the
Vagos- would stay and a different casino where the Hells Angels
would stay. The Hells Angels end up staving at the Nugget
where the Vagos are having their national meeting, and based
upon vour training and experience with respect to outlaw
motorcyéle gangs and their code of conduct regarding respect
and térritory, would the Hells Angels being at the Nugget be a
vicolation of the territorial respect that the gangs would
typically have?

A Yes. It would be considered disrespectful much as it
was in Laughlin when the Hells Angels went td Harrah's where
the Mongols are staying. |

Q And was that showing of disrespect the reason for
violent conflict or conflict®?

A  Yes.

9 And once that conflict is initiated, would the
respéctive gang.members.be required pursuant to the code of o
conduct to assist the respective gang members in a fight?

A Yes, they would. They would be expected to.

MR. HALL: Thank you. I have no further questions.
THE COURT: Cross?
MR. SCHONFELD: Thank you, Yogr Honor.

117 | o
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CROSS-EXAMINATICON

BY MR. SCHONFELD:

0 Are you familiar with an individual named Jethro
Pettigrew?
A I know his name, and I've seen his picture, and ITve

seen him in the video.

Q Do you kpow what his involvement in this case is?

A Yes.

QO .What is that?

A He's the victim of murder as well as‘the initiator of
the confrontation viewed on the wvideo.

Q. And you're aware that Cesar Villagrana is not accused

of having shot or otherwise personally injured Jethro

Pettigrew?
A Honestly, I'm not familiar with that part of the case.
0 So you don't know what theory of 1liability the State

has charged or accused Mr. Villagrana, do you?
A I do not.
Q Were you aware that you testified that there was some

verbal conflicts between members of the Hells Angels and the

Vagos that you observed on the video --

A Yes.
Q -- at the Nugget in the case that we are.here for,
correct?

A Yes.
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Q Were you aware that Jethro Pettigrew told the members
of the Vagos that were instigating conflict that he just wanted
to chill out and have a beer?

A I'm not familiar with those.facts, no.

Q So when you were asked the questions regarding the
hypothetical about Hells Angels coming to the national meeting
and being in the hotel and the disrespect and all that, vou
doﬁ't know all the facts, do you?

A Qf this case?

0 Right.

A' Nq, I don't know all the facts.

Q S0 you ;eally can't render an opinioﬁ as to whether or
not people in this case acted consistent with this so-called
éode, can you?

A Yegh, I —--

| MR. HALL: Your Honor, I'm going to gbject to his
knowledge of the case. I think that's irrelevant. Knowledge
with respect to the statement —-- what statement Pettigrew made
or didn't make during the course of.
THE COURT: -He gays he can. The guestion says he
couldn't and he says he can. So we'll let the answer.stand.
BY MR. SCHONFELD:

Q Without knowing Jethro Pettigrew told the Vagos

| repeatedly, "Let's chol it and have a beer together™ --

MR. HALL: Object. Assuming facts not ih evidence,

72K




10

11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

162

BY MR. SCHONFELD:

Q Hypothetically speaking, if thé evidence in this case
demonstrates that Jethro Pettigrew told members of the Vagos
that he didn't want any trouble, he wanted to hang out and have
a beer, that wouldn't change your opinion of the_case; is thaf
your testimony? . |

A ‘No, it wouldn't change my opinion.

Q Sc you can watch a video in a wvacuum and render.your
opinion?

A I can watch a video and render my opinion based on --

9, Without looking at the volumes and wvolumes of other

evidence in this case, correct?

A Based on my opinion of whether it's consistent, sure.

Q Without looking at the grand jury transcript, correct?

A Correct..

Q Without looking at any of the witness statements,
correct?

A Without —-- yes, without -- whethér it's consistent

with a code of conduct, yeah.
Q You didn't look at the grand jury transcripts in this

case, did you?

A No.
Q You didn't look ét any witness.statement in this case?
A No.
Q You didn't look at any poliée investigative reports in
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this case, did youf

B I den't believe that I studied any of the police
reports, no.

Q If we have boxes and bbxes of discovery other than the

videos, you haven't looked at any of it, have you?

A No.

Q I'm correct?

A You're correct.

Q - But you're still sitting on the witness stand under

cath representing your opinions as to whether or not the

conduct in this case was consistent with gang rivalry, correct?

A Yes.

Q Without knowing-all of the conduct, right?

¥y Without knowing all of the what? I'm.sorry.

Q All of the conduct.

A Just what I've seen on the video, that I was asked to
testify.

MR. HALL: Your Honor; I object as to "all of the
conduct™ as lack of foundation. So if he can explain what he
means by "all of the coﬁduct,“ or at least fill in the witness.

THE COURT: Tt's really argumentative, so I'm going £o

sustain the cbjection on argqumentative grounds.

MR. SCHONFELD:

Q There waé no Vagos/Hells Angels conflict at the

wedding chapel incidents that you testified to, correct?
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A No.

Q I'm, correct?

A Correct.

Q There was no Vagos/Hells Angels conflict at the

.Laughlin incidents that you testified to, correct?

A Correct.
Q Mr. Villagrana was not at either of those locations
during those incidents in question, correct?

A I am not sure if he was present in Laughlin., I know

"he wasn't at the wedding chapel.

Q Is Mr. Villagrana a member of the Hells Angels in
20027

A I don't know.

o) You don't know anything about Mr. Villagrana, do you?

A Very little.
0 You did not -- the -- the wedding chapel case went to

trial once already, didn't it?

A One ¢of the three trials, yes.

Q Resulted in a mistrial?

A . Yes.

0 For discovery violations on the part of the Sﬁate?

A I -- no, I don't know why, actually. I wasn't allowed

in court, so I'm not sure what the arguments were that led to
the mistrial, only what I read in the paper, actually.

O You were not noticed as the gang expert in that case,
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correct?
A No, I was.
Q You and Jorge Gil-Blanco as well?
A  Yes. Both of us.
Q You provided your curriculum wvitae to the defepdant in

that case?

A I did.

Q Have you ever been admitted to testify and actually
testify as a.gang expert as it relates to the Hells Angels
motorcycle club? | |

A No.

Q You didn't testify at the grand jury in the wedding
chapel case as a gang expert?

A Mo, I don't believe that --

Q Mr. Gil-Blanco did that, didn't he?

A Yes.

0 Why-is it that the State cf Nevada would go out and
get someone from cut of stéte who doesn't --

MR. HALL: Objection, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Argumentative?

Sustained.

MR. SCHONFELD: What was the objection to the question
I didﬁ't finish, Your Honor?

THE COURT: He cbjected. I said ére you saying

argumentative? He nodded his head, I said yes. When you asked
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find someone from out of state, and that's as far as you went.
MR. SCHONFELD: Sounds like the question.

BY MR. SCHONFELD:

Q Do you have any personal knowledge as to why the State
of Nevada sought out and secured Mr. Gil-Blanco's testimony
when you were available in your opinion to testify as an expert
witness in that case?

MR. HALL: Irfelevant. Argumentative.
THE COURT: Sustained on both grounds.
BY MR. SCHONFELD:

Q You testified at the Laughlin incidents wheﬁ the
police searched the parked motorcycles of the Hells Angels
outside that they found weapons; is that correct?

a That's'correct._

0 So you would agree ﬁith me meﬁbers-of fhe Hells Angels
came over to the casino and left their weapons outside?

A They left some weaponé outside, yes.

0 And in one instance, there was a member who had a
permit to carry multiple firearms had he chosen to, and he left
those outside as wellf didh't he?

A I don't know if he —= I'm not familiar ﬁith that.

Q You don't know all the facts of that case, do you?

A I don't know each and every fact of that case,

but

FELCN
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Q You weren't aware that Shawn Regas had a concealed
weapons permit in the State of Nevada and left two firearms
that he was allowed to carry concealed into the casino ocutside
on his motorcycle?

A I know he had two firearms outside because I found
them_on_the bikes.

Q 30 yéu testified to Her Honér that you found all these
weapons, but what you didn't say in some instances these people

were allowed to carry them in the casino and chose not to?

A I actually didn't know that he had a concealed weapons
permit.
Q You weren't the investigating officer in that case,

were you?

A Not the case agent, no.

Q You weren't the gang expert or so-called gang expert
in that case, were you?

A ~ HNeo.

0 Were you aware that members of the Hells Angels were
arfested and chaigéd in the Yavapie County incident where you
talked about a shootout bketween the two clubs?

A T wasn't - I'm not familiar with who was arrested,

only that cur local Vagos were involved..

Q ’_Were you aware 1f that case was dismissed?
A No.

Q Do you form your opinions based on these instances
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that you testified about, but you really have incompliete
knowledge of each one so far, would you agree?

A No. I don't -- I'm not the case agent for each one,
but.to the extent that I needed the infeormation for my Jjob as
an outlaw motorcycle gang in Las Vegas, I was given the
information necessary;

Q So you pick and choose the information that you want
and don't even lock at the other stuff; is that your testimony?
A No. They provide bulletins, and in meetings like I
said with other investigators, you glean certain information

from thosze.

Q So someone else -- somecne else picks and ghooses the
information that they think is important and they leave out the

rest of it and you rely upon.it; is that your testimony?

A I rely upon their case summaries and investigative
knowledge.
9] But you don't actually go any deeper and look at the

rest of the evidence in those cases, correct.

B Not unless they directly relate to an_investigétion I
am doing, no.

Q SQ the only-case as far as incidents of gonduct that.
you've testified to whe;e youuhad actually seen all of the_
evidence 1is the wedding chapel case, accurate?

A Where I've seen all of the evidence,:l‘d say that'é

accurate, yes.
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| Harrah's, but I'm not familiar with what charter they were

the outlaw biker, what they call gangs, and were aggressive

0] You would agree with me that, going back to the
Laughlin, isn't it true that the San Francisco Hells Angels
charter was unable to obtain rooms at the Flamingo Laughlin
where members in Bullhead City and other members were staying,
50 they had to stay at Harrah's Hotel Casino?

A . I know there were some Hells Angels staying at

from.

Q Were you are aware they were staying there because
£hey'couldn't get rooms anywhere elseé

A I was not aware of that.

o] Sco you didn't read Detective Long's report related;to

the Laughlin incident?

A His report; not the entire report.

Q He's the case agent, you're aware of that?'

A Yes.

Q He wrote a report'that is many, maﬂy pages. Youn

didn't read it?
A No.
"Q So were you aware that intelligence report indicated

that the Mongols were attempting to raise their status among

during the four-day event?
A We had ~- we had briefed on that . kind of information

while we were down there.
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Q So you were aware that the Mongols were trying to
bolster the status and they were going to be aggressive toward
Hells Angels?

A Yes.

Q And the‘handful‘of Hells Angels.that were staying at
Harrah's, every time the-small group of Hells Angels would
enter the casino area of Harrah's, they would be surrounded,
followed, and stared at by Mongols members. = Were you aware of
that?

A Yes.'

0  And isn't it true that the Mongol members had duffel
bags with them? |

A I don't know.

Q Isn't it'true the Mongol members had walkie—talkies.so
they could communicate with each other aslthey'surrounded this
small group of_HéliS Angels?

A They had walkie-talkies with them. I located them in
the search warrant.

0 Isn't it true When the Heils Angels ﬁoved intq the
Rosa's Cantina Area at Harrah's Laughlin, they were surrounded
by a large number of Mongol members?

A Yes.

o} _And that was before the fight broke but,.cﬁirect?

A Correct.

Q Tsn't it true that the police officer was the first --
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sorry -- strike tﬁat.

Isn't it true that the Las Vegas Metropolitan Police
officer fired his weapon before any member of the Hells Angels
motorcycle club did?

A | I cannot speak to that sequence. I don't know.

Q And again, you haven't read the case agent's report in
that case, correct?

A No.

Q S0 the only evidence in the case you locked at is the
video, isn't it, and.the 30 search warrants that you helped
execute?

A That and there was a case briefing after -- after the
event that I attended they went over some of the testimony and

some of the video evidence.

0 You didn't look at any of the reports, correct?
A Not -- no, just the ones I read.
- Q You didn‘t look at anf cf the grand jury transcripts,
correct?
A No.
Q Didn't look at any of the witness Statements?
A I may have looked at some of the witness statéments

when T was preparing my Mongols search warrant depending on --
I don't remember now what was available fo me back then.
0 So, Officer, you were in vice from 2004 until 2008,

correct?
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A i think I was in vice from 2002 to 2008.

0 S0 you agree while you were in vice from 2002 to 2008,
you were not investigating what you would call outlaw
motorcycle gangs, correct?

A Actually, because I regularly at£ended the ocutlaw
moforcycle gang investigators meetings even while I was in
vice, I often identified members that were out driving around
while I was out doing.my —-- deing my investigations and
reported that information to tﬁe outlaw motorcycle gang squad,
but I didn't.have'any actual outlaw motorcycle gang éases
during that time;

o] My question was you didn't investigate ahy outlaw
motorcycle gangs, correct?

A Correct.

9] Primarily YyOou were invéstigating prostitution,
pandéring, and child pandering from 2004 until 2008, correct?
- A From 2002 until 2008, yes.

Q -You testified -- sorry.

Your curriculum vitae states you'vé_been-the case
agent on what you call several outlaw motorcycle gang
iﬁvestigations. Please name them.

A The wedding chapel case. There was a Banditos versus

non-outlaw club case that I donit have the event number for

{ handy. T was in -- I was the case agent on that. I was the

| case agent on an investigation regarding Vagos and drug
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trafficking. I was the case agent on —— well, I wasn't —— I
was —— I assisted as more or less a second chair on a Banditos
versus Flaming Knights stabbingi Most of the other
investigations, because we don't -- in my section, we don't get
calls for service, we kind of -- we go out and proactively
investigate things. Most of the other investigations were just
follow-ups on tips and things.like that.

| Q Okay. Your CV séys you have been case agent on
several cutlaw motorcycle gang investigations, right?

A Correct.

Q You've given us the wedding chapel, an investigation
with the Banditos not related fo any other.what you guys-célled
outlaw motorcycle gang, and a drug investigation of thé Vagos.
That's it?

A Well; it was actually -- 1t was related to outlaw
motorcycle gangs because they —- they weré —- the Banditos were
protectihg their patch.and'their terfitory against that other
club.

The Vagos -case and then the Banditos, Elaming Knighté
case which was a stabbing, like I stated, they were baéioally
more or less two case agents in that, myself and Joe Gagliardi.
And like T said, the-other investigations that I've done have
all been, you know, follow-ups on leads. ‘

I was the case agent c¢n a Vagos -- there was a

prohibited person with a firearm, -and he was -- the same day he
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was involved in an altercation wherein he and another Vago

attacked a driver. I was the case agent in that as well.
" Q Do you consider that to be an outlaw motorcycle gang
investigation?

A Absolutely. They had cut of traffic to let their
people out of a party and basically parked in a travel lane,
and when a vehicle went arouﬁd them, they went down as a group
and attacked that driver and a passenger.

Q In your curriculum vitae states you've been a member
of a federal task force regarding what vyou guys called outlaw

motorcycle gangs. What was that task force?

A It was a task force with the ATF.
Q When was that?
A In 2010 when I was assigned to the outlaw motorcycle

gang investigator squad, I was made part of that task force.

Q Heow long were you on that task force?

A The year and a half I waé on that saquad.

Q What did you investigate as part of that task force?
Y We investigated outlaw motorcycle gangs. T assisted

with the Black Rain investigation regarding the Mongols that

the ATF ran. We had —-- I assisted with Hells Angels
investigations.

Q . Which ones? .

B The -- the Cash -- it doesn't have a name. It might

have a name, but the three Hells Angels members were federally
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indicted last year for ﬁarcotics trafficking. I assisted in
that. It had to do with undercover ——Han undercover
investigation with the ATF.

0 Would you agree with me that the conduct in that case
is not allegéd to have beén club related, correct?

A Ch, no, it was club related. It was the three Hells
Angels were ﬁart of a group that assisted in that criminal
activity, part of a group of Hells Angels.

Q Is it your testimony anytime a member of the Hells
Angels commits a crime that it'é club related?

A Any time a member of the club commits a crime that its .

club related?

Q Yes.
A No, not necessary.
Q 30 you just testified, Oh, yeah, it's club related

because theSe three were members of the Hells Angels.
A Right. And they were acting with other Hells Angels
during the commission of this crime. .
Q Sc anytime ‘at least two members of the Hells Angels
commit scome criminal act together --
MR. HALL: Objection. Arqumentative.
BY MR. SCHONFELD:
Q -- 1t is c¢lub related; is that vyour testimonj?
THE COURT: Sustained.

MR. SCHCONFELD: How is that argumentative?

N2%h
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MR. HALL: Argumentative.
THE COURT: Because he's answered the guestion.
BY MR. SCHONFELD:

Q Is 1t your testimony that if more thaﬁ one member of
the Hells Angels engages in a criminal act that it is club
related?

MR. HALL: .Same objection.

THE COURT: 1I'll let him answer that.

THE WITNESS: It depends on whether it is done in
furtherance of or at the behest of the club.
MR, SCHONFELD:

Q So how is the three members providing security for an
alleged drug transaction club related?

THE COURT: I didn't know they were providing
security.

Did you testify to that?

THE WITNESS5: DNo.

THE COURT: 1Is that the case?

THE WITﬁEsS: That is the case.

MR. SCHONFELD: I know the case quite well, Your

Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. Well --

THE'WITNESS:. They were enriched by it. They.were
paid and the payﬁent'was made‘to different —-- my understanding

is the payment was made based on their level in the club. It
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wasn't an equal -- in other words, it was -- it was -- it
enriched the club based on theiﬁ status within the club.
BY MR. SCHONFELD:
0 Tt enriched the club. How did it enrich the club?
A It was the Hells Angels chapter pfoviding that

security and getting paid for it.

Q The chapter or the individual members?
A The money was given to all those persons involved.
Q Okay. 8So three pecple provided security for a

government-created drug deal, correct? It wasn't a real drug
deal, right?

A What's that? I'm sorry.

Q It was not a real drug deal. It was a
government-created drug deal, correct? ‘

A It was an undercover drug deal, yes.

Q. _ Righﬁ. - Buyers and sellers were -all members of law
enforcement, cofrect?

A Correct.

Q and three members of the Hells Angels provided
security for that alleged drug deal, correct?
)

A That's my understanding, ves.

Q And those three individual members were allegedly paid

for providing that service, correct?

2 Correct.

0 And they weren't wearing their patches during that
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drug deal, correct?
A I don't believe so, no.
Q Okay. And it wasn't sanctioned or approved by scme

grand Hells Angels authority, correct?

A Well, it actually was, I believe, approved by the
president.

Q The president was involved in it allegedly?

A Correct.

0 But that doesn't show that it was approved on a club

level, does it?

A Are we talking on a national club level?

Q. No.

A I'm sorry.

Q Is the Hells Angels one-member-one-vote? Are you

familiar with that?

A Ees.

Q So no one person can tell anothér what to do, correct?

A Incorrect, The.president actually can tell:members
what to do.

Q Yoﬁ were aware that those three names referred to were

indicted federally, correct?

A Correct.

0 .Not charged with any form of RICO or racketeering,
cérrect?

A T don't believe 30, TIO.
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Q Not charged with anything related to the Hells Angels,

correct?
A Not as far as a gang enhancement or RICO, no.
Q Not charged with anything whatsocever related to the

Hells Angels, correct?

A I don't know that for sure, but I don't remember
reading any gang enhancement in the charges, no.

Q Nevertheless, 1it's your teétimony because three
members of the Hells Angels ﬁere together, it's club related;
is that accurate?

A Based on the circumstances of the deal, I believe it

was, yes.

0 And did you have input in making é recommendation for
prosecuﬁion in that case?

A No.

Q Okay. BSo you didn't have the ability to tell them
your opinion that it must be club related so they sﬁould have

been charged with c¢lub-related activity?

A No. That wasn't my investigation.

Q _You\were on that task force, though?

A Correct.

Q- And vyou teStified you were part of that investigation.

MR. HALL: Your Honor, at this point I'm going to
cbject. We are getting far afield.

THE COURT: TIt's cumulative. Sustained.

1290,
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MR. SCHONFELD:

Q In your curriculum vitae, it says, "I have managed
sources of information regarding outlaw motorcycle gangs.”
What sources of information have you managed?

A Numerous persons who have come forward with
information about people they know in motorcycle gangs. I hawve
-—- through the investigation at the wedding chapel, the victims
and their family members have provided me information about the
subculture and the gangs. There's just numerous different
citizen sources. I have spoken to other investigators from
other jurisdictions. The International Outlaw Motorcycle Gang
Investigator Association seminar that I attended had numerous
sources éf information concerning subculture that can be called
upon regarding, you know,. ény questions I might have or
identities of suspects I might have, things of that nature.

Q I'm trying to figure cut "managed." You've never
handled -- been the handler of a confidentiél informant related
to outlaw motorcycle clubs, have you? |

A One véry short terﬁ cone that I managed and others that .
other pecple have technically been the handler and-that I
debriefed.

0 And then you testified that as far as interviewing
members of the Hells Angels, you interviewed Pee Wee Goldsmith,
Charles, and Brad Goldsmith; is that correct?

A Correct.
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Q And then the other contact you've had with members of
the Hells Angels was just short contact where theﬁ didn't
provide you with any substantive information related to the
club, correct?

A Related to the club? Yeah, I would say that's
probably accurate.

Q So basically, two interviews. Those were both
recorded, correct?

A Correct.

Q And they were both related to the wedding chapel
incident, correct? | |

A Correct.

Q You —-- you've never written any scholarly publications

related to any outlaw motorcycle clubs, correct?

A .No, I never have.

o fou'vé never been published on the subject whatsocever,
correct?

A No.

Q You've never written any analytical reports as an

expert witness regarding the Hells Angels, correct?

A No.

Q You never taught a four-year college regarding the
subject of outlaw motorcycle clubs or gangs as you call them,
correct?

A Correct.
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0 You're aware the Hells Angels motorcycle club is a
nonprofit cooperation?

A Yes.

Q Other clubs that you've investigated such as the

Mongols or Vagos, they are not nonprofit cooperations,-are

they?
B I don't believe so, no.
Q You would agree that the Hells Angels charters engage

in charitable toy runs and other events, correct?

A They engage in those, yes.

Q fou're aware that there are members of Hells Ahgels in
the United States that have no felony convictions?

A Yes.

0 Members'in"ﬁhe ﬁﬁi£edjSpéte§.£hatgﬁé§e'ﬁo felgny of;_”
misdemeancr convictions,-éof;é;ﬁé “ | -

A Correct.

o] Members in the United States that have never been
arrested?
A I'm sure there are.

Q .Members in the United 3tates that hold prpfessional‘
licenses? |

A Yes.

Q You would agree with me_that}it is not a requirement;
therefore, in order to be a memberiof the.HéiLé Angels.that'you

commit any crime whatsoever, correct?
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A Any requirement?. No, I don't believe it is.

Q You woqld agree, though;'the Hells Angels charters:
have a clubhouse? | -

A ‘Yes, most that I've‘encountered.

Q And tﬁe clubhouses have a death head_on_thé front of-
them most of the time? - |

A Yes.

Q So they make it clear that's their clubhouse?

A . Yes. |

Q They ‘hold pa;ties-where member$ ¢an.attend?_

A YQSEZ |

0 And they hold parties where members of the public can . -
attend? | | o | |

L'A Correct.

Q Aﬂd members of thé.pﬁblic'can come into their
%Flubhouse? |

iy Cor;ect.

Q And iﬁ séme CaSes,.law éanrcement goes to those
‘barties?

A _I‘vé-never been. You ﬁean under -- are you refe;rihg_

in.a covert status or overt?

Q _ Sure you're not in uniform, but members of law
enforcement have walked into those parties pretending to be
membgrs.' |

A I'm sure they have, ves.
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0 | Members.of the .Hells Aﬁgéls wéar jackets with their
trademark Logo on.it, correct?

A" Correct.

Q. And most members of Hells Angels'have regular daytime
jobs,-correct? |

A I can't answer. I don't know.if they do or not; Thé

ones that I know, some do, some don't.

Q0 Do you know what Cesar Villagrana's daytime job is?
A I do not.
Q  In your'curribulum vitae, you listed five cases where

you testified as an expert.  Are you familiar with that?

. A. Yes.
Q . Not ope_df those Cases is the.wedding chapel case?
.A _ Cbrré;ﬁ.
] Not one of thelcases tha# you've'lisfed where you were j

admitted as an expert involvés motorcycle clubs, correct?
A Correcf. | |
Q How long have you been riding a motorcycle for?
A Since 2002.
O Have you ever been a member of one of the law_
enforcement motorcycle groupé?
A No.
Q - You're aware that those exist?
A Oh,.yes.

Q You're aware that there's members of law enforcement
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stickers on their motorcycles, correct?

A It would not surprise me in the slightest.

Q0  Not illegal to have that sticker on the biker right?
A No. |

Q When you say it wouldﬁ't surprise you i1f that

occurred, you also wouldn't bellieve those police officers to be
committing some sort of criminal conduct, right?
A Criminal conduct, no.

Q It was shortly after the Léughlin River Run incident

.that you were reassigned to vice; is that correct? -

A Yes.
Q Even though you had been involved in that

investigation, you were not assigned to outlaw motorcycle

.groups?

A No. I actually ﬁolunteeredlfor'stolen motorcycle task
force during Léughlin_Rivef.Run to get down there.

0 You're aware that after the Hells Angels Motorcycle
Club opened a charter in lLas Vegas that the Las Veéas
Metroﬁolitan Police Départment assigﬁed two offiéers to monitoxr

the Hells Angels Motorcycle Club in Las Vegas?

A I dpn;t know the number,.but I know they were assigned
| ves. |

Q Youfre_familiar with Officer Peterson and MﬁDermitt?

B Yes.

136

185




10
11
12
13

14

15

~16

17.

18
13
20
21
22
23
24

25

186

Q They were assigned to the Bells Angels, correct?

A I don't know -- I know they were assigned to the

outlaw motorcycle gang squad, but I don't know if they were

particularly assigned to Hells Angels.

Q You'fe never been assigned such as thbse two people to
monitor the Hells Angels, correct? |

A Well, ves, as part of the outlaw motorcycle gang
squad, I was.

Q ¥ You're in intelligence. You don't do the actual
day-to-day stops, go.to the clubhouse, follow them around?

A That's actually -= the intelligence section contains
the outlaw motorcycle gang squad. Thaffs where:Pearson's and
McDermitt were assigned as well.

Q Your rolg is different from theirs within the
intelligence section?

A Not at that time, no. In 2010 I was assigned to their

sguad.
Q  How many officers were on that squad at that Cime?
A I actually took Doug Pearson's place on that squad,

and I belieﬁe there were five of us at the time.
Q And you are no longer part of that -squad?
A - No.
Q. "Why not?
A | They asked me to ﬁonitor Mexzican cartels, and I moved

to a separate sguad. I didn't chénge desks, I just -—-

N3
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different assignment,
Q In your curriculum vitae it states you interacted with'
what you call motorcyclé gang members in an undercover

capacity. Have you done that with the Hells Angels?

A -Yes.
Q Who did you interact with in an undercover capacity?
A Keith Hair from the Las Vegas charter. Several

unkﬁown Hells Angels during the Laughlin River Run.._Priof to
the incident at Harrah's, I walked around and -spoke to them,
took pictures of them, things o¢f that nature. Wow. I have
attended numerous biker evsnts including I was present at the
Hells Angels USA run in Montana in 2008. We walked around énd,
you know, more or less mingled where they were. We didn't
neceésariiy alwayé haﬁe conversations with them, but we, YOU
know, sit next to them and strike up a conversation if we
éoﬁld; Jﬁst numerous —- that's kind of what we did.

Q  So basically whiie in an undercoﬁer capgcity; you’
would socialize with membéers of Hellé Angels?

A - Yeah, and surveil them as well, yeah.

0 But you weren't uﬁdércover in any inveétigation

against them?

A Oh, no.
Q What did you talk to Keith Hair about?.
A I spoke toc Keith Hair in an overt capacity about an

illegal raffle and poker run that they were conducting at Yolo

SETSN
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and about a week later, he actually chased me down the

aisle of the Las Vegas Bike Fest to invite me to the clubhouse

party --

Q S07

.A -- when I was in a coﬁert status. He didn't remember

me .

Q So you interacted with him in your law enforcement
capacity? He Kknew you were a law-enforcement officer
originally?

A Originally he did, then he forgot who.I was, and we

spoke concerning the party at the clubhouse.

Q

And a week later at Bike Fest, he thought you were a

regular member cf the public and he welcomed you to come to the

clubhouse?
A Yes.
Q Did.you go to-the clubhouse?
A I did not. I drove past it, but I never went in.
.Q

~You testified, and it's in your reports, that outlaw

-- what you call outlaw motorcycle gangs engage in murdér,_

kidnapping, assault, battery, rape, firearms trafficking. Give

me an example of & Hells Angel that you're familiar with that

was charged with rape?

A

The -- At the USA rurn, I'm not sure if he was'charged

specifically with rape, but he was accused of a sexual assault..

Q

My question was, give me an example of a member of the
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Hells Angels -that you're familiar with that was charged with
rape.

A I cannot tell you his name because it was at the USA
run, but

Q And you can't tell.us whether or not he was actually
charged?

A I can't tell you fof sure if he was charged, no.

Q | So you can't testify as to_one Hells Angels member

that you know of that has been charged with rape, correct?

A . That I know of personally, no.
Actually, now that I think about it, in the —-- in the
investigation regarding the Arizeona incident -- I cannct

remember his name, he was a fugitive for several years, and

he -- why can't I think of his name? T can see his face.

There were actually three Hells Angels that weré charged with

' the rape and murder of a female in a clubhouse in Arizona I

belieVe;

Q You can't tell us their names, though, correct?’

:\ I can't. There's a book about it, but I cannot recall
theiﬁ names. |

Q So your .knowledge is based upon reading a book?

A Weli, in that case, both reading the bodk and also
getting the bulletiﬁs on him aS é fugitive. We looked fof him
during several river rﬁﬁs and bike feéts and thiﬁgs of that

nature. I think he was later found in Argentina.
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Q And you don't know whether or not he was convicted of
that charge?

A I don't know if he's been to trial yet. Honestly, I
haven't followed it. o

0 Is there a natiocnal president of/ﬁbefﬂells Angels?

A No.
Q Is there a natiocnal vice president of the Hells
Angels?
A No.
o You'agrée with me anyone who would testify thére's a

national'pfesident.of the Hells Angels.doesn't know but bare
minimum of the Hells Angels, correct? |
A I don't know what they know about the Hells Angels. I
know they don't have a president or a national —-- Sorry;
naticnal president. |
Q Pretty elementéry knowledge, isn't if?
MR. HALL:. Argdmgntétive. Irrelevant.
THE COURT: Sustained.
BY MR. SCHONFELD:
Q Would you gonsider youfself an expert on the Hells
Angels if you believed they have a national president?
ﬂR..HALL: Argumentative. Irrelevant.
' THE COURT: Sustained. I think it's argument.
-MR._éCHONFELD: Pardon me, Your Honor?

THE COURT: It's argument.
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BY MR. SCHONFELD:

Q You would agree with me when you first started

were told was their structure?

A~ That's -- yes.
Qo So cne of the first things you were taught is it goes.
from prdspect -— S0rry. Hang—around?
A Correct.
0 To prospect?
A ' Correct.
Q To ﬁember?
A Correct.
o) And then éach charter hés-a treasurer?
A Correct.
R Sergeant—at—arms?
A Cofrect.
Q Preéident?
A And a vice president.
Q | And a vice president?
A _ “And a secretary often.as well.
Q -And you learned right away theie was nc national

president or vice president?
A Honestly, I can't say that I learned that right away
about the Hells Angels specifically, because I was first taught

about the general structure of outlaw motorcycle gangs. When I

H-oH
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studied the Hells Angels is when I learned about the West Coast
officers meeting and East Coast officers meeting and the
national runs and things of that nature.

Q So when you started focusing and learning more about
the Hells Angels is when you discovered théy don't have a.
national ﬁresident or national vice president?

A Cbriect.

"Q Going to the wedding chapel incidenﬁ, it was in

December of 2008, correct?

A Correct.

Q Brad Goldsmith was getting married, correct?

A Correct.

Q He was a prospesct at the time?

A Correct.

Q When. he and his friends and family arriﬁed at -the

wedding chapel, they had absolutely_ﬁo issue with anybody
thefé,.correct?

A ‘Not to my knowledgé, no.

Q And.there were both members and non-members of Hells
Angels, correct? |

A Correct.

Q - And it was after the Goldsmith wedding party arrived
that.membeis of the M§ngols'arrived;-is that cﬁrreéf?

A That's correct.

0 and in your report, you call the Mongols a rival
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motorcycle club; do you remember that?

A Yes.

Q.  You would agree with me the fact they were-a rival
motorcycle club in your opinion would be reason for the Hells
Angels members to fear that they were going to be attacked?

A I —— T can't speak to their state of mind. There were
only three Mongols that were present. Actually only two

visible at first. The third was in a car.

Q In your testimony known to be rivals, correct?

A Correct. -

Q &nd just arrived out of the clear blue at their
wedding?

A Well, at the wedding chapel, yes.

Q Not a big wedding chapel, is it?
A Nd. ~It's not a huge one, no.
0 You interviewed Samuel Murray after the wedding chapel

incident, correct?

A Correct.

.Q That was a recorded ;ﬁterview?

A Yes.

Q Have you turned that recording over to the Staté of.

Nevada in this case?
A . In this case, that recording, I don't believe so.
Q Was Samuel Murray investigated for any type of

criminal violation at the time you interviewed him?

A el
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A Yes.
Q In exchange for him cooperating with you, he was given

leniency correct? -

A No.

] So he just decided to be interviewed?
A Yes.

Q It was also video recorded, wasn't it?
A Yes.

Q . What he told vyou is that he had.believed that the
members of Mongols had arrived at.the-wedding chapel, had a
gun? | |

A Yes, he said he believed that.

'] -And other witnesses from the Hells Angels_interviews

said the same thing} correct?

A Yes,'they in fact indicated that they saw a gun at one
poiht.
Q So members of the Hells'Ahgels were already at a

wedding before any Mongols were there?

A Correct.
Q -And the Mongols, according to you, are a rival?
A - Correct.

0 2And the members of thé Hells Angels saw the what you
call rival Mongols with a gun?
A No. They said they saw them with a gun. There was no

- gun on video.:

Ho7
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Q You would agree with me videos don't always show
everything, right?

A Right.

Q You would also agree with me that Samuel Murray smokes
marijuana on a daily basié?

B _ I kbelieve he told me that,.yes.

Q But névertheless-you utilized his interview as
evidence against the defendants in that case, correct?

A I have,.I'm_not'sure if it's -- if it .was ever brought

out in the trial.

0 Ancther person you interviewed was Joshua Ramos?
A Yes.
Q He also stated that he believed that Mongol members

were present with a gun when they arrived.at the.weddiﬁg
chapel, Correcf? '

A Yes.

Q ﬁobody has been cénvicted in that case as you sit here
today; is thét.cofrect?

A .Not yet.

0 Correct me if I'm wrong, I believe on direcﬁ vou
testified initially thaﬁ all of your‘dontact with Hells Angels

members, the members had weapons. That's not accurate, is 1it?

A I don't think I would have said all. Many of. them
mavybe.
Q" You've had contacts with members of Hells Angels where

TEKO%




10
11
12
13
14
15

16

17

18
19
20
21
22
23

24

25

196

there were no weapons, right?

A That's a good question. I can't remember an incident
of contacting them where they didn't have some type of weapon,
at least a folding knife or a blunt instrument. I'm trying to
think. I can't -- I can't —— I don't -- when I contacted
Brandon Young, I can't remember if he had a folding.knife or
not, but T really can't remember any instance where I've
interacted with a Hells Angel that there haén‘t been some kind

of weapcon, even a small one.

Q Not illegal to carry a folding knife, is it?
A - No.
Q You testified at the beginning of your direct

examination regarding these handwritten guideiines and rules
for prospects and members; do you remembef.that testimony?

A Yes.

0 You.would agree with me that nowhere in those wfitten
rules does it say if one member gets in a fight, all other
members héve to join inv?

A i don't ;emember the exact verbiage, wﬁether it would
say exXactly that. The gist of it waé that you're to support
your brothers. |

Q0 But it didn't say you ére to support your brothers and
1£_one brother gets in a fight, everybbdy\else has:to'join in?

A T don't knoﬁ it has those words specifically.

Q 50 YOu reached a conclusion that the rule that you

o
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have to support your krothers means if one brother gets.in a
fight you must join in?
A I believe there's verbiage in there about protecting
your brother in.a fight or something to that effect;
Q You don't remember exactly though?
A Not the exact verbiagé, no.
MR. SCHONFELD: Nothing further at this time.
THE COURT: Okéy. Cross?

MR. FREY: Thank vou, Judge.

CROSS-EXAMINATION
BY MR. FREY:
Q Let's talk about the Laughlin incident and then the

wedding chapel incident. With respect to Laughlin, it's true

Mr. Gdnzales was not on scene: Can we agree on that?

A I don't believe so.. I QOn't know eve;ybody who was on
‘sScene.

Q. If T told you that he was.ﬁot on sceﬁé, you would have

no basis to contradict that} though?

A - No.

Q So to your knowledge, he was not on scene?

A No.

Q Same is true with respect to.the wedding_chapéli

Mr. Gonzalez was not on scene?

A No,

(O
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Q Nor was any Vagos?
A No.
Q Same question with respect to the Laughlin incident,

to . your knowledge, noc Vagos was on the scene?

A Not to my knowledge.

" Q And they were not actively engaged in the hostilities?
A . No.
Q So you would agree both incidents, the wedding chapel

and Laughlin, had nothing do with the Vagos?

A ' It -- no, it didn't involve the Vagos, no.

0 Neither incident had anything to do with the Vagos?

A Not te my knowledge, no.

Q Neither incident had.anything to do with Mr. Gonzalez?

A Not to my knowledge.

Q  Let's talk about ?our law enforceﬁent experience. You
reference that you initially started out as a patéol officer, 1
believe in Idaho?

A | Correct.

Q Wheré ybu had contacts on an occasicnal basis, I
suppose, with purported members of outlaw motorcycle gangs as
detefmined, fair?

A Correct.

Q Was the;e anythiﬁg special about your duties as a

patrcl officer that caused you to cqme-into'contact with outlaw

motorcycle gang members more than any of your colleagues?
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A No, not out there.

0 S0 you were just a regular patrol officer --
A Correct.
o} -- that on occasion would come into contact with

people you thought belongéd to cne of these organizations?

A Correct.

Q Just like any other patrol officer?

A Correct.

0 You weren't investigating them in any special
capacity? |

A - No.

0 But you changed assignments in 2002 -- I'm sorry,

2001, true?

B Right. I was patrol.officer in Idaho in 19294 to 'S96.
And then in '96, I joined The Metro, Las Vegas ﬁetropglitan |
Police bebartment and did change assignments to a problem
solving-unit in.2001.'

Q - So'you went from patrol officer to a member of the

problem solving unit in 20017

A Correct .
Q After you had joined Metro?
A . Yes,

Q Now, you stayed with that unit from 2001 to 2002,
correct?

A Correct.
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0 and in that capacity you first had occasion to
irivestigate outlaw motorcycle gangs?

A Yes.

Q And then there's a lull in your experience because you

changed to the organized crime bureau in 2002, true?

A No, I'm sorry. I changed to the vice section in 2002.
0 I'm sorry. . The vice section?

A Correct.

o] Corréct. And there was a lull in your investigatiwve

activities with respect to outlaw motorcycle gangs; is that

true?
A That's true.
0 In fact, you weren't a case agent from the years 2002

to 2008 with respect to any outlaw motqrcycle gang
investigation, true?

A Correct.

0 .Yoq only resumed ybur inveStigative duty with respegt
to those organizations in 20107

A True.'

0 And that was in yoﬁr capécity-as a member of the
organized crime bureau, -correct?

A Yes.

Q And then yoﬁ changed assignments again within the
organized crime bureau fo investigating Mexican drug cartels?

A It's actually not a change cf assignments. It's just

K
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a change of -- there's several squads within the organized
crime bureau/criminal intelligence section. Like I said, I

didn't even move desks, I just Changed my investigative focus

to organized crime -- sorry, Mexican cartels.
Q Shifting away from outlaw motorcycle gangs?
A My invest -- yes, my focus.
Q With the exception of the wedaing chapel incident,

since 2010 have you been a case agent on any outlaw motorcycle

géng investigation?

A Yes.

0 'In addition to the wedding chapel incident?

A Yes.

Q_ What were those investigations?

A As I said before, the Banditos-Flaming Knights

stabbing, the Banditos Veréus the TIron Order which is where
they cut the patch off. Now I've lost my -- I was the case
agent on the Vagos prohibited person -- prohibited person with
a firearm case regarding Ramon Ramirez. And as far aé actual
case agent, not ﬁust assisting on the case, I believe thosg
were my main cases. Like T saidr a lot of my duties were
foliowing up tips and surveillance and.things of that nature as
well.

Q And you were the case agent on the Banditos case and

| the Vagos prohibited peison case after 20107

A Oh, yes, yes. I -- oh, hold on. WNo. Not after 2010.

21
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I'm sorry. I'm scorry. That was during my time from 2008 to
2010.
Since 2010, I -have not been the case agent on an
cutlaw motércycle gang case.
Q With respect to the Vagos prohibited person case, what

was the disposition in that matter?

A He pled and was deported.

Q There's no gang enhancement filed in that case,
correct?

A That's correct .

Q And Certainly no gang enhancement conviction in fact,
correct?

Ly Correct.

Q But yef you maintain it was club related?

R Well; Yes- He was at a club function.

MR. HALL: Excuse me. Excuse me for interrupting,

Cbunsel.. |

Your Honor, we during our telephone_conference
indicated that we ﬁanted to call Officer Donvalos. He's not
going fo_be available tomorrow. These two witnesses took a
little'lpnger\ ‘I don't know if we want to stop here, bring in
Donvaleos, or address that issﬁe at this time.

THE_COURT: It's —--

MR. HALL: Quarter to 5}00.

THE COURT: T deon't know how you can get direct and

A
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cross done,

MR. HALL: Well, then can we put him on the 1list for I

guess the 29th is when we next have --

MR. FREY: Your Honor, I wasn't privy to the

conversation in chambers, the conference call. I don't know

who Donvalos is or what he pertains to.

THE COURT: It was Ms. --

MS. PUSICH: Your Honor, I was just speaking with Mr.

Schonfeld, we don't remember that name either.

MR. STEGE: Céballos.

MS. PUSICH: That one is familiar.
MR. SCHONFELD: That one is familiér.
MR. STEGE: And brief.

THE COURT: T don't think it will be 13 minutes brief;

right? So did you want to bring -- did you want to bring him

in or hawve a short break and go ask him if he's awvailable. Our

néit time to be together is tomorrow?.

tomorrow.

THE COﬁRT CLERK: Tomorrow. And then the 29th.

THE COURT: Tomorrow. 3o yoﬁ know he's not available
Is that whét you're telling me.

MR, STEGE: Let me confer with him.

MR. HALL: Can he be excused to go confer?

THE COURT: Absolﬁtely.

MR. HALL: Thank you.

Excuse the interruption. He‘s‘good to go.

'QLUk\é
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THE COURT: Okay. Good. Good.
MR. FREY: I need to find my place now, Your Honor.
THE COURT: The court reporter can read the last
question you had. |
{Record read.)
BY MR. FREY:
Q. Now, moving on to the second incident that you
referred to.—— actually during the cross-examination of
Mr. Villagrana's counsel with respect to the Vagos and drug
trafficking, do you recall that reference?
A I dén‘t recall exactly what were we tdlking about.

Q This is a case I believe you maintained you were a

case agent on?

A 0Oh, oh, ch. It was a short—term case‘investigating
narﬁotics trafficking.
Q Was that before 2010 or after 20107
A That was prior to 2010.
Q Prior te 2010.
And what was the disposition of thét matter?

A I actually left the squad before that case -- that

case is -- well —-- that's not true. I -~ that case ~- I closed

that case prior to leaving the squad because T hadn’'t gathered
enough evidence to go forward.
Q And again, what was the disposition of that matter?

A Pardon me?

T
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Q What happened in court? Did it go to court?
A No, no, no. I closed the investigation.
0 Meaning you didn't forward the case on to the District

Attorney's.Office for prosecution?

A Correct, correct,

Q If I represented to you that thé Vagos are a nconprofit
organization, would you have any basis to contradict that?

i Not any basis to contradict it, no.

] Listed in your CV and based upon your direct
examination, you mention that vyou are a member of various
outlaw motorcycle gang investigator corganizations?

A I have attended those and I was a member, ves.

Q  And how many times héve'you-attended those

conferences, correct?

A Correct.
0 How many times have you attended those conferences?-
A The Southern California Outlaw Motorcycle Gang

Tnvestigators Conference I only attended in 2002. And the
International Outlaw Motorcycle Gang Investigators Conference I
attended in 2008.

0 So you attended two conferences separated by six

years?
A Correct. The conferences, yes.

o At those conferences, did yocu have occasion to hear an

individual by the name of Jorge Gil-Blanco present?

FALD
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A I do not recall if he presented at the international
or not. I don't -- I don't recall him at the Southern
California Outlaw Motorcycle Gang Investigators Course, but

that was in 2002. I would have to look over my training

materials.
Q But you can't recall right now?
A T can't.
Q With respect to your attendance there, that's an

opﬁortunity for you and individualé like you who do the same
thing to share intelligence, true?

A ?rue.

0 and in fact, the presenters there do actively share
intelligence. In fact, that's the subject of many of the
presentations you see?

A _ True.

Q Is it your practice to take that material and go and.
independeﬁtly corroborate what you receive?

A If it -- if it has Somé Las Vegas nexus, yes, I would
probably_spend the time to do that.

Q So for_example, if you -- if a presenter presents to
you a report.from an officer, I imagine that happens?

A Perhaps redacted copies or from investigations case

-summaries, things of that nature.

Q Right. And those reports may contain the contents of

that officer's conversation with} let's say, an open informant?

24
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A Yes.

Q Do you go cut and actively seek out the informant?
A No.

Q So you do not independently corroborate the

informant's statement?

A In a case like that, no.

Qo In a case like Yavapie, did you go out and
independently corroborate the witness statements that you

reviewed or did not review? I don't know with respect to that

incident.
A No.
0 And, in fact, all you know about that Yavapie incident

is what you heaxrd from other outlaw motorcycle gang

investigators, true?

A And in the media, yes.

Q So the media.supplies your information, correct?

A I use that as a source of some of it.

] As well as books?

A Books, other investigafors.

Q Documentaries?

A Documentaries. Again, my contacts within the ouflaw

motorcycle gang investigators. All of those things.

0 But as you'wve testified vou don't independently

| corroborate, necessarily, what you get from other cutlaw

motorcYcle gang investigators?
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A Not if -- not unless I was investigating something
germane to that.

Q And how about the books that you read? You do not
independently corroborate the contents of the books that you
read?

A In truth I have at one point, some contents. I've met
some of the people, and in fact I was interviewed by the author
of two of those books, Julian Sheer for The Road to Hell. And
he has two books, Angels of Death. I was interviewed by him at
the international --

MR. FREY: Object. My question is whether he
independently'corroborated the confent of the books that you
read. Now he's talking about.his intervieﬁ, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Ckay. So he said that he has at some
peint some contents, "I met with sﬁme of the people and in fact
I was interviewed.“ I'm not sure how that goes to
corroboration. Was that before or after the book was written?

MR. FREY: I have no idea. I think either way, it's
irrelevant and nonresponsive to the question.

THE COURT: It-was somewhat responsive because you're
askiﬁg about the boock in corroboration. If the interview is in
the book that he reviews later; it's corroborated, right?

MR. FREY: It sound like he's corrcoborating himself.

THE COURT: He knows the answer. I don't know. I

';don't know the answer.
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MR. FREY: I understand. T guess he can bomplete the
answer --—

THE COURT: Then we can decide.

THE WITNESS: I apologize. TIn one of the books he
télks about a Canadian Hells Angel who I later met at a Las
Vegas event and only a small part of corroboration, but just
corroborated his travels and his asspciates within the Hells
Angels.

BY MR. FREY:

Q And you meeting him at that event was just by sheer
Juck?

A Absolutely;

0 You didn't actively seek him out for purposes of

corrcborating anything?

A No.

0 And he was a member of the Hells Angels?

A . Yes.

Q With respect to the books that you've liéted in your

CV, those books are commercially avallable?

A Yes.
0 Where did you purchase those books?
A In different places. I've purchased them at Amazon,

in book stores, and from the author.
Q With respect to the documentaries that you list, T

should back up. You do list documentaries that you reviewed in
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your CV?
A I don't think T list them by name.
0 Would the documentaries be documentaries produced by

The History Channel?

A The History Channel —-—

Q By National geographic?

A Yasg,

0 You wouldn't consider Sons of Anarchy to be a

documentary, would you?

A No.

Q And those documentaries are quote/unguote commercially
available? |

A Yes.

Q - 50 anybody behind me in the audieﬁce could have

reviewed those as well, right?
A Correct.
0 So anybody that would sit as a juror could have

reviewed those, correct?

A Correct.
Q Because they are commercially available?
A Yes.

THE CCURT: But not while they are a juror.
MR. FREY: Not while they are a jurocr. That's

correct.

/17
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BY MR. FREY:

Now, Mr. Sher you referenced his name as author to

books that are listed on your CV?

A

Q

Levine.

A

Q

Yes.

And Mr. Sher is not a tenured academic?

I do not know his full background.

He is not a Ph.D.?

I don't believe so.

You list another individual author by the namekoff
Do .you know what Mr. Levine's day Jjob is?

I do not know any of his background, no.

If I represented to you that he is a mixed martial

arts referee, would you have any basis to contradict that?

A

Q
A
Q.
evidence
A

Q

I would not.

He's certainly not an academic to your knowledge?.

the

Again, I have no knowledge of his background at all.

But yet you list these books in your CV presﬁmably as

of the material upon which you formulate opinicns?

Part of the material, ves. Part.of my research.

And you wouldn't list a book in there that you didn't

think was irrelevant to the formulation of your opinion,

correct?

A

' If it -- depending if it related to the outlaw

motorcycle gangs or the momentous motorcycle gang'subculture I

would list it.
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Q I see in your CV -- you listed in your CV, in fact
those are the materials you rely upon te render an opinion such

as the opinion that vou rendered in this case?

A Those are some of the materigls, yes.
Q You've never infiltrated the Vagos, have you?
A I have not.

MR. FREY: Your Honor, I apologize. I need to ask a
gquestion. I can't recall whether or not it was answered.
BY MR. FREY:
0 But have you been gqualified as an expert with respect

to outlaw motorcycle gangs previously?

A No.

Q And you have no pﬁblications in this field?
A No.

o] No formal training in the social sciences?
A No.

0 And --

MR, HALL: T think we've been through this line of
questioning. Can we skip it since i1t's already been asked and
answeréd?

MR. FREY: I understand they want to get to their
witness,

THE COURT: Let's not argue about it. I didn't hear
anything about his educational background. Maybe.it was,.but I

didn't hear it. So I'll let you ask the questions.

YR




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
0
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

213

BY MR. FREY:

Q With respect to the social sciences, you have no
formal training in that field, correct?

A Just -- no.

Q ‘Including no formal training in psychology, correcté

¥y Only a high school class.

Q Okay. Not formal training, correct?

A No.

Q ‘Socioclogy?

A No.

0O Same answer, anthropology, correct?

A Corregt.

Q Do you always preface your supplemental reports in an

outlaw motorcycle gang investigation with a narration about the

subculture?
A Always? Not élways, no.
Q But you did in the-Léughlin case?
A Yes. Oh, wait. In the Laughlin case or thé wedding

chapel case? I don't believe in the Laughlin case, I did, no.

Q- In the wedding chapel case vou did?

A Yes.

Q Are you familiar with the term one percenter?
A Yes.

Q You're obviously familiaf with the term_autléw

motorcycle gang?

186




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

214 4

A Yes.

Q And youfre familiar with a three-piece patch, correct?
A Correct.

Q According to your training and experience, three-piece

patch equates to an outlaw motorcycle gang member?

A That i1s how it starts out, yes.

! An cutlaw meotorcycle gang member equates Lo a one
percenter, correct?

A Correct.

THE COURﬁ: Is this = good.place to stop?

MR. FREY: Couple more queétions, Yoﬁr Honor, and then
I will be ready to end.

MR. SCHONFELD: Your Honor, I did have a couple more
gquestions. I caﬁ do it on recross. It's related to the
Arizona rape. I was able to look it up. And maybe that can
refresh his memory, there was no rape allegation. I can follow
up on that.

.MR. FREY: I misrepresented the lengtﬂ of my continued
cross. So, ne, I can't —-—

THE COURT: So we better stqp. We are not subpbsed to

go overtime. We are already overtime. So we are back on it

;again tomorrow morning at 10:30. We'll do this witness and

then Mr. Cisneros, right?
MR. STEGE: Ceballas.

THE COURT: Okay. 8o, sir, we'll see you back in the
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THE WITNESS:

THE COURT:

{Proceedings concluded.)

Thank you.

Court 1s in recess.

215+
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STATE OF NEVADA )

COUNTY OF WASHOE ' )

I, SUSAN CULP, an Official Reporter of the Second
Judicial District Court of the State of Nevada,.in and for the
County éf Washée, State of Nevada, DO HEREBY CERTIFY:

| That I am not.a'relative, employes
or independentwcontractor of counsel to any of the parties, or

a relative, employee or independent contractor of the parties

~involved in the proceeding, or a‘person financially interested

in-the proceedings;

That I was present in Depa;tment No. 4 of the
above-entitled Court on Tuesday, January 14, 2013 and took
verbatim sﬁenotype notes of the proceedings had upon the matter

captioned within, and thereafter transcribed them into
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stenctype notes of said proceedings.

DATED: At Reno, Nevada, this 27th day of Jahuary,

2013.
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RENG, NEVADA, TUESDAY, JANUARY 15, 2013, 10:40 A.M.

-000-

THE COURT: Thank you. Please be seated. Okay.
Let the record reflect the witness is still on the stand. And
I think, Mr. Frey, you're in the middle of your
cross-examination.

MR. FREY: Thank you; Your Honor,

MR, HALL: Your Honor, just for the record, the
exclusionary rule continues? | |

THE COURT: Yes. The exc]usfonary rule has been
invoked and it continues for the rest of the case.

MR, FREY: Can I, judge?

THE COURT: You may.

MR. FREY: Thank you,

CROSS-EXAMINATION RESUMED
BY MR. FREY:
Q Detective Fieselman, we left off talking about the
three-piece patch. Do you remember that?.
A Yes.
a And how that denotes in your terminology outlaw
mdtorcycje:gang membher?

A It can, yes.

4
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Q

An outTaw mdtorcyc1e gang member equating to a One

Percenter?

A

2 P 0 I O

incident,
A
Q

that?
A
Q
Corﬁect?_
A
a

Pardon me?

An outlaw motorcycle gang member --
Yes.

-- equating to a One Percenter?

Yes.

.Now, you did produce a report of the wedding chapel

correct?
Correct.

And as part of that report, you wrote about out1aw

motorcycle gang background and subculture. Do ybu recall

Yes.

And that's actually subheading two in that report,

Correct.

And the testimony we just referred to, that's

consistent with your observations in that section of your

report?
A
Q

Yes,

‘And in that section of your report, you actua]1y

drop a footnote. Do you. recall that?

A

Yes.

5
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A I believe so. I don't recall the exact contents,
but . . . -

Q Do you recall dropping a footnote to refer to the
Blue Knights MC?

A Yes.

Q Aﬁd that's on page 13 of 52, correct?

A Correct.

Q For the record, Bates stamped page number 15,

And according to your knowledge, Blue Nights are
actua]]y.a Taw enforcement motorcycle club. Is that right?
- A That 1is right.

Q Then it would surprise you that the Blue Nights
actually have a three-piece patch? _

A No. As I stated in the report, many 6f the
nonoutlaw clubs ignoring the histdry of the three-hiece patch
have taken a three-piece patch.

Q - So then there is no direct equivalence between a
thrée-piece patch and a One Percenter?

A ._Nol It's one of the -- it's one of the things
that -- in the hisfory of thé three-piece patch, that's how it
started out, but it's not a direct -~ a three-piede patch does
not equal necessarily an outlaw motorcycle gang. |

Q And that would be contradictory td your testimony

6
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previously that a three-piece patch equates to a One

Percenter?
A I believe I indicated it can, yes.
Q Detective Fieselman, with regard to the structure of

the Vagos you recall testifying about that, right?
A Yes.

Q Can you 1identify the national president of the Vagos

| Motorcycle Club?

A The -- when I left the investigative squad on the
bikers, it was Terry the Tramp. I believe now -- I believe

the international president is TaTa, but I don't know his rea1

name .
Q My question ca11éd for the national president?:
A I don't know right now.
Q Now do you know the national sargeant at arms?
A No.
Q Or the nationaj'treasurer?
A.. I do not right now, no.
Q Do you know who the president of the northern Nevada

charter 1s?
A The northern Nevada chafter?
Q Correct. |
A I db not know right.now.
1]

- Do you know if there is a northern Nevada charter?

7
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A The last briefing that I attended, they were -~- I
believe they were in the process of setting one up, but I

don't know if it ever occurred or not.

Q You do not know if there's a northern Nevada
_charter?

A I don't.

Q How many days have you been under subpoena in this
case?

A" I have no jdea. I was subpoenaed several weeks ago.

I don't recall.

Q To be moré'specificﬁ how many days have you been

present in this courthouse waiting to testify in this case?

A Four days total.

Q Does that include today?

A Yes.

Q And two days last week?

A Yes, |

Q And I imagine when you were waiting to testify, you

sat in that horseshoe area outside the courtroom: is that

correct?
A That's correct.
Q And you sat accompanied by other individuals who you

would assume would be testifying here today?

A Yes.
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cases;
A
Q
A

Q

People you recogniied?

Some of them.

From your attendance at conferences?

Some of them.

And some of them you recegnized from working past
is that true?

That's true.

Where you share intelligence, correct?

Correct.

And sitting in that horseshoe area, did you have

occasion to speak with them about the current case that you're

investigating, the wedding chapel case?

A
Q

case?

2 0 2 I

I've spoken to them ahout it, yes.

And you spoke to them Tast week about the case?

I've spoken about my investigation here, yes..

YOUF.investigation with respect to tﬁe wedding
case?

Correct,.yest

Which obviously touches upon your testimdny in this

It -- well, yes,
And you testified fo that on direct exam?
Yes.

That you had investigated that case?

9
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Yes.
In fact, you're the case agent?

Corfect.

2 0 0

And it's really the main reason why you're here
today. correct?

A I believe SO, yes,

Q Okay. And that's the case that you shared
intelligence on with other officers out in the horseshoe area?

A No, I didn't share intelligence on it. I've

discussed it. It's -- you know, the position in court, where

it's heading, things 1like that. But I haven't discussed
what -- I haven't discussed what I would call intelligence,
Tike names or identifying suspects in their cases or anything
like that.

Q. Who did you speak with sbecifica11y?

A Dan Long from homicide, from LVYMPD homicide, I
don't recall speaking at length about it with anyone else,

other than most of them are reasonably familiar with it.

a ﬁid you speak with Dan Long in the presence of
others? |

A No. We spoke on the plane on the way out.

Q | When you were sitting in the horseshoe .area did you

overhear any'other officer speak about cases they have worked

on?

10
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A I'm sure that I did. Not in the horseshoe area.
I -- we spoke about other cases they've worked on while -- I'm
trying to think. I don't think we talked about anything out
here. I -- I was curious, I guess. When we arrived, we
talked about what cases we were here for,

Q  Was that in the District Attorney's office?

A He spoke to the District Attorney about my case,
yes.

| @ So there are two occasions in which you spoke about

the case outside of your testimohy here, correct?

A Yes.

Q .Oﬁe time at the District Attorney's office?

A Yes.

Q And do you know fhat session to be termed "a
pretrial"?

A Yes:

@ Okay. So you pretrialed with the District

| Attorney's office? .

A Correct.
Q And you spoke about the wedding chapel case with

Detective Long on a separate occasion?

A Yes.
Q - On the plane coming out here?
A Yes.

11
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Q Now, hy initial question was whether or not you
overheard other officers talk about their cases in the
horseshoe érea. | |

A Right. And I -- we've talked about random subjects,
but I don't know if it's about their cases. We haven't talked
about their testimony concérning théir cases, but whether it's
their cases they're here about or not. |

Q Did you overhear them talk about cases that related
to outTaw motorcyclie gangs?

A In the horseshoe area, I don't reca11. I don't
think I did.

MR. FREY: Court's indulgence, Judge. Thank you,.
BY MR. FREY:

Q With respect to the pretrial, were you pretrialed
with other officers present?

A No. Oh, that's nbt -- the first -- the first
meeting I had, Dan Long was there.

a And did the prosecution play the wedding chapel
video for you? |

A No.

¢ But you discussed the wedding chapel incident in the
presence of Dan Long; is that true?

A That's true.

Q You referenced your training in outlaw motorcycle

AHH
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gangs at -- beginning with the structured organizations?

A That's -- that's part of the basics that you teach,
yes. |

Q And is part of the basics Tearning the identifying
logo or symbols of any particular club?

A It's one of the things that comes up in training.'
yes.

Q - When you learned about the Hells Angels, one of the
first things you tearned about was the death head, right?

A | Correct,

Q IT you're learning about the Vagos, one of the Tirst

things you're going to learn about is the logos, correct?

A Generally, yes.

Q When you teach courses, is that something that you
teach?

A It -- yeah. 1It's not one of the Tirst things I

teach. But if you have a local c¢club, you're going to show

usually their Togos, so that the investigators know Tocally

|1 what they're looking for.

Q That's a basic element bf any_trafning?
A For mine, yes,
MR. FREY: Pass the witness, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Mr. Hall?

MR. HALL: Thank you, Your Honor,

13




10
11
12
13

14

" 15

16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24

REDIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. HALL:

Q Did anybedy try to influence your testimony or tell
you what to say? |

A No.

Q Did any of the witnesses try to influence your
testimony or tell you what their testimony was about?

A No.

Q A1l right. And did Dan lLong, did he already know
about the wedding chapel case? |

A ._ Oh, yes.

Q@ . I mean he's a detective down in Las Vegas, and I

imagine he's also in the robbery/homicide division; is that

right?
A Yes, he's in the homicide section.
Q So that's a pretty highly publicized case?
A It was, vyes.
. _

A1l right. So pretty much everybody in Las Vegas
knows about the -- '
MR. FREY: Objection, Judge. It's Teading.

 THE COURT: Sustained.

BY MR. HALL:
Q Now, were there guilty pleas in the Laughlin case?
A Yes, there were. ’

14
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Q  How many, do yoﬁ know?

A I believe there were six in the District Court. And
I believe there were six in Federal Court as well.

Q And those.were two felonies involving Assault with a
Deadly Weapon and crimes such as that?

A Yes.

Q A1l right.

MR. FREY: This is beyond.the scope. Nobody
discussed any guilty pleas or {he results of the Laughlin
case. _. |

THE COURT: 1 think the Laughlin case was discussed
in cross. So perhaps that goss to responding to the

cross-examination. You don't have to talk ébout the exact

thing in order for it to be admissible redirect. So I'm going

to overrule the objection.

MR. HALL: Thank you, your Honor.

BY MR. HALL:

Q There was also some discussion regarding Troy Regas;
is that right?
A Troy and Shawn, yes.
Q Troy and Shawn?
MR. FREY: Objecfion.
"THE WITNESS: Or Shawn, yes.

MR. FREY: There was no discussion regarding Troy

quut
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Regas. S0 the question misstates prior testimony and assumes
facts not in evidence.

THE COURT: What was the prior question about Troy
Regas? I don't remember the question.

MR. HALL: I think there was some mention about
Mr. Regas having some weapons in his saddlebags.

MR. FREY: That was Shawn Regas.

MR. HALL: Shawn Regas had some weapons in his
sadd]ebags. |

THE COURT: Okay. So you can ask the guestion about

Shawn Regas.

BY MR, HALL:

Q Do you remember the gquestions regérding Sﬁawn Regas
having guns in his saddlebags when he went to Harrah's?

A Yes.

] ATl right. Did you see Shawn onh the video inside of

Harrah's?

A Yes.

Q And was he engaged in the Tight with the Mongols?
A Yes. |

Q What was his involvement?

A At one point, he was holding up a Mongols member

while the Mcngols member was stabbed.

@ - So he assisted in the Battery with a Deadly Weapoh,

16
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basically, with one of his fellow Hells Angels?

A Yes,

Q A1l right. And that would be consistent -- or would
that be consistent with the code of conduct with respect to
he1p1ng your fellow Hells Angels in battling rival gang
members or fighting with rival gang members?

A It would, vyes.

Q And do members -- or based upon your training,
experience and knowledge of the Hells Angels and Vagos, have
members come and gone from.both outTaw motorcycle géngs and
does the_gang still exist?

A Yes.

MR. FREY: Youf Honor-~~ I'm sorry, I object and

I'd move to strike. That's beyond the écope as it relates to

‘Mr. Gonzalez. I referenced nothing about coming énd going of

members in my cross.

THE COURT: You asked about the structure. So I'm
going to overrule your objection.

THE WITNESS: Yes, there is a_change'in membership.
BY MR. HALL: | |

Q A1l right. And wou]d an example of that be the fact

that Mr, Pettigrew obviously is no 1ongér.w1th us and another
president of the Hells Angels, Papa'Guardado, is also no

longer with us, yet the Hells Angels still continue to exist?
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_A Yes.

Q A1l right.- And I guesé the same thing could be said
for Roger Vialano, who was a member of the Vagos; is that
correct?

A Correct.

MR. FREY: Objection, Your Honor. I made no
reference to Roger Vialano. I understand your ruling there,
THE COURT: -- you gave me that -- I don't remember
you, but I think on cross-examination by Mr. Schonfeld there
waé discussion about Rogér Vialano.
MR. FREY: . I don't helieve in the same sense as
Mr. Hé]] was referring to Mr. Vialano. I be1jeve that he's
referring to Mr. Vialano in the sense that it re]ateé to --
THE COURT: Oh, I'm sure he's.using it for purposes

of ongoing activity when members leave and go. But the

subject matter that was menticned was opened.

MR. FREY: I don't recall that. I note my objection
for the record,
THE COURT: I do remember it. Overruled.
BY MR. HALL:
Q Would you characterize both the Vagos and the Hells
Angels as a sophisticated organization?
A Yes.

- MR. FREY: Objection to characterization, Your
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Honor. And it's leading.
THE COURT: It is. Sustained.
BY MR. HALL:

Q How ﬁou1d you characterize the Hells Angels and
Vagos organizations?

A I would characterize them as both highly structured
organizations.

Q Now, there were some questions on cross-examination
regarding some of the charitable activities that the Hei]s
Angels are involved in. Do you remember that?

A Yes.

@ ATl right. HNow based upon your training and
experience, do you have an opinion as to why the Hells Angels
may engage in that type of activity?
| MR. SCHONFELD: Your Honor, I'm going to object. It
calls for speculation. |

THE COURT: Sustained.
MR. SCHONFELD: Lack of foundation. Thank you.
BY MR. HALL: -

Q Po you have an opinioh as to whether or-hot that
type of activity, charitable activity, would be used to defray
police 1nVestigat10né_into their activities and promote their
public persona? |

MR. SCHONFELD: Your Honor, I object. Now it's the
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same question, but it's leading.

THE COURT: Sustained.

| BY MR. HALL:

Q Are you aware of any efforts by the Hells Angels to
promote their persona or perception to the pubTic?
A Yes.
MR. SCHONFELD: Yduf Honor. You know, Your Honor,

you get two or three leading questions that get sustained and

obviously the witness now knows what Mr. Hall is trying to

elicit. &o it's been going on since yesterday, and also went
on Tast week. So I think it's clearly improper to continue to
suggest the answer to the witness, I have a leading objection
sustained, and then get the witness to answer the question by
asking a clearly opeh-ended question when the witness knows
what Mr. Hall is Tooking fqr. That's éxact1y what;s
happening.

THE COURT: I agree. It's extremely frUstrating to
you. I don't know of an evidentiary ruling that would
preclude a person for askjng the form of the question
inappropriately and then correcting the form of the question.
If you can think of an evidentiary rule that doesn't allow you
to do that, I'11 listen fto it. But I don't know of it.

It's overruled. |

1
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BY MR, HALL:

Q You may answer.the question.

A Yes, I'm familiar with activities that they engage
in for purposes of publicity, of making themselves appear as
benevolent organizations and attempting to counter news
reports or pub1icity regarding things 1ike Laughlin and the
wedding chape] where they were involved in violent acts.

Q Do you have an opinion as to whether or not the

Laughlin incident and the wedding chapel incident would harm

the image of the Hells Angels?

MR. SCHONFELD: Objection, calls for speculation.

THE COURT:_ Sustained.

MR. HALL: 1It's calling for his opinion.

THE COURT: His opinion as to whether or not it
would harm their reputation in the community; he has no
special knowledge about that. So it's improper.

MR. HALL: Okay.

BY MR. HALL:

Q Do you hé&e an opinion as to whether or not the
He]]s_Ange]s fighting with Vagos'wou1d have raised their
status or individual status within the dut]aw motbrcyc]e gang?

MR. SCHONFELD: Your Honor, I'm going to ohject at
this point. It's beyond the scope. |

THE COURT: I'm nmot -- I don't think it's beyond the
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scope 1in subject matter, but I do believe that the question is
vague, because I don't know what we are talking about. So I'm
going to ask that you rephrase the question where I'm not
sure. Whatever, whoever, ever fights, raises their status. I
don't know what your question is about.

| MR. HALL: Okay.

BY MR. HALL:

@ Are there_~- are you aware of a way that a prospect
or member can improve their status within an outlaw motorcycle
gang, such as the Hells Angels or Vagos?

A Well, based on my knowledge and experience in that
and talking to -- falking to people who have been in clubs or
hang afound clubs, the prospects and the members are expected
to conduct themselves in a_certain manner in order to stay
with the organization. Those things include, you know,

mundane things Tike being on time for meetings, attending

‘meetings, regularly attending runs, keeping their bike in good

working order, and things 1like that. But it also, they get
actual -- in the case of the Hells Angels that I investigated,
and also in cases that I was present for in Sturgis, South

Dakota, where I attended that run, and in the Banditos case,

those outlaw motorcycle gang members were actually given

patches when they -- we would see them come up on their flash

patches on their cuts following violent incidents. 1In the

22
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Banditos Flaming Knights case that I worked, the Banditos that
were involved showed up Tater with a patch.

MR. SCHONFELD: Your Honor, I'm going to object that
anything the Banditos did is irrelevant and it's beyond the
scdpé. |

MR. FREY: I jdin the objectioh, Judge. And --

THE COURT: Okay. Sustained. I don't know where
the relevance is. You may be able to establish it, but you
haven't. |

| MR. HALL: Okay.
BY MR. HALL:

Q Now, with respect to the fight at Laughlin, did the
Laughlin Tight raise the status of the Hells Angels that were
seen engaged in battie with Mongols? |

A Yes. I am aware from the after-case briefing that
some of the Hells Angels involved received their full patch,
the prospects who were involved received their full patch if
they conducted themselves well. And the Hells Angels as an
organization, more or Tess were responding to the disrespect
they fe]f from the Vagos according.to how -- well, what the
Hells Angels perceiVed as disrespect and some confrontations
they.had befofe the Hells Angels used the -- they went over
there to protect their status to show that they weren't going

to be confronted in a disrespectful manner and not answer.
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Q A11 right. And would the same be true for the Vagos
in terms of respect?

MR. FREY: Judge, I'm certainly going to object now.
It's clearly beyond the scope of my cross which was fairly |
Timited to very clear cut and Comparthenta1ized subject matter
areas.

THE COURT: It is. We do not have a jury here. The
remedy is to let him reopen. So I'm not sure where he's
going. |

MR. FREY: Your Honor, I.thought the remedy would be
to prohibit him from inquiring into areas he didn't cover on
direct examination.

THE COURT: Well, that is, but if there's no bias
you let people recpen.

MR. FREY: Certainly we're biased, Your Honor,.
because he's going through areas he didn't cover on direct
examination, so he can bolster the case that he never.made in
his direct.examihafioﬁ. |

THE COURT REPORTER: Mr. Frey.

MR. FREY: Sorry. _

THE COURT REPORTER: Sorry. S1ow down, please.

THE COURT: Hé can bolster the case he didn't make
as new information. This is a pretrial hearing. .This is not

in front of a jury where the final resolution is going to be

24
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made. I haven't made any ruling with regard to the
admissibi]ity of any of the evidence,

This is an evidentiary hearing. So I need to hear
the evidence. So .I'm going to let him go beyond, somewhat
beyond,'if he asks to reopen. It's.essential, S0 I'm just
asking you to please let us get this evidence out.

MR. FREY: Your Honor, I understand. I
understand --

THE COURT: So I sustain the objection. If he asks
to reopen, I'11 probab]y tet him.

MR. HALL: May I reopen for this purpose of --

THE COURT: How many purposes are you going to ask

to reopen, Mr. Hall? How many questions do you have that you

didn't ask?

MR. HALL: We're talking about code of conduct
during cross-examination and the fighfs between Vagos and
Hells Angels. This is one of the issues that came up,
according to my notes, during cross-examination, whether or
not these fights that these outlaw motorcycte gang mehbers
typically engage in raiée their sfatus if they prove their
mettle by --

THE COURT: Okay. What in the cross doészthis refer
to? '

MR. HALL: Well, we talked about Laughlin. We
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talked about the wedding chapel. And in this case we have the
Hells Angels and Vagos Tighting each other. And he has some
expertise with respect to the Vagos. So my point is, you
know, does engaging in a'fight raise a person’'s standing or
status inside the gang.

THE COURT: What did --

MR. HALL: So it's part of the gang code that we
discussed during direct examination of this witness --

THE COURT: Okay. But if yoﬁ just --

MR. HALL: -- and other witnesses as well. |

THE COURT: If you discussed it in direct, you don't
heed to do it now in redirect, unless he respond -;

MR. HALL: We can move on. 1I'1] move on.

THE COURT: So I guess your objection was sustained
and he's not asking to reopen.

MR. FREY: Thank you.
BY MR. HALL:

Q Do you have -- let me give you a hypothetical.

‘Mr. Villagrana was in possession of a transcript of the

LaughTih grand jury proceedings, as well as disks containing

| video of the Laughlin melee, as well as ATF records that dealt

with confidential informants that the ATF was using to
infiltrate the Hells Ange1s; Do you have an opinion as to why

he might be in possession of those materials?
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MR. SCHONFELD: Objection. Compound, beyond the
scope, calls for speculation.

"THE COURT: A hypothetical question can be compound -
and dealing with more than one element. So I'm overruling on
that ground. The other grounds were asked and answered,

MR. SCHONFELD: Beyond the scope.

THE COURT:. Beyond the scope; overruled. But with
regard to speculation, sustained. -

BY MR. HALL:
| Q Based upon your training and experience, do Hells
Angels engage.in countersurveillance of lTaw enforcement?
A | Yes.
MR. SCHONFELD: Objection, beyond the scope.

THE COURT: I can't remember at this point if it

‘was.,

MR. SCHONFELD: Your Honor, his previous withess
from the Oildale case, which talked about the ATF files and
the search warrant and that type of stuff.  This witness
didn't address any of that. This is completely beydnd the
scope., |

THE COURT: What about in your cross, did you raise
issues? |

MR. SCHONFELD: Nothing about that. I did with the

first witness yesterday, not with this witness.
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THE COURT: I'm going to -~ I'm sorry, I don't

remember. I'm not disagreeing with you, but I don't remember.

| MR. HALL: I'm going to ask to reopen for this
Timited purpose, based upon the fact that_he's famiTliar with
Laughlin and Mr. Villagrana had Laughlin materials. I thought
I asked some information on direct, but -

THE COURT: If you already asked it, though, it
would be cumulative and asked and answered, but if you haven't
asked it, I'11 let you ésk that, - The quesfion that was
objected to was whether or not they conducted
countersurveillance. I'11 allow that question.

THE WITNESS:. The answer is yes, they do.

BY MR. HALL:

Q | All right. And would possessfon of those materials
be indicative of countersurveillance that'wou1d be
conducted by Hells Angels?

A Yes.

MR. SCHONFELD: Objection., Assumes facts not in
evidence, beyond the scope, specd1at10n.

MR. HALL: Well, the facts are --

THE COURT: Counsel, that's argument. You get the
facts in. Then you get to argue what it means. But we don't
need an expeft to tell us that.

MR. HALL: Okay. You're right. It is quite
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obvious. Thank you. No further questions.
MR, SCHONFELD: Your Honor, if I have --
THE COURT: Yes.

MR. SCHONFELD: Thank you.

RECROSS-EXAMINATION
BY MR. SCHONFELD:

Q Detective, since yesterday, I spoke to you in front
of the District Attorney and advised you or suggested that you
refresh your memory in reference to your testimony that you
recalled one rape case involving the Hells Angels. Do you
remember that conversation?

A Yes.

Q And did you in fact refresh your memery and confirm
or dispel your belief that the Arizona case you were referring
to involved allegations of rape by members of the He]]s.
Angels?

A I did. It was actually kidnap and murder. I was

thinking of other instances of sexual assault allegations.

Q So with that part of your testimony now cohfirmed to
be inaccurate, y&u have not testified as to one single rape
allegation or cohviction related to a member of the Hells
Angels; yes or no?

A No, I did --
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Q Am T correct?

A No. There was an allegation in Missoula where I
attended the USA run in 2008 of a sexual assault.

Q That's the one you testified you didn't know if
anyone was arrested even, correct?

A No. He was arrested. 1 didn't know if he was
charged with rape. |

. Q Okay. That's --

A But he was investigate -- the sexual assault was.
allieged.

Q So you cannot testify as to -- without adding
additional information that maybe you researched overnight, I
was asking you as of your knowTedge as of yesterday, aside
from the case in Missoula where you don't even know if an
individual was charged with this rape, you couldn't testify as
to one single Hells Angels' rape charge, correct, as of
yesterday?

A Rape charge?

G Yes.

A No. Just the investigation,
Q That was included in your curr16u1um.vitae that

Hells Angels members commit rape, correct?

A Yes, that's crimes that -- yes. I've received
information that they are -- that there has been alleged
30
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sexual assaults, vyes.

Q But you couldn't testify as to any single charge as
of yesterday, correct?

A Not as of yesterday, no.

'Q Shawn Regas was never charged in State Court related
to the incidents at the Laughlin River Run; is that correct?

A In State Court?

Q Yes.

A I don't recall if he was charged in State Court or
Federal Court.

Q Shawn Regas had all charges against him in Federal
Court dismissed, correct?

A I'm not sure. But I -- I know that many of them
did. I-don't.know it Shawn did or not.

Q@ . Shawn Regas was not convicted of one sfng1e
allegation of criminal conduct retated to his participation or

alleged pérticipation in the LaUgh1in River Run incidents,

correct?
A I don't know for sure.
Q Based on your tfaining and experience, isn't it true

that members of the Hells Angels from various charters share
information on cases so that they can identify witnesses that
may.have exculpatory evidence, correct?

MR. HALL: <Calls for speculation,
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MR, SCHONFELD: Well, Your Honor, this was
completely opened over my objection on redirect where he
talked about his countersurveillance.

THE COURT: He]], the form of your question is
speculative. Sustained. )

BY MR. SCHONFELD:

- Q You testified on redirect regarding members of the
Hells Angels being in possession of defense items from other
cases. Do you remember that?

A Yes.

Q Isn't it true that members share that 1hformat10n'to
ass%st each other in the defense of their cases in court?

A Honestly, I have never seen members do that. The
defense attorney‘investigators that I know do that and the
defense attorneys will share that information. But the
suspects themse]&es don't share that information, that I've
ever experienced, for purposes of fTinding exculpatory
evidence, no, -

Q You haven't talked to other investigators or
intelligence officers who have conveyed that type of
information to you? |

A Not concerning exculpatory evidence, no.

Q How about concerning being able to identify, for

example, 50 people on a video?
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A What's the question?

Q The question is, for example, in the Laughlin case,
you would agree with me that there were, I think according to
your testimony, at Teast 30 members of the Hells Angels; is
that correct?

'A There were 30 motorcycles, yes.

Q Okay. You would agree with me that not every member
of the Hells Angels knows every other member, correct?

A I COU]dﬁ't testify to that. I know that as part of
their customs, they go -- the reason the prospects have to go
to the USA Run 1is to meet every qther member, so that they are
known throughout the club. o

Q So the USA Ruhs.have 2,000 péop]e, memberé of the
Hells Angels attending them?

| A No, they don't -- not every member has to attend,
bﬁt prospects.have to attend in order to meet members.

Q So if the prospect attends, how would fhey meet the
members that aren't present, because not everyone has to
attend? - |

A ~True. I'm sfmp]y saying that part of the customs
are to get those people known throughout.the organization.

Q So there would be some membérS'fhat they don't get
to meet, right? | - |

A Probably, yes.
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Q And 1T those members happen to be on a video and the
defendant in that case doesn’t recognize them, how would they
be able to figure out who the member is --

MR. HALL: Objection. Argumentative, speculative.

THE COURT: I think he's already testified to thé
identifying garments that people wear?

MR. SCHONFELD: ‘No, I'm talking about witnesses,
Your Henor. I can proffer to the Court that the reason videos
are circulated 15 there;s members that other people don't
know. So you have a percipient witness to an event that you
want to be able to identify, so you can say oh, maybe we
should talk to Joe from wherever.

THE COURT: I don't think he's expressed any
expertise in khowing why they do that. You might know why
they do that.

| MR. SCHONFELD: He testified regarding what he
thought was countersurvei]]ance, Your Honor. o

‘"THE COURT: Well, actué11y I didn't Tet him testify

‘to the videotape -- or to the hypothetical that Mr. Hall

asked. I sustained the objection.
MR. SCHONFELD: He did testify regardihg whaf he
calls couhtersurVei]]ance, Your Honor. |
THE COURT: Not with specifics.
MR. SCHONFELD: Okay. So the objection is sustained
34
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then?

THE COURT: Yes.
BY MR. SCHONFELD:

Q You testified regarding your conversations with
other officers or you hearing other officers while waiting for
court. Do you remember that?

A Yes.

Q@ . And you were specific to state.that you did not hear
discussions fegarding other incidents while {n the horseshoe
area. Do you remember that?

A Yes.

Q Where else did you hear conversations ébout other
people's cases or investigations?

A I've heard -- regarding this specifically?

Q Regarding -- let me rephrase it.

From the time you got on the plane last week to fly
to Las Vegas this morning, tell me where else you heard
officefs discussing their investigations of the Hells Angels
or the_Vagos?

A We haven't rea]Ty discussed-1nvestigafions; more
just What case we were here in town for.

Q@  Where did that occur?

A Once at the airport and once at dinner,

Q  Where did you go for dinner?
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A The buffet at the ET1 Dorado. I wouldn't recommend

it. No. I'm just kidding.

Which night was that?

Well, we went to the buffet last night, ahd --

Whe went last night?

Mike from San Jose.

Is that Mike Ceballos?
" Yes. |

And what did you guys'discuss?

-l = . = e I =

Quite simply that, that I was here -- he asked me
again -- I think he asked me, "Aren't you here or didn't you
1nvestigate the wedding chapel?” And I asked him what he
investigated. And he stated that he is -- he does biker
intelligence within San Jose and was part of the -- I believe
part of the investigation of a shooting at a_cemetery.'.

Q Did he tell you the réason he had been subpdenaed as
a witness in this case?

A No.

Q Did you t§11 him or obviously he had an
Qnderstandihg as to the reason you were Sproenaed as a
withess? |

A I think it's understood that we were both subpoenaed
for the same reason.

Q When I say "the reason,” I mean the incidents that
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you anticipated would be discussed while on the witness stand?

A No. We didn't discuss testimony or --

Q Not what I asked.

A -- or what we were expected to --

Q The somebody matter of what you would be testifying

to.
A I think we both understood that we would be
testifying about our cases.

Q And you obviously shared with each other what your

cases were?:

A Yeah..

- @ Any other -- what about Tast week, did you have
similar discussions with any other.witnesses in this case?

A I ddn‘t believe so. Again, because -- because I
éftend the biker meetings and things, most of these cases I've
either heard of before or, you know, know a 1ittle bit about
or at least know who fs investigating them.

Q  Had you ever met Officer Ceballas prior to.yesterday
or prior to being subpoenaed as a witness in this case?

A No. |

Q | ‘Did any member of the District Attorney's Office
{nstruct you at any po{nt in time not fo discuss-the'subject
matter of your testimony with other witnesses?

A Of our testimony, yes.
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Q When were you given that admonishment?

A Really the very first'day, I beliéve, when we
were -- you knﬁw, we were -- I think the first day. I don't
recall the exact date and time. But it's a given, you don't
discuss what your testimony is on the stand.

Q Whatfs your understanding of the exclusionary rule?

A It-excludes people who may be witnesses from the
courtroom so that they cannot overhéar testimbhy. And it also
bars you from speaking about testimony you've given on the
stand.

Q When you went for dinner last night, that was after |
you had already been concluded on direct examination and my

cross-examination and you were subject to cross-examination

~from Mr. Gonzalez's counsel; is that correct?

A Correct. And I didn't discuss testimony.

@  But you discussed the wedding chapel case wifh
detective or Officer Ceballos, correct?

A I told him I waé the 1nvest1gatof of fhat case. - He_
was familiar with the case.

Q And then you talked about some of the facts;

correct?
A No.
Qa  You just said, I'm here fdr thé wedding chapel case,

and that was it?
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A As I said, he was éware of the case. I don't know
if he had seen it on the news or not, but I believe he waé
aware of the case. We didn't -- we didn't talk about case
facts.

0] What was the extent of the conversation related to
the wedding chapel case at the buffet last night?

A Just simply that that was the case that I was a case
agent for. | |

Q  And that's it, nothing more?

A I don't recall anything more, no.

Q And at no point in time did you tell officer or

Detective.Ceba11os.that you couldn't discuss anything related -

to that case, correct?

A Actually, I did. When we first sat down, I actually

said it. I wouldn't .- I just predicatéd our conversation
with, "I can't discuss my testimony.” And then we started
eating. |

Q And ta]king'about-the reason you were here?

A No. He -- no. Like I said, we d{séussed the cases

that we had done.

Q Was anybody else present at dinner?

A No.
Q Do you know an Officer Kirby?
A Yes, but I can't remember which one he is. I
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believe so,

Q Have you ever talked to him?

A At the.risk of answering a question with a question,
was he here?

Q Last week.

A Then I probably at Teast introduced myself.

Q When you were sitting in the horseshoe last week,
did you hear officers or overhear officers talking about some
of their interactions with either members of the Hells Angels
or the Vagos? |

A No. When I finally -- because I didn't come to this

horseshoe until 1ate on the first -- late on the first day,

and there wasn't anybhody throughqut, really. And it was --

actually it was right after that that -- it was right after
that tﬁét dur{ng the break that DA Hall came out aﬁd said,
"Don't discuss testimony." |
MR. SCHONFELD: I have nothing further at this time,
Your Honor. | |
THE COURT: Mr. Frey.

MR. FREY: Thank you.

RECROSS - EXAMINATION
BY MR. FREY: | |

Q You recall statihg when I began my cross-examination
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that the Vagos had nothing to do with the Laughlin incident,
correct?

MR. HALL: Asked and answered.

THE COURT: I'm going to overrule it because of one
of his answers to your questions.

MR. HALL: GOkay.

MR. FREY: Thank you.

THE WITNESS: That they had nothing to do with
LaughTin; they were not present in Laughlin to my knowledge,
no.
BY MR. FREY:

Q During your testimony; if you recall, you mentioned
the Vagos. And perhaps it was a mﬁstake and you meant to
mention the Mongols, but if you ment{oned the Vagos in
connection with the Laughlin case that would have been a
mistake?

A Yes, if I did. I don't recall the question that I
would have said that about.

Q But if you mentioned the Vagos in connection with

| the Laughlin case that would have been a mistake?

A If it was indicating that théy would have been a
part of it, yes, it would have been a mistake.
MR. FREY: No further questions.

THE COURT: Anything further, Mr. Hall?
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MR, HALL: (Shakes head.}

THE COURT: I don't think we dealt with this witness
with the issues that we dealt with before until your recross.
Is that your memory? _

MR. SCHONFELD: Actua]]y, codefendant's counsel
raised those issues initially. Then in my recross I expanded
on them.

THE COURT: So if you want to go into those areas

‘that's where I think most of the recross was.  And you are

entitled to go into those areas if you want. But you don't

have to,
MR. HALL: Just briefly.
FURTHER REDIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. HALL:
Q During your course of being here as a witness for

these hearings regarding a gang enhancement, has anybbdy tried
to fnf1uence your festimony or provided you with other
person's testimony?-
A No.
'Q  Have you seen anybody else, any other witness engage

in that type of activity where they were trying to influence

‘or inform another witness of what was'going on in the

courtroom in violation of the rule of exclusion?
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No.
THE COURT:

Anything else?

May this witness be excused?

MR. SCHONFELD: Yes, Your Honor.

MR. FREY: Yes.

THE COURT:

Any objection?

MR. HALL: No objection.

THE COURT:
THE WITNESS:
THE COURT:

MR. STEGE:

THE COURT:

You may step down. You're excused,
Thank you.
Go ahead and call your next withess.
Mike Ceballos.
(Witness sworn.)

You may proceed.

MICHAEL CEBALLOS,

called as a witness by the plaintiff herein,

being first duly sworn, was examined

and

BY MR. STEGE:

Q
A

testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION

Sir, will you state and spell your name.

My first name is Michael. Last name is Ceballos,

C-E-B-A-L-L-0-8,
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Q You're a police officer with the San Jose Police

-Department -- San Jose Police Pepartment; is that correct?
A That's correct.
Q How Tong have you been a police officer?
A Five years.

Q I'd Tike to direct your attention back to June 15th.
of 2012,'about 2235 hours. . Did you respond to a location in
San Jose known as the Pink Poodle?

A Yes, I did.

What is the Pink Poodle?
The Pink Poodle is a strip club.

And what.part af town 1is fhat in San Jose?

o0 I D

It'é'in the western side of town. It's located in
the area of Bascom and San Carlos. _

Q And what was thé reason that you went to that
location?

A To Ti11 with another dfficéf. There ﬁas a call
of -- there ﬁas a fight. We11,.50mebody réported a fight in
the area. So a sing]e officer responded initially. And he

had contact with several subjects. He put on the radiec. So I

responded to assist.

@ ° And when you responded to assist, who did you see
there at the site?

A Several Hells Angels standing out front of the club,
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Q And which -- how could you tell they were Hells
Angels?

A They were all wearing their colors and their vests.

Q What part or how close to the strip club were they
standing?

A Probably like fiVe feet from the doorway, ten feet
from the doorway;

| Q And were they all standing together?

A Yes. |

Q And what were {hey doihg when you first arrived
there on thé scene?
Just standing around. Just talking to the officér.
And so what did you do? |
Walked up and said hello.

And who did you say hello to?__

= r o0

I think initially it was Andrew Danley. I spoke to

~him a couple times. So I spoke to him that day.

THE COURT: .Would you spell that for me, please?

THE WITNESS: I'm not really sure how to spell it.

Andrew, common spe11ﬁng. And Danley, D-A-N-L-E-Y. Something

1ike that.
BY MR. STEGE:
Q And you recognized Danley, you previously have

spoken with him?
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A Yes. Yes, sir.

Q How was Danley dressed?

A He was wearing his cuts. His vest and his Hells
Angels patches and so on.

Q Wa_s he wearing a specific patch related to an office
within the Hells Angels? |

A Yes. I noticed that -- I noticed that he had the
treasurer patch over his San Jqse patch.

Q And who else did you épeak to? Who else was there
with Danley? |

A Danley's Tather, Mr. Jimmy Arnet, Angela Wilkins,
Mr. V111agrana,'and a few others. |

Q Let's talk about -- well, with respect to Danley,
have you previously seen.hi'm wearing his Hells Ange]s. attire?

A Oh, yés.

Q Thése are fu11.cuts?

A Absolutely. Af least a dozeﬁ times probab1y.\_

Q What about his fathef, Jimmy Arnet, what's his
status? H

A His fafher 1s the prevﬁous president, ex-president
of that chapter. |

Q 0f that San Jose cﬁapter?

A Correct. | .

Q And you've-previbus1y seen him wearing Hells Angels

VESAN
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full cut?

A Numerous times, yes, sir.

Q And associating with other Hells Angels?

A Yes, sir. 'Numerous times.

Q What, if anything; did you notice about Arnet's

patches on the vest?

A That day I noticed that there was a -- he was
wearing a new patch or at least one that it was the first time
that I saw it. It was just a patch that I hadn't seen. 3o it
kind of struck a note with.me. It had the Drake Street Crew
on his -- |

THE COURT: I'm sorry. I couldn't hear YDU.

THE WITNESS: It said Drake Street Crew. It's the

| side rocker that he wears on his vest. And it represents the

city -- or sorry, the street tﬁat-the clubhouse 1is 1océted on.

MR. SCHONFELD: And Your Honor, I'm going to objeo_t
S0 far'tbithis Tine of the questioning. This is alleged to be
an other act or wrongdoing by Mr. Villagrana. This fs:not |

a11egéd in the motion to admit gang enhancement gvidence nor

| has this witness been inftroduced for that purpose.

So what other people are wearing really has nothing
to do with the a]]eged other act that is trying to be
introduced.

THE COURT: I'm going to overrule the objection.
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'BY MR. STEGE:

Q He's wearing this Drake Street Crew side rocker. 1Is
that what you called it?

A Correct.

Q And you were gesturing to your Teft side or to the
side of where the patch is located?

A Yes.

Q@  Does Drake Street have any significance to the Hells
Angels to your knowledge?

A Yes. That's where their chapter clubhouse is

Jocated on, Drake street.

Q And you've seen that?
A 'Oh, yes, sir. Numerous times.
Q Let's move on to-Ange]o Wilkins. Was Angelo Wilkins

‘there when you Tirst walked up?

A No, sir, he was not.

Q At What'point dﬁes Wijkins come 6ut?

A After I was talking to the -- you know, a couple of
the guyé out frﬁnt{'I guess somebody went inside and got him
and came outside. And just wanted to know if everything was
okay, 1if there was any troub]e. He just, as the president he
tries to keep the peace and make sure none of hfs guys are
getting 1h trouble. |

@  What did you notice with respect to his patches?

M7
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A He was wearing the president patch over his San Jose
patch. ‘

Q And you wrote in your report that it was a newer
patbh. Why would you use that term, "newer"?

A Oh, because it ﬁas clean. It was very bright red
and white. Normally the guys that have been in Tor a while,
you can tell with the patches, the whité starts getting a
Tittle dirty. So you can tell that they've been in the club
for a while. So it was a brand-new bright.patch as well as a
few others he héd,on himselfT.

Q A féw other newer patches?

A That I noticed, yes.

- Q Tell us about those other patches?

.A He was wearing the Dequiallo patch, Triple Six and
the Filthy Few patch.

Q And have_you.had previous contact with Mr. Wilkins
prior to thg déte we've been talking aboﬁt?

a A Yes. I've spoken.to him before several times when
he was in cuts and a few times where he wasn't wearing his
vest at his house.

a And do.you -- did you know Jeffrey Pettigrew to be
the previous preéident of the San Jose He]1s'Ange1s?

A Yes, sir, I do.

Q And have you seen Pettigfew wearing the president

49

AT




10
-11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24

patch or acting as the president of San Jose?

2 r 0o 0 r 0 I

Yes, sir. Several times.

What about Vi]]agfana, did you see him there?
Yes, sif, I did. |

And what was Villagrana wearing?

A Hells Angels vest.

And I've just been cé]]ing him by his last hame .

Cesar Villagrana is the person you were just talking about,

right?

Yes, sir.

Do you see Cesar V111agraha in the courtroom right

Yes, sir, I do.
Would you identify him for the record.

Sitting right over there wearing a dark suit, red

and maroon tie, white shirt.

MR. STEGE: Ask the record ref1ect he's identified

the defendant, Your Honor.

THE COURTf The record will so reflect.

BY MR. STEGE.:
Q And what was he wearing?
A. Dark clothing and his HA vest.
Q Hells Ange]s.cut?
A

Yes, sir,
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Q Did you speak with a person by the name of Bruce
Chase or see a person by.the name of Bruce Chase?
Yes, I did. |
Have you héd previous contact with Bruce Chase?
Yes, sir, I have.

Was he wearing a full Hells Angels cut?

= T S = S -

No. That day that I -- that day at the Pink Poodle
he was wearing a prospect. I met him before. 1 stopped him
before. And.he was at that point more of a hang-around. But
on this occasion when I saw him there, he was wearing a
prospect vest, which is just represented by the lower bottom
rocker.

Q And what about -- did you speak to a person or see a

person named Felix Gregorio?

A Yes,_sir.

Q Do -you know of his association with the He]Ts
‘Angels?

A Yes.  He's been associated, a hang-around of the

Hells Angels for a long time, at least that I'm aware of.

Q You mentioned 1in speaking about Mr. Wilkins coming
out, you said before that you were talking to the people who
were outside? |

A Yes, sir.

Q Did you speak with Mr. Villagrana?
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A No, sir,
Q Who did you speak to?
A Spoke to Danley, Bruce Chase, Mr. Arnet. I think
that's it.
Q Tell us about the conversation with Arnet.
A I just asked him about the new patch.
MR. SCHONFELD: Objection. Hearsay.
THE COURT: Why is this not hearsay?
_ MR, STEGE: I'll move on judge.
BY MR. STEGE:
Q And now with respect to the Drake Street Group

patch; 1is that right?

A Correct.

Q Did you notice any-motorcyc1es in the area?

A Yes, sir. They were all parked right but in front.

Q And whose motorcycles were they?

A AlT thé members that I was speaking to.

Q Was there a bike there with the Ticense plate Area
81, Area 817

A Yes, sir.

a And did you do an investigation -- or let me ask

you, had you previously -- had you previously séen that

motorcycle before?

A Yes, sir.
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Q And who have you seen riding that motorcycle, the

Area 81 motorcycle, prior to the day we have been talking

about?
A Mr. Tausan,
THE COURT: I couldn't hear that answer.
THE WITNESS: Mr. Tausan.
BY MR. STEGE:
Q Is that Steve Tauéan?
A Steve Tausan, correct.
Q T-A-U-5-A-N?
A Yes, sir.

Q Now. at the time what did you learn about the
registration of Tausan's motorcycle?
A It was in the change of ownershib state.

MR. SCHONFELD: Your Hdnor, I'm just gding £o object
on relevance, So far I haven't heard anything relevant to
other act evidence.

THE COURT: We'll see if that bears fruit or not.
I'm going to hear the evidence and then rule on it. |
BY MR. STEGE[

Q You later learned that Area 81 motorcycle was
régistgred to who?
A Mr. V111agrana;

Q And transferred from Tausan?

5
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A Correct.

Q Did the other members there that we've been talking
about, did they have motorcycles there that were registered or
associated with them?

A Yes. Well, they are all registered to them or their
fathers. And they all had their death head on the gas tank.

Q So everyone but Villagrana had a motorcycle

registered in their name on that date?

A Yes.

Q And the Area 81, Steve Tausan's bike ﬁas in thé
process of being transterred to Mr. V111agréna?

A That 1is porrect.

MR. STEGE: Court's indulgence.
THE COURT: Yes.
BY MR. STEGE:
'Q  Was there an arrest made or what became of the
investigation into this call of a fight?

A OH, it was unfounded. No one -- there was ho
victim. So we couldn't really have a crime. But théy were 1in
the area of where the fight occurred, éo that's why I
originally -- my sefgeant went out there and started talking

to them. It was more of a consensual contact than any sort of

detention or arrest.

Q And you've previously been out to the Pink PoodTe?
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A Yes, sir. Several times.
] And is it true that the Pink Poodle is associated

with the Hells Angels?

A Long-standing. Yes, sir.
Q And what's your basis for saying that?
A They've been there for years operating, you know,

} they've done business out of the club. At Teast it's known

they do business out of the club. Long-standing friends with
the owner. And it's just known within the PD. |

Q And you've been out thefe and previously seen Hells
Angels there?

A Dozens and dozens of times, yes, sir.

Q In fact, is that the 1acation where Tausan had
allegedly or a man was killed by Tausan, but he was.u1timate1y
acquitted?

A That's absolutely correct. Yes, sir.

MR. SCHONFELD: Your Honor, I'm going to object to
that evidence or that testimony. It's.irre1evaht, beyond the
scope. _

THE COURT:- I don't know the_re]evance. |

MR. STEGE: 1It's their hangout that goes with their
territory,

THE COURT: Why is this admissible?

MR. STEGE: Well, this entire line of questioning or

55

AW SR




10

11

12

13

14

15 -

16

17

18

19
20
21
22
23

24

just --

THE COURT: I'm kind of thinking the whole 1ine of
questioning; But why is what happened with Mr. Tausan at the
Pink Poodle at sometime in the past, why is that relevant
through this witness?

MR. STEGE: It shows the connection between
Villagrana and Tausan, but going to him ultimately having his
bike.

THE COURT: I'm going to sustain the objection. I
don't think what Tausan did theré has relevance.

MR. STEGE: I'11 pass the witness.

THE -COURT: Cross. .

MR. SCHONFELD: Your Hoﬁor, I move to exclude this
witness., 1 ddh't think we should waste any time with
cross-examination., The State .

THE COURT: I'm going to wait. I understand what
their prior bad act evidence is supposed to be. This is
predicate on the relationship. I don't.know if it's going to
come in as bad act evidence, but you should take the
opportunity to cross if Qou want .

MR; SCHONFELD: Okay.

/1 i
e
I
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CROSS-EXAMINATION
BY MR. SCHONFELD: .

Q Sir, isn't it true that Mr. Villagrana had
absolutely nothing to do with the alleged call of the
disturbance in the area of the Pink Poodle?

A I'm not really sure I understand your question,

0] Mr. V111agrané did absolutely nothing wrong to incur
his contact with you on June 15, 2012, correct?

A Did he do anything wrong?

@ - Yeah.

A No, sir.

Q Right. Not illegal to be a member of the Hells
Angels, is it?

A Not that I know of.

Q You did not write a report related to those
instances in queétion until at 1éast ohe monfh after your

interaction with Mr. Villagrana on June 15th, 2012; 1is that

correct?
A No, sir.
Q Okay. Do you see this narrative report that's been

produced in discovery?
A Yes, sir.
@ - It's not on any formal police department letterhead

or document, is it?
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A Correct.
Q It's just something that's typed up with no date, no

signature, no namé of the author; is that correct?

A That's correct. )

Q C1ear1y because this was a nonevent, wasn't it?

A Thath correct, sir. It was more informational.

Q So at what point did you type this up and why is it

not on official police department letterhead?

.A Because there was no crime.

Q So you just typed this up and put it in your file or
did you type it up so the Stéte of Nevada could have it?

A Typed it up and put it 6n the file within our

department for our 1nf0rmat10n._

Q But not on an official report?
A Correct.
Q And the reason it's not on an official report is

because it was a nonevent?
A It was no crime,_so it doesn't go on a crime report.
@ You doh't have Tike a Tetterhead that --
MR, STEGE: Asked and answered, Judge.
THE COURT: Sustained.
_ MR; SCHONFELD: I'T1 move on.
BY MR. SCHONFELD: |

Q This report was not written until at Teast one month
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after the June 15th incident --

MRf STEGE: Asked and answered. He already said
that.

THE COURT: 1I'm going to overrule. He said it
wash't, but I didn't get the answer, so .
BY MR; SCHONFELD:

Q@ Is that correct?

A I'm not sure of the date, but I relayed fhe
information to some other officers, to my superiors. And they
said, "Well, the information that you have could be valuable
in the future. Write an informational report or write a
1ittle something, just so we can have 1t.0n fiTe." And that's
what you see there, I'm assuming.

Q Well on the bottom of this report it talks about as
of July 18, 2012, It talks about the registered oWner_of the
Area 81 vehicle or Iiéense plate. Do you know that?

A Uh-huh.

Q Is that "Yes"?

A Yes, sir.

Q And so the incident is on June 15th_and your report
contains information related to July 18th. You'd agree with
me that it was over one month before these documents were
prepared; is that correct?

A No, sir. That last 1ittle bit was added at the end,
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when I went back and checked the Ticense plate again.

Q So you didn't note in there that part was a
supplement or anything Tike that, did you?

A Corfect; sir, because it's not a police report,

Q And you would agree with me Mr. Villagrana did not
commit any béd act on June 15th, 2012, that caused you to
interact with him, correct?

MR, STEGE: Objection. That's a ledal conclusion.
THE COURT: Sustained.
BY MR. SCHONFELD:

Q Mr. Villagrana had done nothing wrong és far as you
know, on June 15, 2012, before, during or after his
interaction with you, correct?

A Sir, no one there did anything wrong.

Q Prior to June 15, 2012, you had already identified
Mr. Villagrana, according to you, as a full-patch member of |
the Hells Angels, correct?

A | Yes{ sir.

Q  So you didn't need this ‘interaction in order to
establish in your mind that Mr. Villagrana was a member of the
Hells Angels, correct?

A No, sir.

Q Your role with the San Jose Police Department is to.

investigate the Hells Angels in that area, correct?
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A No, not just them.
Q Well, that's part of your role, right?
A Correct, yes, sir.
Q And therefore you had previously identified
Mr. Villagrana; is that cqrrect?
A Yes, sir.
Q Mr. V111agrana was cooberative with you on June
15th, 2012, was he not?
A Yes, sir. He was in no sort of -- no verbal
arguments, no nothing. He was standing there quietly.
Q In fact, your repdrt states that -- Tet's see --
THE COURT: Yoﬁ're referring to the report. Would
yoﬁ make a record of where that report is.
MR. SCHONFELD: Yes. This is attached to the Other
Acts Motion as Exhibit 1.
THE COURT: Okay.
MR. SCHONFELD: The State's motion, And it is the
first page of Exhibit 1. |
THE COURT: Okay. Thank you.
BY MR. SCHONFELD:
Q Your report reflects, "Al1l subjects were cooperative
and informed the officers they wanted no trouble"?
A Yes, sir. They never want any trouble.

Q Okay. "AT1 subjects,"” that included Mr. V111agraha,
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correct?

A

a
A
Q

Yes, sir,
He was cooperative and didn't want trouble?
Correct.

And then you testified that Mr. Wilkinson even came

out to make sure everything was okay?

A
a

Pretty much what anybody would do, yes, sir.

You would agree with me that your interaction with

Mr. Villagrana on June 15th, 2012, has nothing to do with the

incidents that occurred at the Nugget Casino in this:case,'

right?

again?

MR. STEGE: Objection.
THE COURT: I'm going to sustain the objection.

THE WITNESS: I'm sorry. Can you ask that question

MR. SCHONFELD: It's been sustained..

THE COURT: No, because I sustained the objection.

So you can't answer it.

THE WITNESS: Oh, okay.

BY MR. SCHONFELD:

Q

Now your report reflects that Mr. Tausan's

motorcycle was parked 1h.front of the Pink Poodle, and it's

your belief that Mr. Villagrana was the new owner. ‘I'm a

1jtt1e unclear on that.
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A Well at the time, so was I. That's why I went back
a month Tlater and ran the plate.

Q Isn't it true the motorcycle that was in front of
the Pink Poodle, you didn't check the VIN number, did you?

A Bid I check the VIN number?

Q Yes.

A No, sir. I can honestly say it was not safe for me
to go there and start poking around with bikes with a bynch of
Hells Angels standing around.

| Q -So you did not check the VIN number?

A No, sir, I did not check the VIN number,

Q .So the 6n1y thing you can testify to is that the
license plate on it was Area 81, which at one point belonged
fo_Mr. Tausan, correct? |

A Yes.

(0] And later belonged to Mr. Villagrana, correct?

A . Yes, Same matching paint, sadd1ebag, Everything.

| Tank, bag, everything, were all the same. Same paint. So I'm

aésuming the VIN number would match from the first time I
sight checked.

Q You didn't check the VIN number, did you?

A That day, ne, sir. Unless they can change out the
tanks and saddlebags and everything else.

Q And you never checked DMV records to establish
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whether or not Mr. Tausan's motorcycle was so]d to
Mr. Villagrana or anybody else, did you?

A Yes, sir. 1 did a month Tater.

Q You checked the license plate number being
transferred, but you did not check the vehicle being
transferred; isn’'t that true?

A I'm not sure I understand what you're saying. Are

you talking the VIN number?

Q What I'm saying, Officer, and you're under oath --
A Yes, sir.
Q And we can subpoena records from the Department of

Motor Vehicle --

A By aI] means.

Q You would agree with me that there is a difference
between selling a motorcycle and transferring the license
plate, correct?

A . Correct. Yes, sir, I do know that.

aQ You did not verify that Mr. Tausan's motorcycle
ownership had been transferred to Mr. Villagrana. What you
Qerified is that the license plate had been transferred.

A Okay. I'11 agree with you.

.-Q Am I right? So you don't know that that was
Mr. Tausan's bike as opposed to Mr. VT]Jagrané‘s bike with a

transferred 1icense plate, do you?
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A No. I'm assuming it was, because the paint matched

as well,
Q So it was an assumption on your part, right?
A Yes, sir.
MR. SCHONFELD: I have nothing further, Your Henor.
THE COURT: Whose witness? Do you want to ask any
questions. .

MS. PUSICH: Your Honor, we don't have any
questions. They haven't touched on anything that would affect
Mr. Gonzalez.

THE COURT: Thank you. Mr. Stege, anything further?

MR. STEGE: Yeah.

REDIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. STEGE:

Q After that date, have you ever seén Villagrana
riding thét motorcycle?

A Yes, sir.

Q And how did you'know it to be the same motorcycle?

A Paint, the plate, same person riding it.

Q Well, what's so uniqué about the paint that would
make it --

THE COURT: I think your question was vague. I

believed you were asking a question about what was unique
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about Mr. Tausan's motorcycle that mads thjs witness think
that Mr. Villagrana's motorcycle outside the Pink Panther-was
in fact that perscon's motorcycle. The withess just answered
the question what made it unique Jater when you saw
Mr. Villagrana driving it.

MR. STEGE: Right,

THE COURT: So which one is it? What's your
questioh?

MR. STEGE: 1I'11 ask both.

BY MR. STEGE:

Q What made you think on the date you've been talking
about that that bike --
THE COURT: What date? Before at the Pink Panther
or the guestion you jUst asked about later?
MR. STEGE: The date at the Pink Panther --
MR. DOGAN: Poodle.
BY MR. STEGE:
Q TaTking about June 15th, 2012. What made you think
on that date that the bike was the Tausan bike?
A Because I had seen that bike before, because it
matched the paint on.that tank. The pa{nt was specific.
a And how is the baint specific?
A Red and white and yellow and striped. Kind of, you

know, weird designs on it.
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Q So a custom paint?

Q Okay. What about the -- and you said the -- you
noticed the bags on it or the sadalebags on 1f?

A Yes, sir,

Q Are those the same saddlebags you had seen whgn
Tausan was rjding the bike?

A Uh-huh.

Q@ Is that yes or no?

A Yes., I'm sorry,

Q And the license plate was the same when you had seen
Tausan riding it?

A Yes, sir. _

Q Subsequent to this June 15th, 2012 date, had you
seen -~ have you seen anyone riding that motorbyc]e, this
unique motorcycle with the éustom paint and the Area 81
license plate?

A Yes, sir.

Q And who was that?

A Mr. Villagrana.

MR. STEGE: Nothing further,
THE COURT: Anything further?
MR. SCHONFELD: No. Thank you, your Honor.

THE COURT: May this witness be excused?
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MR. STEGE:

Yes.

MR. SCHONFELD: Yes.

THE COURT:

THE WITNESS:

THE COURT:

You may step down. You're excused.
Thank you very much.

Okay. 1It's 11 minutes to 12:00 of our

second day of the second week. How many more withesses?

MR. STEGE:
here this afternoon.

THE COURT:
today?

MR. STEGE:

THE COURT:
in the arternoon?

MR. STEGE:

start to be available

THE COURT:
okay.

MR. STEGE:

THE COURT:

MR. STEGE:

We have Mr. Clarke. We asked him to be

Is that the only other witness for

Yes.

And so when do you expect him? Anytime

I think I told him to meet me at 1:00,
at 1:00.

And if we come back at 1:15 that will be

Can I make a record?
Please be seated, everyone.

Last week we had Mr. Skelton on the

stand. And there was an issue brought up about the audio

recordings, if the Court recalls. I want to make a record

that Tast week we did disclose those. This was the issue of

getting them to play. Yesterday during our atternoon break,
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we disclosed the remainder of fhose that Mr., Skelton gave us
to both of the defense counsel.

THE COURT: I'm sorry. You gave them in a different
format? They are now -- is that whét you're making a record
that you now can hear them?

MR, STEGE: We got the remainder of them yesterday
and disclosed them, The ones that we were having issues with,
we disclosed those Tast week, either Thursday or Friday.

THE COURT: Are they different or the same thing?

MR. STEGE: Different.

MR. HALL: Your Honor, I think they can play them,

MR. DOGAN: Your Honor, because Mr. Skelton is not
going to be here -- wasn't.here yesterday or today,.I haven't
had time to play them. It's my qnderstanding that he's
réturning on the 29th. I w111 surely, way in advance of the
29th try to play them.those CDs. And Mr. Grim, I believe,
gave me that CD yesterday in court.

THE COURT: Okay. Would you before the end of
business today have someone in your office 1isten to make sure
you can hear it?

MR. DOGAN: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Not for content, just to make sure you
hear something on there. IT we have any technﬁca] issues I

would like to resolve them while you're all together.
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MR. DOGAN: Yes, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Okay. Then we'll be in recess,
(Lunch recess taken.)

THE COURT: Thank you. Please be seated.

Okay. I think we have Mr, Clarke.

MR, STEGE: Yes, we do.

THE COURT: Okay. Please call him.

MR. STEGE: Mr. Clarke. |
{(Witness sworn,)

THE COURT: You may proceed.

TYLER CLARKE,
called as a witness by the plaintiff herein,
being first duly sworn, was examined

and testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. STEGE:
Q Sir, will you please state and spell your nhame.
A Tyler Clarke, C-L-A-R-K-E.
Q How are you employed?
A I'm a detective with the Reno Police Department.
Q What part of the police depértment do ydu wofk?
A I;m currently assigned to ﬁhe financial crimes unit.
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Q And how long have you been with financial crimes
unit?

A Just over five years.

Q Do you have a specia]IassTgnment or a special role
within that unit? |

A As a detective in a financial crimes unit, I have a.
collateral assignment doing computer and mobile electronic
forensics.

Q And do you have any specialized training in those
areas?

A Yes, I have.

@ Could you tell us about that training and
experience?

A I have attended multiple courses sponsored by the
United States Secret Service through the Federal Electronic
Crimes Task Force. 1 have attended rdugh]y 4- to 500 hours of
specialized training. in the area of forensjcs, computer
forensics, and mobile device data 0611ect10n.

| Q And how tong have you been doing that Specialized
role or that specialized job?

A Around four years.

Q And so parf'of youf everyday duties, you exam{ne
both mobile devices and computers in a forensics setting?

A Yes, I do.
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